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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword

Introduction

Caerphilly County Borouwgh is kocated in the South Wales valleys covering an area of
approximately 278 sguare kilometres stretching from Cardiff in the south of the county to the
start of the Brecon Beacons in the north of the county. Caerphilly County Berough Council
(“the Authority”) serves a population of 173,000,

The accounts on the following pages show the financial performance for the year of all
aclivities undertaken by the Authority. Whilst the accounts have been presented as clearly as
possible, local authority accounts are technical and complex. Consequently, the purpose of
this foreword is to offer a guide to the most significant matters appearing in the accounts and
to provide a summary of the financial performance for the year.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword (continued)

2011/2012 Revenue Expenditure

Details of the Authority's revenue expenditure for the year are provided in the Comprehensive

Income and Expendilure Statement on page 19. The account is classified according to
service expenditure areas.

In 2011/2012, the Authority's expenditure and income companed o budget was:

Orlginal Revised {Overspend)

Service Area Estimate Estimate Cutturn Underspend
£000 E£000 £000 E000

Education and Leisura 131,70 131,287 130,142 1,245
Social Senices 72762 72772 75,060 (2.288)
Emvironment 53,710 56821 52172 4 G459
Corporate Serdces 54 770 L4 TTE 44 435 10,341
Direct Sendces (346) (339) (1,167 a1i8
HREA i L] (1,860) 1,960
Total Service Expanditure 312,666 IMN5417 208 692 18,725
Funding Income (312 666) (312, 6686) (313.922) 1,256
(Surplus) ! Deficit on Provision of Services L] 2,751 {15,230) 17,981
In-Year Use of General Fund Resames (2,070) (77 5,100
In-Year Use of Earmarked Besenes (BB1) 19 5641 (20,322)
Total Outturn [i] [i] (2, 758) 2,759
Transfer to Earmarked Resenes 547
Transfer bo General Fund Resenes (3,356)
General Fund Reserves as at 31 March 2011 (16,622)
Budget Strategy Coninbution o
Use of Balances in Year Y70
Serdoe Oullurn Conbribulion (3,356)
General Fund Reserves as at 31 March 2012 {12,808)
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword (continued)

Further details of the Authority's outturn performance against budget can be found in the
Director of Corporate Services, Provisienal Outturn Report 2011/2012 which will be presented
te Cabinet on the 17 July 2012. The report may be obtained on the Authority's website.

The actual expenditure is compared in broad terms to the revieed budget for the curent
financial year. However, the expenditure on individual Directorates does not mirror that shown
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, because budget manitoring is
caried oul on a Directorate basis and re-calegorised in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to comply with recommended accounting practice. The
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement figures also include accounting
adjustments in respect of depreciation, capital grants and confributions, 1AS 19 pension costs
and a number of tems included within the directorates within the budget summary that are
shown below the Cost of Service line within the Account,

The following table provides a reconciliation between the Surplus / Deficit on Provision of
Services reported per Directorate and the Surplus ! Deficit on Provision of Services reporied
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

(1]
(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services reported by Directorate (15,230)
Depreciation and mpairment of Ass els 100,652
Mon-enhancing Expendibore 11,189
Amorisalion of Intangible Asseis : G2
Capital Granis and Confnbutions Applied (25.167)
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statube 1,201
Met GGain or Loss on Disposal of assels 1273
Minimum Revenue Provsion (10,518)
Capital Grants and Confributions Unapplied {1,580
14518 Pension Adjustment 2,181
Accumulated Absence Adjustment (11}
Total Adjusiments 79,5652
{Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services per Comprehensive Income & R
Expenditure Account 64,322

Funding Income

The following table details the main sources of income received by the Authority to fund
service expenditure in 2011/2012;

201172012

Original Revised
Estimate Estimate Outturn  Variance

£000 £000 £000  £000
Funding Income

Council Tax (Net of Police Authority and Community

Council Precepts) 52,058 52058 53,314 {1.256)
Revenue Support Grant 210877 2104977 210,877 0
Nan Domestic Rates 40,048 40,045 40,045 ]
Cutcome Agresment Grant 1873 1873 1873 0
Private Finance Initiative Grant 7.z 7.712 7.z o
Total Funding Income 312,666 312,666 313922 {1,256)
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword (continued)
Housing Revenue Account

Details of the Housing Revenue Account are sat out on pages 120 to 125, For 2011/2012,
actual outturn compared o budget was as follows:

201142012
Original Actual
Estimate Outturn Variance
£000 £000 £000
Espenditure S3,056 70,115 (37 058)
Inam e {33, 066) (49,757} 16,701
0 20,358 (20, 358)

Mel additional amounis required by statule to be
debited or credited to the HRA Balance for the year 4] (19.270) 19,270
Dreficit for the year ] 1,088 {1,088)
0
1]

Transter romiio) Other Sendce Earmarked Resermas {3.048) 3048
HR & Cutiurn per Foreword (page 3) {1,560} 1,860

Direct Labour and Direct Service Organisations (DLOs and DSOs)

During the year, the Authority operated 2 Direct Labour Organisations (DLOs) and 3 Direct
Service Organisations (DS0s) at arms length from the Service Departments in competition
with companies in the private sector, which provide similar services. Whilst their accounts do
not form a separate statement within these accounts, they form part of the Authority's Balance
Sheet and Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterment, and thelr parformance is
disclosed in nole &, in accordance with CIPFA’s Service Reporting Code of Praclice
(SeRCOP)

Provisions

Movements upon provisions are detailed in note 31, page 96 together with explanations of
whal each provision is for,

1 April 2011 Movement 31 March 2012

EDQD E000 E£000
Short term provisicns {2.185) 181 {2004}
Long lerm provisions (&.780) 127 (8 BE2)
(10,874} 08 (10,666}

Reserves

The amounts shown as non-usable reserves relate to capital and pension reserves, which do
not constitute “usable resources’. The movements are detailed in note 21, page 83, whilst
details of the restatement to the opening balance are shown in Mote 54.

Restated
1 April 2011 Movament 31 March 2012
E000 £000 £000
Reserves - Usable {85,830) (5,229) {91,05a)
- Unusable (563,189) 105,194 (457 995}
{649,019) 99,985 {549,054}
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword {continued)
lcelandic Banks

The sub-prime crisis of early 2008 was followed by the banking crisis of autumn 2008. The
world banking system came near to collapse and governments around the world were forced
to rescue their major banks.

Unfortunately, lceland's economy was not strong encugh to provide the necessary support for
its banks and subsequently, Landsbanki, Kaupthing and Glitnir collapsed. The UK
subsidiaries of these banks, Heritable and Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander alse went into
administration.

The Authority had deposits in Heritable and Landsbanki totalling £15m at the time of collapse
and these sums are subject to the ongoing administration and recovery procedures. Based on
the information available at that time, the Authority considered that an impairment (the
difference between the amount outstanding and the amount likely to be recovered) should be
recognised in the 20082008 accounts, by writing off £4.565m against revenue.

The current position regarding the outstanding debt is detailed in Note 10 in the Notes to the
Core Financial Statements (page 53).

Loan Dabt

The total amount outstanding as at 31 March 2012 was £195,893m,. as measured on an
amortised cost basis, the majority being owed by the Authority to the Public Works Loan
Board. The balance comprises loans from the money market, Analysis of the loan debt is
shown in the notes accompanying the Core Financial Statements on page 53 (note 10).

The neminal value represents the principal amount outstanding at the Balance Sheet date.

201072011 201172012
£000 E000
Amortised Cost of Loans:
Loan debl repayable in one year (2,128) (4B0]
Loan debt repayable in more than one year (193,377) (195,413}
(185,503 {195,893}
Naminal Value of Loans:
Loan debt repayable in one year (2,059) (234]
Loan debt repayable in more than ane year (190, 165) (182,193)
(182,205) (192427)

Policy on Payment of Creditors

The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 requires that creditors be paid
without undue delay and within a 30-day seftlement period. In 2011/12, 93.39% of payments
were made within 30 days (93.90% in 2010/11).

However, the Council's Improvermeant Plan (2008/2012), states it is the Authority's aim to pay
undisputed invoices to local small and medium sized businesses within an average of 13
calendar days in order to have a positive effect on the local economy. In 2011/12, invoices
were settied within an average of 13.92 days (13.94 days in 2010/11)
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword (continued)

The Wealsh Government encourages local authorities to settle undisputed invoices within 10
working days. The Authority achieved this settlement period for 66.1% of invaices in 201112
{54.89% in 2010/11).

Pension Liability

Following the adoption of 1AS 15 “Employee Benefits” by local authorities, the Authority is
required to recognise in its accounts, its share of the net assets/liabilities of any defined
benefit pension scheme.

The net pensions assetliability to be recognised = made up of two elements:

Liabilities — the retirement benefits that have been promised under the formal terms of the
pension scheme.

Assels - the Authority's attributable share of the investments hald in the pension scheme to
cover its abilities, measured at fair value,

The total net liability included for 2011/2012 is some £286.283m (£232.776m in 2010/2011).
Although this liability has a substantial impact upen the net worth of the Authority, statutory
arrangemaents axist to fund the deficit to ensure that the financial position of the Authority will
remain healthy. The deficit will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining
working lives of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary,

Details of this liability are shown in the notes accompanying the Core Financial Statements in
nofe 11.

Local Government Reorganisation

On 1 April 1996 the Authority inherited its share of the assels and llabilities of Gwent County
Council, Mid Glamorgan County Council, Ishwyn Borough Council and Rhymney Valley
District Council. The realisation of the current assets and labilities of Gwent County Council
was undertaken by Newport County Borough Councll.

The awdit of Mid Glamorgan County Council was completed on 25 Movermnber 1998. Rhondda
Cynon Taff County Borough Council had the responsibility for closing these accounts and has
provided the successor authorities (including Caerphilly) with an analysis of assets and
liabilities o be transferred and these figures have been incorporated into the Authority's
Statement of Accounts. The disaggregation of these assets and liabilities has been finalised,
following & previous without prejudice distribution of oulstanding balances having been made
(522 note 32, page 97 o the Financial Staterments).

Rhondda Cynon Taff County Borough Council has now concluded this process, with the
signing of & Section 56 agreement in accordance with the Local Government (Wales) Act
1984, on behalf of all successor authorities, However, the treatment of materal liakilities
arising since the balance sheet date {"post balance sheet events”) has yet to be finalised

The Authority has adopted a prudent approach and provided for all known liabilities and only
those assets it is certain of receiving, Nevertheless certain assets transferred to the Authority
could bring with them unknown liabilities, which have not been recognised and accounted for.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword (continued)
2011/2012 Capital Expenditure
Capital expenditure during the year amounted to some £49.781m (2010¢/2011 - £47.371m).
The major iterns within this figure are identfied below:

F
=
i
L=]

Heusing:
Repairs and Improvemenis 8,086
Security Equipment g
Improvement Grants & Privale Sikes 4309
12,400
Hon Housing:
Education 8211
Soclal Sendces G4
Highways & Trans porialicn and Land Reclamation 14 658
Lifelong Learning and Leisure 2,265
Economic Developm entTourism 1,287
Planning B,803
Emviranmenial Services 340
Cither 3,153
37,361
48,761
Financed by Grants inc MRA 31,480
Bormowing 4 5671
Oither 13,801
49,761

Capital expenditure was financed by borrowing (£4.671m). grants (£31.488m) and other
sources (£13.601m). The Authority has also entered info a number of finance leases to
acquire computer equipment in its schools. Further details regarding these leases can be
found in note 14, (page 75) to the Core Financlal Statements
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword (continued)

Future Financial Developments

The Authorty's budget for 201213 was approved on 23" February 2012, The budget was
prepared on the same basis as the previous year, which is to continue to make savings in
advance, converl these savings o revenue confribution to capital and set a Medium Term
Financial Plan (MTFP} and capital programme for 3 years.

The capital zettlement received from Welsh Government for 2012113 presented a furthar cut
of 7.5% following on from the previous year's cut of 19.2%. The Authority has an ambitious
programme in relation fo spend on 21* century schools of £92m. Match funding of 50% has
to be secured from the Authonty's capital programme, the remaining S0% will be funded by
Welsh Government. A sum of £14m has already been set aside as part of the Authority's
contribution. The remaining funds will need to be identified when plans can be fully costed
following a period of full consultation and a final decision by Council.

The Authority is looking to collaborate where a business case identifies financial savings and
service improvements, The Education Service is part of a collaboration with the Greater
Gwent area called the Education Achievement Service, Work is ongoing in respect of
praparing a business case for approval by Members in respect of a Social Services
collaboration with Blaenau Gwent.

The Authority balloted tenants on transferring the Authority's housing slock to a new
registered social landlord in February 2012, The majority of tenants voted to retain housing
siock with the Authority. Council had previously approved a business plan incorporating
prudential borrowing to ensure that the Authority had a retention strategy that would achieve
Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) on the Authority's housing stock by 201920, The
estimated financial impact of these decisions has been factored into the MTFP, The business
plan and the Authority's progress in achiaving these targets will be closely monitored by a
project board, Welsh Government and the Authority's Members.

There is still much uncertainty surrounding the impact on the Authority's services of the
Welfare Reform legislation and the introduction of Local Council Tax Benefit. This will be
clogely monitored and the MTFP will be adjusted when decisions have been finalised by
Woelsh Government and Central Government.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Explanatory Foreword (continued)

2011 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting

The abowve publication, published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) governs the items fo be disclosed in these Financial Accounts, and
makes certain changes for 2011/2012 that are applicable to the Authority:

a)

b}

c)

d)

e)

The adoption of FRS 30 "Heritage Assets” within local authority's financial statements
results in comprehensive disclosure requirements (regardless of whether such assets
have been brought ento the Balance Sheet). Where Heritage Assets are brought onto
the Balance Sheet, local authorities are required to prepare a Balance Sheet as at 1 April
2010 and to restate the 201072011 Financial Statements;

Related parly disclosures have been amended in respect of central government
departments, governmeant agencies, NHS bodies and other local authaorities, to take into
account new definitions in |1AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™

The introduction of new disclosures regarding exit packages in terms of disclosing the
number and cost of exit packages agreed;

The reinstatement of a previous SORP (Statement of Recommended Practice)
requirement to disclose the nature and armount of frust funds;

Additional disclosure requirements in relation to material soft loans and the nature of risks
associated with financial instrumeants;

The Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency Scheme was introduced in
2010/11. However a carbon reduction commitment levy was charged for the first time in
201112. The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) includes a
charge that has been apportioned across services as per the Local Authority Accounting
Panel (LAAP) Bulletin 91
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Statement of Reasponsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
The Authority's responsibilities
The Authority is required:
= (o make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and o secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this
Autharity, that officer is the Head of Corporate Finance;

= o manage itz affairs to secure economic, efficient and effectve use of resources and to
safeguard ifs assels,

+ o approve the Statement of Accounts.

Responsibilities of the Head of Corporate Finance

The Head of Corporate Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Autharity's Statement
of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice an
Local Authonty Accounting in the United Kingdom {'the Code of Practice'),

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Head of Corporate Finance has:

# selected suitable accounting pelicies and then applied them consistently;

= made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

« complied with the Local Code of Practica

The Head of Corporate Finance has also:

# kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

» taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and ather iregularities.

Certificate of the Head of Corporate Finance

| certify that the accounts, set out on pages 14 to 125, give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Authorty as at 31 March 2012 and its income and expenditure for the year
then ended.

II . I_..
NizAL Lt
N. Scammell .
Head of Corporate Finance Date )73 II = |I"| 5

The accounts were approved by the Council on

Slgned an hahal_'_f_gj Caerphilly County Borough Council:

—_— e

-___.- 4 L e ral— & {'-
Councillor G, Oliver, Mayor .
Chair of Meeting Approving the Accounts Date 1 /9/iL.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Independent Auditors’ Report to Members of Caerphiily County Borough
Council

| have audited the accounting statements and related noles of Caerphilly Counly Borough
Council for the year ended 31 March 2012 under Ihe Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004

Gaerphilly County Borough Cowuncil's accounting statements comprise the Movement in
Reserves Staterment, the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Slatement, the Balance
Shaet the Cash Flow Statement, the Movemeant on the Housing Revenue Account Stalemeant
and the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and the Code of Practice an Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011112 based
on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

The maintenance and integrity of the Caerphilly County Borough Council web site is the
responsibility of Caerphilly County Borough Council; the work carried out by the awditors does
mat involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the statement of accounts since it
was initisily presented on the wab site.

Respective responsibllities of the responsible financial officer and the independent
auditor

As explained more fully in the Staterment of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts,
g2l out on page 11, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the
statement of accounts, which gives a inse and fair view,

hly responsibility is to audit the accounting stalements and related notes in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland). Those standards
require ma o comply with fhe Awdiling Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the accounting statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounls and disclosures in the acocounting
statemenis and related notes suffickent to give reasonable assurance that the accounting
etatements and related noles are free from materal misstaterment, whether caused by fraud
of error. This incluedes an assesament of: whethar the accounting policies are appropriate to
Caerphilly County Borough Council's circumstances and have been consistenlly applied and

. adequately disclosed; the ressonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
responsible financial officer and the overall presentation of the accounting statements and
related notes,

In sddition, | read all the financial and non-linancial information i the Explanaiory Foreward
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited accounting statements and related notes.
If | become aware of any apparent material misstalements of inconsistencies, | consider the
implicalions for my report.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Independent Auditors’ Report to Members of Caerphilly County Borough
Council continued

Opinion on the accounting statements of Caerphilly County Boreugh Gouncil
In my opinion the accounting statements and retated notes:

* give a true and fair view of the financial postion of Caerphilly County Borough Coundil as at
31 March 2012 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended: and

= have been propedy prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011112,

Opinion on other matters

In my cpindon, the informaticn contained in the Explanatory Foreword for the financial year for
which the accounling statements and related noles are prepared is consisient with the
accounting statements and relaled notes.

Matters on which | report by exception

I have nathing to report in respect of the Governance Staterment an which | report to you if, in
my opinion, i does nol reflect compliance with “Delivering Good Governance in Lacal
Government: Framewerk' published by CIPFAISOLACE in June 2007, or if the statemeni is
misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my &l

Certificate of completion of audit

I cerily that | have compleied the aiedit of the accounts of Caerphilly Counly Borough Gauncil
in accordance with the raguirements of the Public Audil (Wales} Act 2004 and the Code of
Audit Practice issued by the Auditor General for Wales.

By %

Anthony Barrett
Wales Audit Office
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff

CF118LJ

/1 September 2012
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Introduction to Accounting Statements

The Authority’s accounts for the year 2011/2012 are set out in the following pages. They
consist of;

a)

b)

c)

d)

)

The Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) — showing the movement in the year on
the different reserves held by the Authority. It is analysed into ‘Usable Reserves’ being
those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxaton and “Unusable
Rezernves'. The '‘Surplus or deficit on the provision of services' line shows the true
economic cost of providing the Authority's services, more details of which are shown in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This differs from the statutory
amounts charged to the Council Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes and
Housing Revenue Account Balance for dwellings rent sefting purposes. The ‘Met
Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves' line shows the statutory
Council Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before the Authority
undertakas any discretionary fransfers to or from earmarked resenves.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — showing the accounting
cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The Authority raises
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from
the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves
Staterment.

The Balance Sheet — which shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets
and liabilities recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less
l@bilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in
two categories. The first category of reserves are ‘usable reserves’, being those reserves
that may be used to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts
Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second
category of reserves are those that the Authority is not able to use to provide services
This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for
example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to
provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in
the Moverment in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations’

The Cash Flow Statement — which shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of
the Authority during the year. The statement shows how the Authorty generates and
uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and
financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of
taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority.
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for
resgurces, which are intended to contribute fo the Authorty's future service delivery.
Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash
flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) — this is separated into two statements, The
HRA Income and Expenditure Staternent which shows the economic cost in the year of
providing housing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices,
rather than the amount to be funded from rents and government grants. The Authority
charges rents to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations, which may be
different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, the basis on
EEE[:EP:_HFEH:S are raised, is shown in the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account
ent.

The Financial Statements as a whole are IFRS compliant, Further information and suppart is
provided in the Notes to the Core Accounts and the Auditors’ Report

Page 14 S



Caerphilly County Borough Council

Movement in Reserves Statement

For the year ended

31 March 2012
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Movement in Reserves Statement

Restated

Balance at 1 April 2010

Movement in reserves during
201072011

{Surplus)deficit on provision of
serices (accounting basis)

Oher Comprehensive Income and
Expendilure

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Adjustments bebveen acoounting
basis and funding basis under
regulakons

Het {Increase)iDecrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves
Transfers toffrom) Earmarked
Resernes

{increase)iDecrease in Year

Balance at 31 March 2011

Restated

Balance at 1 April 2010

Movement in reserves during
2010/2011

(Surplus Wdeficit on provsion of
EEMCEs [Booounting basis)

Dthver Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Adjustments between accounting
basis and funding basis under
resgulations

Met (Increase)iDecrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves

Transfers todifram) Earm arked
Reseres

(Increase)iDecrease in Year
Balance at 31 March 2011

Earmarked
Council Council Housing Capital Capital Total
Fund Fund Rewenua Grants Receipls  Usable
Balance Reserves Account Unapplied Resene Reserves
£000 £00) £000 E000 EQDD E00D Mobe
(12,984) (35022) ([6,062) (8.802) (2,603) (65473)
{29,352) o 22137 0 o {7.215)

] ] a 1] 0 a
{28,352) 0 22437 ] i) (T.215)
14 436 0 (21,588) (628) (58190 (13700} &
(14,916) 1] H48 (828) (5919} (208915}
11278 (11,024) (254) 0 H58 558 ]
(3.B38)  [11.024) 294 (62B) (5,381} (20,357
(16,622} (46,048} ([5,7T6E) (9430} (7964} (685830)

Taotal

Unusable Authority
Reserves FReserves
£000 EQOD
{501,399) (566.872)

4] {T.215)

(74,8932} (T4.932) 11,35
(T4,932) (82,147)

13,700 L] &
(61,232} (82,147

{558) 0
(61,780} (82,147)

(563.188) (649,019)

Dretails to the restatment of the comparative figures are set oulin Nole 54,
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Movement in Reserves Statement (continued)

Balance at 1 April 2011

Movement in reserves during
2014/2012

(Sunplus ddeficil on provision of
senices {accounling basis)

Cther Comprehensive Incame and
Expendifure

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Adjustments beberesn accounting
basis and funding basis under
regulations

Net (increase)/Decrease bafore
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves

Transfars toffrom) Earmarked
Resanes

{Increase)Decrease in Year

Balance at 31 March 2012

Balance at 1 April 2011

Movement in reserves during
201112012

(Surplus pdeficil on provision of
sarecas (accouniing basis)

Other Com prehensive Income and
Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Adjustments between accounting
basis and funding basis under
regulations

Hat (Increase)/Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves

Trangfers oifrom) Earmarked
Reasarmas

(increase)Decrease in Year
Balance at 31 March 2012

Earmarked
Coundcil Councll Housing Capital Capital Total
Furnd Fund Revenue Granis Receipls Usable
Balance Resersss Account Unapplied Reserne Reserves
£000 £000 EDI:H:I £000 £000 EQ0D Note
(16,622) (46.046) (57T68) (9,430} (7.964) ([B5.830)
4.3 G4 Q0 20358 0 0 G4 322
0 Q 0 0 i] Q
43, 964 0 20,358 ] 0 64,322
(46429 0 (21457 (1,588) (1.848) (1323 5
(2 465) 0 (1,089 (1,562) (1,848) (7,001}
6279 (B48T) 2187 1,266 507 1.772 L]
3,814 (8,467T) 1,088 (323) (1,341) {5,228)
(12,808) (54,513) (4,680 {8,753) (5,305) [91.,05%)
Taotal
Unusable  Authority
Reserves Reserves
£000 EQ0D
(563,189) [649,019)
0 Ga 322
35,643 35,643 11,38
35,643 99,965
71,323 0 5
1086 966 a5 965
(1,772) 0
105,194 99,965

[457,995) (549,054)
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
For the year ended
31 March 2012
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

31 March 2011

Restated Restated Restated
Expenditure Income Het
E000 E000 £000
3702 (1,108 2593

28962  (B.336)
28077  (9.053)

17,190 (10,526)
223074 (53915)
35848  (7.220)
68,591 (40.305)
83987 (79.183)
72381 (17.178)
4 480 {163}

4447 {425)
(38,972) o

20826
20,024

6864
170,059
28619
28,286
4804
55,186
42497

4022
(38.972)

531627 (225418)

20496  (5910)
78723 (51,134)

0 (355580)

{7.215)

(74,932)

(82,147)

306,208

14 577
27 588

(355 580)

(28.263)

o

(46 GET)

Central Sendces o the Public
Cultural and Related Senices

Envircnmental and Regulatory
Serices

Planning Sanices

Educalion and Children's Sendces
Highways and Transport Senjces
Local Suthority Housing (HRA)
Other Housing Senices

Adult Social Care

Corporate and Demaocralle Core
Costs

Mon Distributed Costs

Pension Pasi Senice Cost
credited to Mon Distributed Costs

Cost of Services

Other Oparating Expendifuns
Fimancing and Investment Income
and Expenditure

Taxation and Mon-Specific Gran
Income

(Surplus)iDeficit on Provision of
Services

{Surplus ) Treficit on revaluation of
Non-Curment asseis

(Surplus ) Deficit on revaluation of
awailabxle for sale inancial assets
Actuarial {gains)losses on
pensions asselsabilifes

Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditura

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

31 March 2012

Details of the restaterment to the comparative figures are set out in Note 54,

Page 19

64,222

(15,703}

51,346

35,643

99,965

Expenditure Income Met
E000 £000 £000 Nota
3,572 (SEE) 2576
ar.2s [5,752) 41 499
28,6535 (8,751} 19,784
16,208 (5534} BET4
226608 (48.917) 179691
31.388 (6,830 24 558
87.BED  {41.430) 26450
BT.293 (B2,138) 5,155
TB.524 (16,895) 51,629
4210 (133} 4077
7036 (1490 5,546
i) 4] o
589,505 (219.866) 369,639
23455 (1.848) 21607 T
BOASE  (34,947) 25208 8
0 (352,.133) (362.133) 9

35
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2012
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Restated Restated
31 March 2010 31 March 2011
£000 £000
1,100,826 1,081 615
8,563 9,680
5,596 3,388
586 548
1117671 1,085,244
51275 69,827
BOE 048
26 246 3e
408 5,043
TEE27 107,134
{(3.200) (2,126)
(61367} (B4,157)
{1.234) (2,185)
(65,891} {68,468)
8511} (8,769)
(192 734) (193,377)
{360.720) (281,305)
(T70) (1,417)
(563.735) (484,888)
566,872 649,019
(B5AT3) (65,830)
{501,388) (563,188
(566,872) (649,019)

The notes on pages 25 to 125 form part of the staterment of accounts.

Balance Sheet

Propery, Plant & Equipment
Heritage Assels

Long Term Inwestments
Long Term Dablors

Long Term Assets

Short Term Inwestments
Inveniorles

Shaort Term Deblors

Cash and Cash Eguivalents
Current Assels

Short Term Bosrowing
Shorl Term Credilors
Shon Term Provisions
Current Liabilities

Leng Term Provisions

Leng Tarm Borrowing

Cithear Long Term Liabilifies

Capital Granis Receipts in Advance
Long Term Liabilities

Net Azssets

Uzable Resepas

Linusable Reseres

Total Reserves

31 March 2012

Detailz of the restatement to the comparative figures are sal out in Mote 54,

E000 Mote
1026822 22
aBB0 23
2168 10
400 26
1,038,079
62465 10
93z 27
41,366 28
5738 29
110,490
(480) 10
(G0G16) 30
(20047 3
(63,100)
(B85 M
(195.413) 10
(331,168) 40
[MA74) @
{535.415)
549 054
1069
(457.8995) 21
[549,054)
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Restated
2010/2011
£000

7.215

43,243

(32 998)
17,460

{9.366)
(3.459)
4,635
408
5,043

Cash Flow Statement

Met surplus or (deficit) on provision of services

Adjust net surplus or defcit on the provision of serdoes far non cash
movemant

Adjust for Hems included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision
of senices that are investing and financing aclivities

Met cash lows from Operating Aclivilies

Invasting Activifies

Financing Activifies

Melincrease or (decrease) in cash and cash eguialents

Cash and cash eguivalents al the beginning of the reporting pericd
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

Details of the restatement to the comparative figures are set out in Note 54

Page &3

201112012
EQOQ Mote

(64,322)
84788 48
(25.484) 48
(5.018) 48
13549 50
2238) 51

693

5,043
5736 249



Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes
to the

Core Financial Statements
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Motes to the Core Financial Statements
1 Accounting Policies
i. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority's transactions for the 2011/2012
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2012, The Authority is required to
prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment)
Regulations 2010 required in accordance with proper practices, These practices primarily
compriseé the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
201172012 (the Code), and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2011/2012 supported by
International Financial Reporing Standards (IFRS). The accounting coméention adopted in
the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain
categories of non-current assets and financial instruments caried al amortised cost
mmur;!ing policies have been consistently applied from one year to the next, unless stated
Brwise.

ii. Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Aclivity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are

made or receved. In particular;

= Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Autharity transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership o the purchaser and it s probable that economic benefits
or senvice potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

= Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

= Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap
betwean the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as
invantories on the Balance Shest

= Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
miade.

# |nterest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings |8 accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
rebevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the
contract,

= Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Shest
Where debts may not be settied, the balance of deblors is written down and a charge
miade to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not mare than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in
three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value

In the Cash Flow Staterment, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority's cash management.

iv. tems of a Material Mature

When items of income and expense are matedal, their nature and amount is disclosed
separaiely, either on the face of the Comprehansive Incomea and Expenditure Staterment or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Authority’s financial performance.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Motes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
v. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policles and Estimates and Errors

Pricr period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to comrect
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and fulure years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prier period
adjusiment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions,
other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance,
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as If the new policy had
always applied.

vi. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support charges and trading aceounts are debited with the following amounts to

record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year;

= Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service,

* Revaluation and impairment losses on assefs used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written

= Amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service.

The Authority Is not required to raise council tax lo fund depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However it is required to make an annual contribution
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement {equal to an amount
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in accordance with statutory
guidance). Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore
replaced by the contribution in the Council Fund balance (Minimum Revenue Provision —
"MRP"), by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference betwaean the two

vii. Employee Benefits
Eenefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the yeaar-and.
They include such benefits a5 wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave and
non-monetary benefits for curent employees and are recognised as an expense for sarvices
in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the
cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees
but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial
year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting
year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement
in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefils are charged to Council Fund in the financial
year in which the holiday absence ocours.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

MNotes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as result of a decision by the Authority to terminate
an officers employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's decision to accept
voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to tha Non-Distributed Costs line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterment when the Authority is demonstrably
commitied to the termination of the employment of an officer or a group of officers or making
an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.

When termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the Council Fund balance to be charged with an amount payable by the Authority to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required
to and from the Pensions Reserve lo remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Authority are members of two separate pension schemes:

# The Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers' Pansions on behalf of
the Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF).

* The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Torfaen County Borough
Counecil.

Both schemes provided defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions),
earned as employees working for the Authority.

However, the arrangements for the Teachers' Schame mean thal liabilities for these benefits
cannot be ideniified fo the Authority. The scheme iz therefore accounted for as if it were a
defined contributions scheme — no liability for future payments of benafits is recognised in the
Balance Sheet and the Education Service revenue account is charged with the employer's
contnbutions payable to teachers’ pensions in the year.

The Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

*= The labilties of the Greater Gwent (Torfaen) Pension Scheme aftributable to the
Authority are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method - ie. an asseszsment of the future payments that will b2 made in relation to
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality
rates, emplovee furnover rates, eic, and projections of projected eamings for currant
employasas.

=  The discount rate to be applied to scheme liabilities is specified by CIPFA in the Code. In
2011/2012 this was calculated as a weighted average of “spot yields® on the iBoxx
Stering AA Rated Corporate Bond rate, which was 4.9% (5.5% in 2010/2011).

# The assels of the Torfaen pension fund attributable to the Authorily are included in the
Balance Sheet at their fair value:

- Quoted securities — current bid price

- Unguoted securties — professional estimate
- LUnitized securities = current bid price

- Property — market value.

= The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

- Current service cost = the increase in liabilites as result of years of serace aarmed
this year — allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the
revenue accounts of senvices for which the empioyvees worked
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

— Past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions where
effects relate to years of service eamed in earlier years — debited to the Net Cost of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non
Distributed Costs

- Interest cost — the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year
as they move one year closer to being paid — debited to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Staternent
Expected return on assets — the annual investment return on the fund assets
aftributable to the Authority, based on an average of the expected long-term retum -
credited to Surplus / Deficit on Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

- Gainsflesses on settlements and cuntallments — the result of actions to relleve the
Authority of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of
benafits of employees — debited to the Cost of Services in the Income and
Expenditure Account as part of Mon Distributed Costs

— Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumplions made at the last acluarial valuation ar
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions - credited or debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Contributions paid to the Torfasn Pension Fund — cash pak as employer's
contributions to the pension fund in setlement of liabilites: not accounted for as an
EXpense.

in relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the Council Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the Pension Fund in the year, not the
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in
Reserves Stalement this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits
for the cash paid to the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the
year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the
beneficial impact to the Council Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on
the basis of cash flows rather than as benefis are eamed by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Authority alse has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to
any member of staff (including teachers) are accrued in the year of the decision to make the
award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government
Pensicn Scheme,

viii. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are thosa events, both favourable and unfavourable, that

occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts

is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

= Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period —
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

= Those thal are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a malerial effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the
events and their estimated financial effect.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
ix. Financial Instruments

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabiliies are initially measured at fair value and carried in the Balance Sheet at their
amortizsed cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Incorme and Expenditura
ling in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterment for interest payable are basad
on the carrying amount of the lability muliplied by the effective interest rate (EIR) for the
instrument. For most of the borrowings thal the Authority has, this maans that the amount
included in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayvable (plus accrued interest,
split between that element which is short term, due within one year and that which is long
term, due over one year).

Gains and lozses on the repurchase or early setterment of borrowings are credited and
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprebensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase ! setilemeant. Howewver, whera
repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the
madification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is deducted from or
added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write down to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an
adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Where premia and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement, the impact on the Council Fund balance is spread over future years
aver aither;

s the longer of the term of the new loan or repaid loan for premia; and
= the lesser of 10 years or term of repaid loan for discounts.

The meconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive ncome and Expenditune
Statement to the net charge against the Council Fund Balance is effected by a transfer o/
from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets
Financial Assets are classified into two categories:

¢ Loans and Receivables — assets that have fised or determinable payments but are not
guoted in an active market, and

#  Available-for-Sale Assels — assets that have a quoted markel price and ! or do nol have
fixed or determinable payments.

Loans and Receivables - Loans and recelvables are initially measured at fair value and
carried at their amortized cosl.  Annual credits to tha Financing and Investment Incomea and
Expanditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterment for intersst
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective interast
rate for the instrument. This results in the amounts included in the Balance Sheet being the
outstanding principal receivable, and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement will be the amount receivable for the year under the agreement.

Where assetz are identified az impaired because of a likelinood arising from a past event that
payments due under the confract will not be made, the asset is written down and & charge
made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited [ debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Motes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likefihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the confract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair
value falls below cost, the assel is written down and a charge is made to the Financing and
Invesiment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure
Statement. If the asset has fixed or determinable payment, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future
cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Otherwise the impairment
loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the instrument
inet of any principal repayment and amortisation),

Any gains or losses that anse on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited fo the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in
the Available for sale Reserve. Where Fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrurnent
is carried at cost (less any impairment losses)

*. Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Authority has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currancy are outstanding at the year-end,
they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are
recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

xi. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable
assurance that

= The Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

= The grants and confributions will be received.

Amounls recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached lo the grant or confribution are satisfied.
Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed
by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefils or service potential must be returned
io the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as credilors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
confribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
confributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Incomea and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the Councll Fund balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied Reserve. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are fransferred
to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
Kii. Intangible Azssels

Expenditure on non-monetary asseis that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the Authority as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will fiow from the intangible asset
fo the Authority.

Internally generated assels are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being
available) and the Authority will be able to generate future ecomomic benefits or deliver
service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can
be measured reliably as affributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the
development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or
primarily intended to promote or advertise the Authority's goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Authority can be determined by refarence to an active market
In praclice, no intangible asset held by the Authority meets this criterion, and they are
therefore carmed at cost less amerdisation. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is
amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the agset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line{s)
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or abandonment of an intangible assel is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprahensive Income and Expenditure Statement,

Where expenditlure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Staterment and posted ta the
Capital Adjusiment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital
Raceaipts Reserve,

xiii. Inventories

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO (first in first out) costing formula.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Motes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
xiv. Jointly Controlled Operations and Jolntly Controlled Assets

Jointly controlled operations are activities undertaken by the Autharity in conjunction with
other ventures that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than
the establishment of a separate entity. The Authority recognises on its Balance Sheet the
assels that it controlzs and the liabilites that it incurs and debits and credits the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the expenditure it incurs and the
share of income it earns from the activity of the operation.

Jointly eontrolled assets are items of property plant and equipment that are jointly controlled
by the Authority and other venturers with the assets being used o obtain benefits for the
venturers. The joint venture does not involve the establishment of a separate entity. The
Authority accounts for only its share of the jointly controlled assets, the Mabilities and
expenses that it incurs on its own behalf or jointly with others in respect of its interest in the
joint venture and income that it earns from the venture.

xv. Leazes

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially al
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property. plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lesses. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiiment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Authority as Lessee

Finance Leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by
a liability for the cbligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are added to
the carrying amount of the assel. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing
down the lease lability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned betweean:

= acharge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to
wrile down the lease liability, and

= afinance charge {debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life (where ownership of the
asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the lease period).
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The Authority is not reguired to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assefs. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therafore substituted
by a revenue confribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference betwean the two.

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Siatement as an expense to the services benefitling from use of the leasad
property, plant or eguipment.- Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at
the commencement of the lease).

The Authority as Lessor

Operating Leases

Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
eguipment, the asset is retained in the Balanca Sheat. Rental income is credited to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehansive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits
are made on a straight-line basiz over the life of the leasa, aven if this does not match the
pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease), Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount
of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income.

Finance Leases

The Authority has not granted any finance leases of property, plant and equipment to other
parties.

xvi. Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to thosa that benefit from the

supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting

Code of Practice 2011/2012 (SeRCOP). The total absorption costing principle is used — the

full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in proportion to the

benefits received, with the exception of:

» Corporate and Democratic Core - costs relating to the Authority’'s status as a
multifunctional, democratic organisation.

# Non Distributed Costs - the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees refiring
early and impairment losses chargeable on Assels Held for Sale.

These two cost categories are defined in 5eRCOFP and accounted for as separate headings in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staternent, as part of Netl Expenditure on
Continuing Services,
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xvii. Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits
or service polential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset's potential
to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement

Assels are initially measured at cost, comprising:

s the purchase price;

= any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction are not capitalised.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to & variation in the cash
flows of the Authority). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the
cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset glven up by the Authority.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
Reversed out of the Council Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement

Assels are then carmied in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

= infrastructure, community assets and assels under construction — depreciated historical
cost

= council dwellings — fair value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social
housing (EUV-SH)

= all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in
its existing use (existing use value — ELIV),

Adopled roads built by developers have been denated to the Authority. Donated assets are
required to be recognised at fair value. Infrastructure assets are reqguired to be measured at
historical cost initially and subsequently at depreciated historical cost rather than fair value,
As adopted roads are infrastructure assets, the Authority has treated these assets as having
a historical cost of Enil and consequently are included in the accounts at £nil.

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
assel, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.

Where non-property assets have shon useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair valua.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regulariy to ensure
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but
as a minimum every five years.
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Increases in valuations are matched by credils to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. (Exceptionally, gains might be cradited o

the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of
a loss previously charged to a senvice.)

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:

= where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Resarve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up o the amount of
the accumulated gains)

» where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
cammying amount of the asset is wrilten down against the relevant service ling(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account

Impairment

Assels are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is astimated and, where this is less than the
camrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall

Where impairment losses are idenfified, they are accounted for by:

» where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance {up fo the amount of
the accumulated gains)

« where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is wrilfen down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Compreheansive Income and Expenditure Statement

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
semvice line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not

been recognised.
Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An excaption s made for assets
without & deferminable finite useful life {i.e. freehold land and certain community assets) and
assels that are not yet available for use {i.e. assets under construction).

Deprecation is calculated on a straight line basis as follows:
» council dwellings - 15 to 40 years

= pther land and buildings = 15 to 40 years

= vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment = up to 7 years
* infrastructure assets — 10 to 40 years

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount egqual fo the difference between
cumrent value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve io the Capital Adjusiment Account.
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Depreciation charges are made to the service revenus accounts and DSO/DLO and ather
trading accounts and have been bazed on the amount at which an asset iz included in the
balance sheet, whether net current replacement cost or histoncal cost,

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. Assets are classed as “"Held for Sale” where the sale Is expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year of the date of classification and action
required to complete the plan indicate that significant changes te the plan or withdrawal of the
plan are unlikely. The asseat is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at
the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent
decrease lo fair value less costs fo sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Gains in fair value are
recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit
on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the crileria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assels and valued at the lower of thelr carrying amount
before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale,
and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. Assels that are to be
abandoned or scrapped are nol reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A
proportion of receipls relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, buildings and
developed land, net of statutory deductions and allowances) is set aside for the redemption of
debt. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and
can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Authority's
underlying need to borrow (the capital financing reguirement). Receipts are appropriated to
the Reserve from the Council Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-
current assets s fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the Council Fund Balance
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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xviii. Heritage Assets

The Authority's Heritage Assets consist of Civic Regalia and Land and Buildings, namely
Babell Chapel, Ellioft Colliery Winding House, Handball Court Melson and Llancaiach Fawr
Living History Museum. Such assets are held and classed as Heritage Assets as they
increase the knowledge, understanding and appreciation of the Authority's history and local
area. Further information can be found in Note 23,

Heritage Assels are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains
and |osses) in accordance with the Authority's accounting policies on property plant and
equipment. No depreciation is charged on these assets as the Authority considers them as
having an infinite lives. The Authority has excluded Heritage Assets it considers immaterial
from the Balance Sheet where their cost is not readily available and the benefit of valuing the
assel is counterweighed by the cost of oblaining the valuation.

xhe. Private Finance Initiatives (PFI)

PFl contracts are agreements fo receive services where the responsibility for making
available the non-current assets needed to provide services passes to the PFI contractor, As
the Authority is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes, and
as ownership of the non-current assets will pass to the Authonity at the end of the contracts
for no additional charges, the Authority carries the non-current assets used in the contracts on
the Balance Sheet as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The recognition of these non-current assets is balanced by the recognition of liabilities for
amounis due to the scheme operators o pay for the assets,

Mon-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the
same way as property, plant and equipment owned by the Authority.

The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are analysed into four elements:

* Fair value of the services received during the year — debited to the relevant service in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

* Finance cost — an interest charge of 6.81% for the road and 10.54% for the schools on
the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to Interest Payable and Similar Charges
in the Comprehensive Income and Expanditure Statement:

*  Principal element - i.e. payment towards lisbility — applied to write down the Balance
Sheet liability towards the PFI operator,

* Lifecycle replacement cosis = recognised as non-current assets on the Balance Sheet

Government grants received for PF| schemes, in excess of the current levels of expenditure
(particularly in the early years of these confracts) are carried forward as earmarked resamnves
to fund future contract expenditure when payments will exceed available revenue support
(see Notes 12 and 47 for the PFI Equalisation Reserves).

xx. Provisions and Reserves, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For
nstance, the Authority may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlemant or the payment of compensation,
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Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service fine in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the authority becomes aware of the
obligation. and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking inte account relevant risks and
unceraintes.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision camied in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settliements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where
it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the
relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the authority
settles the obligation. Further information on Provisions can be found in Note 31.

Rezorves

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies, Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the Council Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service In that year to score against the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provislon of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The reserve is then approprigted back into the Council Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the
expenditure,

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting process for non-current assets, financial
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the
Authority — these reserves are explained in Note 21,

Contingent Assets

A conlingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible
assel whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the authority.

Contingent assets are nol recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefils or service
potential,

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent Hability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not whally within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an
outflow of rescurces will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
refiably

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts — Mote 32,
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¥¥i. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year,
Where the Authority has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by bormowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the
Council Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged so that there iz no impact on the level of council tax.

xXii. Interest Charges

Interest chargeable on debt is accounted for in the year to which it relates, not in the vear it is
pad. The Authority borrows funds in fine with its capital investment and cash flow
raquirements. Funds are borrowed from baoth the Public Works Loan Board and from money
markets. Loans can be fixed or variable interest debt. Decisions on whether to take fixed or
variable interest debt depend upon the current portfalio, market conditions, forecasts and
limits set in the annual Treasury Management Strategy Report.

Bomrowing decisions also have o be considered in terms of thelr overall prudence and
affordability, in accordance with the requirements of CIPFA's “The Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities™, and be contained within limits approved by Council in setting
the Authority’s *Prudential Indicators”, in accordance with the Codea.

xxiii. Debt Redemption

The Authorty's Treasury Management Strategy permits the early repayment of borrowing.
This may bea undertaken if market conditions are favourable and there are no risks o cash
flow. Such transactions may be caried out in order fo reduce interest payable, to adjust the
maturity profile or to restructure the ratio of fixed to variable interest bearing dabt.

xxiv. Related Party Transactions

The Authorty is required fo disclose separately, the value of tranzactions and year-and
balances with its related parbies, unless they are already the subjects of other disclosure
requirements (see note 18 to the Financial Statements). In respect of a local authority its
related pariies include central government. other local authorities, precepting and levying
bodies, other public bodies, its subsidiary companies, Pension Fund, bodies where Members
and Senior Officers hold positions of influence and with whom the Authority has transacted.

wxw. Value Added Tax

VAT payable has been excluded as an expense as it is recoverable from Her Majesty's
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable has been excluded from income.
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¥xvi. Recognition of Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

Assets and revenue arising from non exchange transactions are recognised in accordance
with the reguirements of 1AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance, except where interpreted or adapted to fit the public sector are
detailed in the Code andior IPSAS 23, "Revenue from Non- Exchange Transactions (Taxes
and Transfers).”

Taxation transactions

Assets and revenue ansing from taxation transactions are recognised in the period in which
the taxable event occours, provided that the assets satisfy the definition of an asset and meet
the criteria for recognition as an asset.

MNon-taxation transactions

Assets and revenue arising from transfer transactions are recognised in the period in which
the transfer amangement becomes binding. Services in-kind are not recognised.

Where a transfer is subject to conditions that, if unfulfilled, require the return of the transferred
resources, the authority recognises a liability until the condition is fulfilled.

Basis of Measurement of Major Classes of Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
Taxation revenue is measured at the nominal value of cash, and cash equivalents,

Assels and revenue recognised as a consequence of a transfer are measured at the fair
value of the assets recognised as at the date of recognition:

. Monetary assets are measured at their nominal value unless the time value of money
is material, in which case present value is used, calculated using a discount rate that
refiects the risk inherent in holding the asset; and

" MNon-monetary assets are measured at their fair value, which is determined by
reference to observable market values or by independent appraisal by a member of
the valuation profession. Receivables are recognised when a binding transfer
arrangement is in place but cash or other assets have not been received,

xxvii. Accounting for the costs of the Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme

The Authority is required to participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy
Efficiency Scheme. This scheme i currently in its introductory phase which will last until
March 2014, The Authority is required to purchase and sumender allowances, currently
retrospectively, on the basis of emissions, i.e. carbon dioxide produced as energy is used. As
carbon dioxide is emitted as energy |5 used, a liability and an expense are recognised. The
liahility will be discharged by surrendering allowances. The liability is measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation, normally at the current market
price of the number of allowances required to meet the liability at the reporting date. The cost
to the Authority is recognised and reported in the costs of the Authority's services and is
apportioned to services on the basis of energy consumption.
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Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In applying the accounting pobcies set out in Note 1, the Authority has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts ane:

3.

The Authority had £15m deposited across bwo leelandic Banks, Heritable Bank LT and
Landsbanki Islands hf, with varying maturity dates and interest rates. In October 2008
thesa institutions went into administration. The Authority considered it appropriate to
recognise an impairment of £4 565m in 2008/08 in respect of these deposits. This original
impaiment has been revised o £3.425m in 2011-12. Further information is disclosed in
Mote 10 to the accounts.

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government
However, the Autharity has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide
an indication that the asseis of the Authority might be impaired as a resull of a nead to
close facilities and reduce levels of service provision.

The Authority is deemed to control the services provided under the outsourcing agreement
for two Schools and a Road and also to control the residual value of the assets at the end
of the agreement. The accounting policies for PRI schemeas and similar confracts have
been applied to the amrangements and the Schools (valeed at £33 080m) and Road
(valued at £31.280m) are recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment on the Authorily's
Balance Sheet,

The Authority has £1.127bn recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment on its Balance
Sheet az al 31 March 2012, Mole 22 to the accounis details the revaluations to land,
properly, plant and equipment during the accounting period to ensure that Property, Plant
and Eguipment is included in the accounts at fair value, The Authority undertakes formal
valuations of its Property, Plant and Equipment by way of a five year rolling program and
undertakes sufficient work, in respect of the assets not subject to a formal valuation in any
one year, o ensure the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment as stated in the
Balance Sheet iz not materially different from its fair valua, The valuations are underaken
by the Authority's in-house Corporate Properly Department on an annual basis in lina with
the rolling program. The valuation team undertaking the annual revaluation work are
membars of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

Mon-property assets have not been revalued as the Authority has judged that the carrying
value of these assels is approximate to fair value, given their relatively short useful
economic lives and the relative value of these assals.

Assumptions about the future/other sources of estimation or uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts containg estimated figures that are based on assumptions made

by the Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain, Estimates are made taking
inte account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors.  However,
because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially

different from the assumptions and estimates.
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The items in the Authority's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2012 for which there is a significant
risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial vear are as follows:

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from
Assumpiions

Property, Assets are depreciated over useful lives | If the useful life of assets is reduced,

Plant and that are dependent upon assumptions depreciation increases and the carrying

Equipment | about the level of repairs and amount of the assets falls. As the

! maintenance that will be incurred in Authority's assaets have large vanations
relation to individual assets, The current | in useful lives, it is impossible to
economic climate makes it uncertain estimate the effect on the annual
that the Authority will be able to sustain | depreciation charge for every year that
its current spanding on repairs and useful lives had to be reduced.
maintenanca, bringing into doubt the
useful lives assigned to assets.

Provisions The Autharity has made vanous If the Authority has aver provided for the
provisions, both short term and long potential liabilities the over provision will
term totalling £10.866m - see note 31. be released increasing the available

funds in working balances. If the
Autharity has underprovided for the
potential liabilities the under provision
will be a charge to the Authority's
Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, with a reduction
in working balances.

Pensions Estimation of the net liability to pay The effects on the net pensions liability

Liability pensicns depends on a number of of changes in individual assumptions

complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which
zalares are projected fo increase,
changes in relirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on pension
fund assats. A firm of consulting
actuaries is engaged to provide the
Authornty with expert advice about the
assumplions to be applied,

can be measured. For instance, a 0.1%
increase in the discount rate assumption
would result in a decreass in the
pension lability of £11.937m. However,
the assumptions interact in complex
ways, During 2011/2012, the Authority's
Actuaries advised that the net pensions
l@bility had increased by £53 807m.
This is as a result of estimates being
correcled as a result of experience, and
a decrease in assets of £26.239m.

— Page42




Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
4, Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted

For 2011/2012, the only change in accounting standards that have been issued but not yet
adopted relates to amendments to IFRS ¥ "Financial Instruments: Disclosuras” and is
required o be implemented from 1 April 2012, The amendments are intended o assist usars
of financial statemenis to improve their understanding of fransfer transactions of financial
assets and to evaluate the risks of such assets on the Authority’s financial position.

As such transfers of assels are rare within local authorities, it is unlikely that full adoption of
the standard will have a materfal impact upon the financial pasition of the Authority,

3. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under Regulations

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expendifure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with propar accounting
practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provizions as being available o the
Authority io meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

The following sets out a descriplion of the reserves that the adjustments are made against:

Council Fund Balance

The Council Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Authority are required
to be paid and out of which all liabilities of the autharity are to be met, except to the extent
that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in
which liabilities and payments should impact on the Councill Fund Balanca, which is not
necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The Councll Fund Balance
therefore summarises the resources that the Council is statutorily empowered to spend on its
senvices or on capital investment {or the deficit of resources that the Authority is required o
recover) al the end of the financial year

Housing Revenue Account

The Housing Revenue Account Balance reflacts the statutory obligation to maintain a revenue
account for local authority council housing provision in accordance with Part V1 of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989. It contains the balance of income and expenditure as
defined by the 1588 Act that is available to fund fulure expandifure in connection with the
Authority’s landiord function or (where in deficit) that is required to be recovered from tenants
in future years.

Capital Receipts Reserve

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assels,
wihich are restricied by staiute from being used other than fo fund new capital expenditure or
to be set aside to finance histoncal capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the
resgurces that have yel io be applied for these purposes at the year-end,

Capital Grants Unapplied

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account [(Reserve) holds the grants and contributions recaved
towards capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise
require repaymeant of the monies but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure, Thea
balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be
applied and/or the financial year in which this can lake place,
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Restated 2010/2011

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital
Adjustment Account;

Usable Reserves

Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-

current assets

Amorlisation of intangible assets

Capital grants and contributions applied
Revenue expenditure lunded from capital under
slalute

Amounts of non-curment as sets written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gainfoss on
disposal fo the Comprehensive Income and
Expendibure Stalement

Insertion of iteme not debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital
imesiment

Capital expenditure charged against the Coungl
Fund and HRA balances

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital
Grants Unapplied Account:

Capital granis and contribulions unapplied credited

to the Comprehensive Income and Expendibure
Statement
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Councll Housing Capital  GCapilal | Maovement
Fund Revenuse Receipls Grants in Unusable

Balance Account Resene Unapplied Reserves

E000 £000 E£000 E0o0 E£000

(51,885) (33,327 1] #] B5.212
(345) 0 o 0 345
19,437 400 a §] {£6,837)
(1.842) 0 o o 1,942
4 491 1042 (5919 0 386
9 586 1,009 o 0 {10,595)
3,656 2,284 1] o (5,540
G628 [i] Q0 (B28) ]




Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Restated 201072011

Adpustment primarily invelving the Fnancial
Instruments Adjustment Account:

Uezable Regserves

Council
Fund
Balance
£000

Housing

Revenue

Ancount
£000

Capital
Recaipts

Capital Movement
Grants in Unusable

Reserm  Unapplied Reserves

E£000

EQO0 E£000

Amount by which finance cosis charged 1o the
Comprahbansive Income and Expenditure
Hatement are different from Bnance costs
chargeable in the year in accordance with statulony
requirements

Adjustments primarily imeolving the Pensions
Reserwe:

Reversal of items relaling 1o retirement benefits
debited or credited io the Compreheneive Income
and Expenditure Statem eni

Employer's pensions confributions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in the year
Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated
Absences Accoumt:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged o
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditura
Staterment on an accruals basis is different from
remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance
with statubory requirements

(218)

7879

23,456

{9)

(58)

(334

GE

(13)

L]

0 274

1] (7.045)

0 (24,064)

0 22

Total Adjustments

14,436

(21,589)

(5,919])

(G28) 13,700

Dedlails of the restaterment to the comparative Rgures are set out in Note 54.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

20112012

Motes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Uszable Reserves

Council  Housing

Capital

Fund Revenue Receipls

Balance  Accouni
E000 E00D

Capital
Grants

Resere Unappled

£00:0

EQOD

Movenment
in Unusable
Reserves
EDDD

Adjustments primarily invalving the Capital

Adjustment Account:

Feversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement

Charges for deprediafion and impaiment of non-

cumrent asseis

{B0.350)  (31.482)

Amorisation of intangible assets (362) 0
Capital grants and contributions applied 17 643 T.524
Revenue expendilure funded from capital under

Shatube

(3,520 ]

Amounts of non-current assels written off on
disposal or sale as part of the gainfloss an
disposal i the Camprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement

(2,174) a02

Insartion of items not debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement:

“Statutory provision for the iinancing of capital

irvestment

8,542 ByTE

Capital expenditure charged against the Council

Furd and HRA balances

13,681 567

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital
Grants Unapplied Accouwni:

Capital grants and contribubons unapplied credited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expanditure

Slaterment

1,584 o
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]

o e

=

{1,588)

111,841
362
(25,167)

3,520

3,120

(10.518)

(14,258)
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Motes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

201172012

Adjustment primarily involving the Fnancial
Instruments Adjustment Accoumnt:

Usable Reserves

Council
Fund
Balance
E00D

Housing

Capital

Revenue Receipls

Accouni
E000

Capital Movement
Grants in Unusable

Resernve Unapplied Reserves

E000

£000 E000

Amount by which finance costs charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement are different from finance costs
chargeable in the year in accordance with statulony
reguirameants

Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions
Resarve:

Reversal of items relating 1o retirement benefts
dehited or crédited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

Employer's pensions confributions and direct
payments to pensicners payable in the year

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated
Absences Account:

Armount by which officer remuneration charged io
the Comprehensive Income and Expendibure
Statement on an accruals basis is different fiom
remuneralion chargeabbe in Be year in accordancas
wilh slatulony reguirements

(216)

{24,840)

22,555

22

(57}

(448)

570

{11}

0

o 273

o 25,2806

1] (23,125)

0 {11}

Total Adjustments

{46,429)

{21,457)

[1,848)

{1,588) 71,323
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
B. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the Council Fund and HRA balances in

earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted
back from earmarked reserves to meet Council Fund and HRA expenditure in 2011/2012.

Balance Balance
Balance Transfers Transfers at31  Transfers Transfers  at31
at1 April  from to March from io March
2010 201072011 200072011 2011 201102012 201442012 2012
EQDQ EQDD £000 EQDD E000 E000 EDDD
Council Fund:
Balances held by schools
under a scheme of
delegation (nobe 45) (6.840) 1,229 {1.181) {&.802) 047 (496) (4,251)
Capital Earmarked
Resemnes (nobe 42) {3.817) 1608 (10,B04) (13,015) 5276 (10.844) (18,583)
Direct Sendces Earmarked
Resenes (note 41) {1.511) 1,028 {123) (606) 443 {98) (264)
Senice overfunders pend
Reseras (nofe 43) (4.333) 6 aE2 (7888}  [5559) 4171 @629 [8,017)
Insurance Earmarked
Resernms (nole 44) (2, 785) 1,246 (1427  (2,868) 270 (2,318)  [5014)
Oiher Earmarked Resernvas
{nole 47) {16,736) K57 (1.9200 (17,098) 480 (3779 (20,387)
Total (35,022) 12328  (23,353) [(46,046) 13,697 ([22.164) ([54,513)
Houslng Revenue Account:
HRA Fund Balance {6,062) 2,689  (2,395) (5.76B) 1,433 (245)  (4,680)
7. Other Operating Expenditure
Other operating expenditure is made up as follows:
201072011 201112012
£000 E00D
Community Council Precepls 541 550
Gwent Police Authority Precept 10,507 10,8908
Levies 8,052 BETH
{Gains)losses on the disposal of non-curant assats {5,533) 1273
Total 14,577 21,607
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

MNotes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Levies

Sputh Wales Fire Suthority
Gwent Coroners' Sendce
Glamaorgan Archives' Sendce
Gwent Archives' Sendce

Total Levies

Prece

Commiunity Councils

Aper Valley Community Council
Argoed Community Council
Bargoed Town Council

Bedwas, Trethomas and Machen Community Coundcil
Blackwood Community Couwncll
Caerphilly Town Council

Diarren Valbey Community Coundil
Galligasr Community Council
Llanbradach Community Cowncil
Maesyowmmer Community Counil
Melsan Community Council

Hew Tredegar Community Council

Peryrheol, Trecenydd and Energlyn Com munity Counesl

Rhymney Community Council
Fudry Community Coumncil
ian Community Council

Gwent Police Authority
Total Precepts upon the Authority

B. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Financing and investmeant income and expenditure is made up as follows:

Intarest payable and similar charges

Pensicns interest costs and expected refurn on penslons

assels
Inlerest receivable and similar income

(Gains Mosses on direct labourfsendce organisations rading

(GainsMossas on other rading accounts
Tatal
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201002011 201112012
E000 E£000
8672 8,503
146 153
101 83
143 128
8,062 8,878
201072011 201112012
E000 E00D
30 Al
8 8
60 55
53 56
34 35
i T
12 12
70 T2
28 26
14 14
23 23
17 17
5b a5
35 35
8 10
20 20
541 550
10,507 10,806
11.048 11,456
Restated
201072011 201172012
EQDD E000
13,303 12,554
13,386 T.851
(1,048) (B82)
{1.037) 431
20583 4 555
27.585 25,209




Caerphilly County Borough Council

Motes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

201072011 2011/2012
Raestated Income Expenditure  [Surplus)!
{Surplus)iDeficit Deficit
E00D E00D EQDD £000

Highway Maintenance (B8:38) (7.242) 7,104 (138}
Fublic Cleaning & Refuse Collection 2690 0 0 0
Building Cleaning (185} (3,148) 2,865 (181}
Vehicle Maintenance {5E) (1472 1,063 {119
Grounds Maintenance (46) ] 0 o
Building Serdces (188) (15,321} 16,248 B25
Flaat Management B {4 ,569) 4513 (56)
Total (gains \osses on direct
servicellabour organisations trading {1,037) {31,450) 31,881 431

2010/2011 201172012

Restated Income Expenditure [Surplus)

{Surpluz)/Deficit Deficit
E00D E000 E000 EQDD

Indusirial Estates 3072 {2,212) 66873 4 GE1
Housing Agency (B8] (5598) 452 {108)
Total (gainslosses on other trading
accounts 2983 {2,810} 7,368 4 555

Details of the restatement to the comparative figures are set out in Note 54

8. Taxation and non-specific grant income

20102011 2011/2012
E£000 E000
Council ax income {54,146) 64,770}
Mon domestic rates 47 584) (40,045)
Mon-ringfenced govemment granis (216,304) (220,561}
Capital grants and contributions {27 A65) (26,7 56)
Total (355,589) {352,133}

Council Tax Income

Council tax derves from charges raised according to the value of residential properties, which
from 1st April 2005, have been classified into nine valuation bands, using 1 April 2003 values
for this specific purpese. Charges are calculated by taking the amount of income required by
the Authority, Gwent Police Authority and Community Couneils for the forthcoming year and
dividing this amount by the council tax base. The councll tax base is the total number of
properties in each band adjusted by a proportion to convert the number to a band D
equivalent. The basic amount for & band D property, £897.84 in 2011/2012 (EB97.84 in
2010/2011) is multiplied by the proportion specified for the particular band, adjusted for
discount, to give the individual amount due. The total amount due for 2011/2012 was
£64. 986m (£64.343m in 2010/2011).
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

MNotes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
Councll tax bills were based on the following multipliers for bands A fo I

BAND A B c o E F G H |
Multiplier Gia T4 it 1 11/8 138 158 18/ 2119
Chargeable
Charellings BA35 | 18,088 | 14,195 | 8,124 | 6615 | 2044 | 1,003 173 106
Analysiz of the net proceeds from council fax: 2010/2011 2041/2012
EDDOD E000
Council tax collectable
Caerphilly County Borough Council (53.205) (53,530)
Gwent Police Authorily - e nobe 5 (10.507) (10,908)
Community Councils - see nole 5 {541) (550)
Total amount dus (B4 343) (64, 98E)
Less: Bad Debt Prowvsion 187 216
Met proceeds from council tax (84,145) {64,770

Mational Mon Domestic Rates (NNDR) Income

NMDR is organised on a national basis. The Welsh Government specifies an amount for the
rate (42.8p in 2011/2012, 40.9p in 2010/2011) and subject to the effects of transitory
arrangements, local businesses pay rates calculated by multiplying their rateable value by
that amount, The Authority is responsible for collecting rates due from ratepayers in its area
but pays the proceeds into the NNDR pool administered by the Welsh Government

The Welsh Government redistributes the sums payable to local authorities on the basis of a

fixed amount per head of population. The Authority's redistribution for 2011/2012 was
£40,.045m in total (£47.584m in 2070:2011).

The anticipated NNDR proceeds of £31.5m for 20112012 (£259.5m in 2010/2011) was based
an an average rateable value of EB8,35m for the year (EBB.1m for 2010201 1)

Analysis of the net proceeds from Non-Domestic Rates: 204002014 20112012
E000 EDOD
Anticipated proceeds [29.521] {31,483)
Less: [DNscrebionary relief 226 310
Cost of collection 316 345
Bad and doubiul debis 546 478
Contribution o NNDR Pool (2B.433) (30, 350)
Redistributed amount due from NMDR Pool (47T 584) (40 048]
Amount received from NNDR Pool {47.584) (40.046)
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Grant Income

The Authorily credited the following grants, confributions and donations to the Comprehensive
Income and Expendilure Statement in 2011/2012;

20102014 201112012
EQDD E000
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income
Rewsnue Suppaort Grant (208, 600) (210,977)
Oulcome Agreement Grant (1.881) (1,873)
Frivate Finance Initiative Grant (7,813 (¥, 711
Tatal [216,394) {220,561)

The Authority received & number of grants and confributions that have yet o be recognised as income

a5 they have conditions aftached 1o them thal could require that the monies be refurned 1o the giver
The balances at the year-end are as follows:

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 31 March 2011 31 March 20412
E000 £000

Opening balance [TTa) (1,417}

Flanning granis (175} 28

Highways and Transporiation granis (289) 214

Social Sendces (179) 0

{1417} (1,174}
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

10. Financial Instruments

Cateqgories of Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instruments are carmied in the Balance Sheet:

lnvestments

Loans and receivables
Total investments
Dehbiors

Loans and receiables
Total debtors
Borrowings

Financial iabiliies at amorfised
cost

Total borrow ings

Oiher long term Fabilities

PFl and finance lease liabilities
Deferred Liabilities

Total other long term labilities

Credliors

Financial iabilifies carried at
contract amouni

Tolal creditors

Lang Term Current
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2011 2012 2011 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
3,308 2,168 68 827 62 455
3,398 2,168 69,827 62,455
548 408 31,316 41,366
548 408 31,316 41,3686
(193,377) (1965413) (2.126) {480)
(183,377) (195413) {2,126) (480)
(47 842)  (44,303) (2 065) (1.974)
{587) {490) 1] ]
(48,529)  (44,883) {2,085) {1,874)
1] ] (B2,082) (5B,642)
0 1] (62,092)  (58,642)
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MNotes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Income, Expenses, Gains and Losses
Fimancial Finangial
31 March 2011 Liabilities Assaets
Liakifitios
measured at
amoriised Loans and
cost receivables Total
£000 £000 EDOD
Intarest expansze 13,303 0 13,303
Total expéense in Surplus or Deflcit on
the Provizion of Services 13,303 0 13,303
Interest income o (584) (5B4)
Interest income accrued on im palred
financial aseets L] (4682) (4620
Total income in Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services 0 {1,048) i1,046)
Het {gain)loss for the year 13,303 (1,048) 12,257
Financial Financial
31 March 2012 Liabilithes Assais
Liabilities
measured at
amortised Loans and
cost recelvables Total
£000 EDDD E000
Inferest expense 12,854 0 12 854
Total expense in Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services 12,854 0 12,954
Interestincome 0 (GE2] (BR2)
Total income in Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Services 0 (BB2) (682)
Het (gainiloss for the year 12,954 (582) 12,272

Fair Values of Assets and Liabillties

Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term
debtors and creditlors are camried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. The fair value of a
financial instrument is determined by calculating the Net Present Value (NPV) of fulure cash
flows, which provides an estimate of the value of paymentsireceipts in the future in today's
terms. For "other’ loans the discount rate used in the NPV calculation is equal to the current
rate in relation to the same instrument from a comparable lender, and is the rate applicable in
the market on the date of valuation (31 March) for an instrument with the same duration.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements {continued)

In previous years the Council showed the Fair Value for Public Works Loan Board (PWLE)
debt bazed on the PWLE New Loan rates of interest and provided by the Council's Treasury
Management Advisors. Although the PWLE provided a Fair Value figure itself, this was basad
on the PWLE Premature Repayment rates of interest and was provided az a total figura which
could not be confirmed.

However, for 20112012, the PWLB have supplied the information on a loan-by-loan basis
which can now be confirmed. The Code of Practice does not prescribe which method is o be
applied, bt since the Premature Repayment rates of imterest must be wsed in any
rescheduling exercise or, in the case of Housing stock transfers where PWLE debt relating to
the HRA is repaid prematurely, Fair Value based on these rates of interest would appear to
be the most appropriate. Therefore, for 20112012 the Fair Value for PWLE loan debt has
been arfived at using the PWLE's own meathod of calculation,

The aszumplions used to determine the fair values of assets and llabilities ane as follows:

& The fair values for financial liabilities (PWLE debt and market debt) have been determined
by referance fo the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) redemption rules and prevailing
FWLE redemplion rates as at each Balance Sheet date, and include accrued interest,
The fair values for non-PWLE debt have also been calculated using the same procedures
and interest rates and this provides a suitable approximation for fair value for these
instruments.

« Estimated ranges of discount rates for liabilities at 31 March 2012 were of 1.34% to
4.40% for loans from the PWLE and the Market, and applied with reference to the number
of years ocutstanding to the maturity date. For assets, the camrying amount is assumed to
be the approximate to fair value, and the confractual interest rate is taken to be the
dizcount rate, which ranged bebween 0.B60% and 0.25%. Accrued interest has been
included to the nominal amount in order to determine the fair value.

# Mo early repayment or impairment iz recognized (other than deposits held with lcelandic
Banks).

# The fair value of rade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.
At 31 March 2012 only deposits held with the failed lcelandic Banks were classified as long-

term investments in accordance with the latest repayment schadule. The carrying amaount s
assumed o be the approximate value for fair value,
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Motes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

The fair values calculated are as follows:

31 March 2011 31 March 2012
Carrying Carrying
Amount  Fair Value Amounl  Fair Value
EODD E£000 E000 E00D

Financial liabilitizs (250,860} (296,188} (256,509 (284 565)
Long lerm creditors (48,528)  (48,529) (44.883)  [44.883)

(J08,169) (344,717) (301,392) (329.548)
Analysis of Liabilities 31 March 31 March
by maturity 2011 2012

E£000 E000

Maluring within 1 year (7O.BER) (64 592)
Maturing in 1 - 2 years {3.087) (15.442)
Maluring in 2 - 5 years (18,940} (21,717}
Maturing in 5 - 10 years (19.643) {20.139)
Maluring in 10 - 15 years (18,492) {22 683)
Maturing in 15 - 20 years {33.214) {21,143)
Maturing in 20 - 25 years (10,396) (2 484)
Maturing in 25 - 30 years {14, 565) {14 965)
haturing in 30 - 35 years (23,945) (23,844)
Maturing in 35 - 40 years (9,977 (9,977)
haluring in 40 - 45 years (50,1896) (50,196)
Maturing in 45 - 50 years (14,000) (14,000)
Maturing in over 50 years (20 .457) (20,000)

{208,1839) (301,392}

e — ™

Short-term deblors and creditors are camied at cost as this is a fair approximation of their
value. The fair value of the financial liabilities is higher than the carrying amount because the
Authority's portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate
payable iz higher than the prevailing rates at the Balance Sheet date. This shows a notional
future loss (based on economic conditions at 31 March 2012) arising from a commitment to

pay interest to lenders above current market rates.

31 March 2011 31 March 2012
Carrying Carrying
amount  Fair value amount  Fair value
EQDD E000 EDOD i fili]
Loans and receivables 104 541 104,541 111,725 111, 7E2
Long term deblors S48 548 409 409
105,085 105,089 112,134 112,181

As at 31 March 2012, long term investments consisted of outstanding Icelandic deposits upon
which the Authorty will be receiving dividends, Assets included deposits valued at nominal
amounts plus accrued interest The Authority had no Asset and Liabilities at Fair Value

fhrough Profit and Loss at 31 March 2012,
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Mature and Extent of Risks arising from Financial Instruments

The Authority’s activities exposa it o a varaty of financial nisks:

s Credit risk - the possibility that other parties might faill to pay amounts due to the
Authority.

#  Ligquidity risk — the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available o meet its
commitments to make payments.

= Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of
changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements,

The Authority's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available
to fund services. Risk management is carried out by a central treasury team, under policies
approved by Council in the annual treasury managemeant strategy, and compliance with the
CIFFA Prudential Code of Praclice, the CIPFA Treasury Management Coda of Practice, and
Investment Guidance that is issued under the Local Government Act 2003. The Authority
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash (short-
term and long-term). These are required to be reported and approved at or before the
Authority’s annual Council Tax setting budget or bafore the start of the year to which they
relate. These items are reported with the Annual Treasury Management Strategy and
Investment Sirategy that outiines the detailed approach to managing risk in relation to the
Autharity’s financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also reported annually to
Mambers,

The 201112 Annual Treasury Management Strategy and Investment Strategy (including
Prudential Indicators) were approved by Council on 24 February 2011 and are available on
the Authority website.

Credit risk

Credit risk arizez from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to the Authority's customers. Deposits are not made with banks and financial
institutions unless they meet the minimum credit ratings as prescribed in the Annual Strategy.

Due to the confinued uncertainty following the collapse of the financial markets in October
2008, and the subsequent potential loss of sums invested in lcelandic banks (see below e
Impairment of Investments) the strategy employed for 2011/2012 followed that of 2010/2011,
which restricted the placing of funds to the Debt Management Account Facility (DMADF) with
the Debt Management Office (DMO) (the UK Government) and other local authorities.  Small
sums weare also held in two bank call accounts with immediate access.

Customers are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal ratings in
accordance with parametars sat by the Authority

Details of the Investment Strategy can be found on the Council's website, The key areas of
the Investment Strategy are that the minimum criteria for investment counterparties includa:

s Credit ratings of Short Term of F1, Long Term AA (Fitch or equivalent rating), and
Soverign rating of A8s

Debt Management Office (Debt Management Account Deposit Facility) (DMADF)

Debt Management Office — Treasury Bills

Local Authorities

AAR rated Money Market Funds

& & & ¥
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The Authority’s maximurm exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in financial
institutions will vary according to credit ratings assigned by the three main credit rating
agencies and cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make
interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution.

The following analysis summarises the Authority's potential maximum exposure to credit risk
on financial assets, based on experience of default and un-collectability over the last five
financial years, adjusted to reflect current market conditions.

3 March
2011 3 March 2012
Historic
pEpErience
Estimated Amount adjusted for  Estimated
maxim um al 31 Historical market  maximum
|xposure to March gxperience conditions at exposure to
default 2012 of default 31 March 2012 default
Counterparties rated: £000 E000 % ) E£000
A B c (A x C)
B8 a 58881 0.00% 0.00% a
Aa, 0 5,000 0.03% 0.03% 2
A, 4] 738 0.08% 0.06% 1
Mon-invesiment grade 4042 4 632 nfa nfa 3425
EICIONNRS - BNELEN g 24 3586 072% 0.72% 27
not impaired
Total 4,066 74,045 3485

The non-investment grade counterparty in the above table iz a reference to the failed
lcelandic banks, which have undergone accounting treatment in accordance with the latest
information available to the Authority as at 31 March 2012, and a further separate disclosure
note has been made further on in the Statement of Accounts.

The Authority’s deposits are placed either directly with the counterparty or indirectly with the
counterparty via London money market brokers. At 31 March 2012, with the exception of the
deposit held with lcelandic banks, the Authority's long-term and shor-term investments, and
cash and cash equivalents were deposited with UK counterparbes in accordance with the
approved treasury management strategy.

No credit limits were exceeded during the year and the Authority does not expect any losses
from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits.

The Authority does not generally allow credit for customers and the amount past due (but not
Impaired) as at the year-end can be analysed by age as follows:

31 March 31 March

2011 2012

E£000 E000
Three o six manths 478 Q6
Sixmaonihg 1o one yaar 726 752
More than one year 1613 1,866
2,717 3666
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Liquidity risk

Ag the Authority has ready access 1o borrowings from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB),
there is no significant rizk that it will be unable to raize finance o meet its commitments wnder
financial instruments. Instead, the risk is that the Authority will be bound to replenish a
significant proporion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The strateqgy is
to ensure the malurity profile is as smooth as possible through a combination of careful
planning of new loans taken out and (where economically advantageous to do so) making
aarly repayments,

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Authonty is exposed to significant risk In lerms of s exposure o inferest rale movaments
on its borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on
the Authority.

For illustration, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:

« [For borrowings at varable rates the interest expense charged fo the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Servicaes will riss;
For borrowings at fixed rates the fair value of the borrowings will fall;
For investments at vanable rates the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on
the Provision of Servicas will rise,

»  [For investments al fixed rates the fair value of the assets will fall.

Borrowings are not camied at fair value (but are carried on the Balance Sheet at amortised
cost) so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate bomowings would not impact on the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services

However, changes in interest payvable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and
investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the
Council Fund Balance pound for pound. Movements in fair value of available-for-sale
investments will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income and Expendifurs

The Authority has a number of strategies for managing mterest rate risk. Its policy i to aim o
keep a maximum of 50% of its borrowings in variable rate loans when interast rate levels are
favourable. However, as at 31 March 2012, the Authority had no variable rate koans or
investiments. During periods of falling interest rates and where economic circumstances
make it favourable, fived rate loans will be repaid early to limit exposure to losses, The risk of
loss is miligated by the fact that a proportion of government grant payable on financing costs
will normally move with prevailing interest rates for the Authonty's cost of borrowing and
provide compensalion for a proporiion of any higher costs
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The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure
that feeds into the setting of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget
quarterly during the year. This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The
analysis will also advise whether new borrowing taken out should be fixed or variable. The
decision to place deposits only with the DMADF and other local authorities resulted in low
returns of interest receivable for 2011/2012. According to the assessment strategy, if interest
rates had been 1% higher at 31 March 2012, with all other variables held constant, the
financial effect would be:

E000
Increase in interest payable on vanable rate bormowings 0
Increase in intarest receivable on variable rate imestments 0
Increase in govemment grant receivable for financing costs 0
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Frovsion of Sendoes 0
Share of overall im pact debited to the HRA 0
Increase in fair value of fied rate invesiment as sels 36
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1
Decrease in fair walue of fied rate borrowings liabilities (no impact
on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Sendces or Other
Comprehensive income and Expenditure) 28,042

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would result in a similar variance, but with the
movements reversed. The calculation is based on the PWLB discount rate used in the original
fair value calculation, plus or minus 1%. There is a nil effect on variable rate investments and
borrowings as the Authority had no such variable rate instruments during the year.

Foreign exchange risk

During 2011/2012 the Autherity received monies denominated in foreign currencies relating to
the settlement of deposits held with Landsbanki. Payments were received in a basket of
currencies including Eurcs, US Dellar and lcelandic Krona (I1SK). The Authority was able to
minimise foreign exchange rate risk relating the Euros and the US Dollar by way of immediate
conversion at the point of receiving the foreign currencies, however some loss was realised
due to exchange rate movement between April 2009 (the valuation date) and February 2012
(date of the Authority receiving the forelgn currencies). The Authority also has foreign
exchange exposure resulting from an element of the setilement received from Landsbanki
that is being held in ISK in an Escrow account. The Authority is unable to exchange this
holding into Sterling due to the current foreign exchange restrictions placed on the trading of
ISK by lcelandic Authorities, who have not disclosed a time frame to lift the currency
sanctions. The monies held in the Escrow account and future foreign exchange dividends
released by Landsbanki are subject to further exchange rate risk. The valuation of the ISK at
31 March 2012 is:

Dpening Balance on GainNloss) on Escrow account foreign Escrow account valuation
Ezcrow account exchange valuation as at 31 March 2012 as at 31 March 2012
EDOD E00D E000
a8 3 36
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Impairment of Investmenis

Early in October 2008, the Icelandic banks Landsbanki, Kaupthing and Glitnir collapsad and
the UK subsidiaries of the banks, Heritable and Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander went into
administration. The Authority had £15m deposited across two of these institutions, Heritable
Bank LT and Landsbanki Islands hf, with varying maturity dates and interest rates.

All monies within these institutions are currently subject to the respective administration and
receivership processes. The amounts and timing of payments to depositors such as the
Authority will be determined by the adminisirators |/ recaivears,

The current situation with regards to recovery of the sums deposited varies between each
institution. The Authority considered it appropriate to recognise an impairment of £4 565m in
the 20082008 accounts, As at 31 March 2011, the impairment was valued af £4.042m. The
Authority has continued to receive dividend payments from Heritable and progress has been
made with respect to monies cutstanding with Landsbanki. In December 2011, the lcelandic
Supreme Court's decision to grant UK local authorities priority creditor status resulted in the
Winding Up Board making a first distribution to priority creditors in a basket of currencies
{Stering, Euras, US Dollar and Icelandic Kroner) in February 2012,

Ag a result, the Authority considers it prudent that an adjustment to the irmpairment brought
forward can be made in respect of both banks. Therefore, as at 31 March 2012, the
impairment was recognised at £3.425m, a change of £617k from 201072011.

Heritable Bank

Heritable bank is a UK registered bank under Scottish law. The company was placed in
administration on 7 October 2008. The latest creditor progress report issued by the
administrators Emst and Young, dated February 2012 failed o provide a revised astimate of
recovery rates. Therefore in accordance with the latest CIPFA LAAP bulletin recoverable
amounts have been based on a total recovery of 88%. Four dividend payments wera made in
2011/2012 equating to 17 .81p in the £ {£1.798m). It is anticipated that a final sale of assets
will fake place after the books have been run down o April 2013, but that dividends will be
made on & more frequent basis than originally anticipated. The Authonty has already recanved
the following dividends:

« July 2009 16.13% = January 2011 4.72%
s« December 2009 12 66%: s April 2011 5.25%
+« March 2010 6.19% s July 2011 4.05%
e July 2010 6.27% « Ochober 2011 4.50%
« Cctober 2010 4. 14% s January 2012 4. 50%

Future dividends are anticipated to be received as follows:

= April 2012 3.79% e January 2013 3.50%
« July 2012 3.50% = April 2013 5.81%
« October 2012 3.50%

The Authority has received its April 2012 dividend in accordance with the above profile.
Recoveries are expressed as a percentage, representing monies cutstanding as at 31 March
2012 of the Authority's claim in the administration, which includes interest accrued wp to 6
Oclober 2008. The foregoing percentages are subject to change as the administration
progresses.
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Landsbanki

Landsbanki Islands hf is an lcelandic entity. Following steps taken by the |celandic
Government in early October 2008 its domestic assets and liabilities were transferred to &
new bank (New Landsbanki) with the management of the affairs of Old Landsbanki being
placed in the hands of a resolution committee. Old Landsbanki's affalrs are being
administered under lcelandic law. The lcelandic District Courfs decision o award local
authorities priority creditor status in 2011 was later challenged by other creditors in the
lcelandic Supreme Court. In December 2011, the Supreme Court supported the District
Court's decision and the first dividend payment was distributed in February 2012, albeit in a
basket of currencies (Sterling, US Dollar, Euros and [celandic Kroner).

The lcelandic Kroner (£38,000 Stering equivalent) has been placed in an escrow account in
Iceland and is earning interest of 3,35%. This element of the distribution has been retained in
lceland due to currency controls imposed by lcelandic Authorities and as a result is subject to
exchange rate risk, over which the Authority has no control.

Freviously the Authority had reporled a recovery rate of 83%, however, the lalest guidance
confirms a recovery rate of 100%. Therefore the revised recovery rates have been reflected in
the accounting treatment for 2011/2012 and the estimated future payouts are as follows:

» Received as at 31.03.12 305 s  December 2015 7%
& May 2012 12% «  December 2016 T%
& December 2012 T + Decamber 2017 7%
= December 2013 % s December 2018 7%
o Decamber 2014 7% o  December 2019 S%

The Authority has received its May 2012 dividend in accordance with the above profile.
Recovery is subject to the following uncertainties and risks:
« The impact of exchange rate fluctuations on the value of assets recovered by the

resolution commitlee and on the seftlement of the Authority’s claim, which may be
dencminated wholly or partly in currencies other than Sterling,
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Recoveries are expressed as a percentage of the Authority's claim in the administration,
which it is expecied may validly include inferest accruad up to 22 April 2009 {or maturity date

if earlier)
Motlonal Hotional
Recover- Recover-
able impalr- atde
Impair- Amount | mentas Amount
|ment as at as at 31 at31 | Change | asat 31
itz Maturity | Amount | 31 March | March March |inlmpair{ March
Bank Invested Date Invested 2044 2011 2012 ment 2012
E00D E000 E000 £000 E00D E000
Heritable Bank LT 11072008 | 104 Q2008 3,000 il 2418 TOG (5] 2423
Haritable Bank LT 14/07/2008 | 13/10/2008 | 1,500 355 1,208 353 2) 1210
Heritable Bank LT | 21/0B/2008 | 16/11/2008 | 1,500| 351 1,203 348 (2) 1,205
Herllable Bank LT 2E082008 | 244 12008 1,000 234 B0 233 {1} Bo2
Heritable Bank LT | 02/00/2008 | 011 2/2008 | 2,000] 467 1,600 465 (2} 1,602
Heritable Bank LT 02082008 | DBA 212008 1.EH:IIJ| 232 &00 232 i &0
Landsbanki lslands | 15/07/2008 | 13/10/2008 1.Dﬂﬂ| 343 Ga4a 221 {122} &1
Landsbanki lslands | 200082008 | 18041 12008 3,000] 1014 2093 B51 {363} 2456
Landsbanki lslands | 150582008 | 124122008 1.|]l[|ﬂ| 335 BET 215 {124) 817
Totals| 15,000] 4,042 11519 3425 (617)] 12136
HAad:
Interest due to daie of collapse 278
Original amount cutstanding
Addiional nofional interest assumed 1o 31
March 2009 283
Addibional nolional interest to end of recovery
period 2122
Loss of capital and accrued inlerest;
Capital 1,015
Interest 5
Impairmemnt IIIHIEEI

The notional recoverable amounts of the investments included in the Balance Sheet have
been calculated using the present value of the expected repayments, discounted using the
investment's original interest rate. The expected and actual repayments have been estimated
as follows, based on statements made by the administrators:
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Heritable |Landsbanki

Year End Bank LT Elands Total

E000 £000 E000

31 March 2010 3532 o] 3532
31 March 2011 1527 o] 1527
31 March 2012 1,789 1478] 3277
31 March 2013 1,443 are| 2419
31 March 2014 5BY 355 942
31 March 2015 i) 355 355
31 March 2016 o 355 355
31 March 2017 0 355 355
31 March 2018 1] 355 355
31 March 2019 1) 355 355
31 March 2020 0 488 4885
Totals 8,888 5072] 13,960

Interest from the investments crediled to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statermnent is as follows:

Bank Credited | Received |Credited] Received
201011 | 2010M1 |2011M2] 201102

£ £ £ £
Heritable Bank LT 255,188 14,685| 161,878] 14 663
Landsbanki lslands 221 488 o 217 872 20,993

11. Retirement Benefits
Defined Banefit Scheme

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the
Authority offers retirement benefits and participates in two different pension schemes = the
Local Government Pension Scheme and the Teachers' Pension Scheme.

The Local Government Pension Scheme, the Greater Gwent {Torfaen) Pension Scheme, is
administered by Torfaen County Borough Council and is a funded defined benefit final salary
scheme. The Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund calculated at a level
intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.

The Teachers' Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme, which is administered by the
Department for Education. The scheme is unfunded and as it is not possible for the Authority
to identify it share of the underlying liabilities of the scheme attributable to its own
employees, it is baing accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, Le. the cost charged
to Cost of Services in the year is the cost of the employer contributions to the scheme. A
‘notional fund” is used as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid by
each local education authority.

Greater Gwent (Torfaen) Pension Scheme

In 2011/2012, the Authority paid an employer's contribution of £18.69m, representing 19.5%
of the pensionable pay of employees who are members of the scheme into the Greater Gwent
(Torfaen) Pension Fund (£20.432m representing 21.0% in 2010/2011), which provides
members with defined benefits related to pay and service, Contribution rates are set by the
Superannuation Regulations fo meet 100% of the overall liabilities of the Fund over a pariod
of time, with necessary contribution increases being phased in.
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An additional payment of E800k was made as a confribution to the deficit. In addition, the
Authority is responsible for all pension payments relating to added years benefits it has
awarded, together with the related increases. In 2011/2012 these amounted to £2 914m,
representing 3.05% of pensionable pay (£2.240m reprasenting 2.30% in 20102011}

Teachers' Penslon Scheme

In 2011/2012, the Authority pald £7.967m Io Capita Teachers' Pensions in respect of
teachers’ pensgions, which reprezents 14.1% of teachers' pensionable pay (EB021m and
14.1% for 2010/2011). In addition, the Authority is responsible for all pension payments
relating to added years that have been awarded, together with the ralated increases. In
2011/2012, these amounted to £1.778m, representing approximately 3.15% of pansicnabls
pay (£1.607m and 2 80% for 201002011).

Former Authorities' Liability

The former authorities’ liability exists in respect of previous years decisions to fund the
pansion benefits of employees of the former Glamorgan County Council, Mid Glamorgan
County Council and Rhymney Valley District Council whose pension benefits are currently
funded by the Rhondda Cynon Taf Counly Borough Council Pension Fund. This has been
included within the Authority’s accounts as part of the reguired IAS 19 accounting disclosures,
Actuarial assumplions are based upon the Rhondda Cynon Tal County Borough Council
Pension Fund.

Further information and the repor iz available on request from the Director of Finance,
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council, The Pavilions, Cambrian Park, Clydach WVale,
Tonypandy CF40 2XX,

Unfunded Teachers Pensions Liability

This liability exists in respect of unfunded Teachers’ Discretionary Benefits paid to the former
Autharity employees by the Greater Gwent (Torfaen) Pension Fund, This has been included
within the Authority's accounts as part of the reguired 1AS 19 accounting disclosures,
Actuanal assumplions are based upon the Greater Gwant (Torfaan) Pansion Fund,

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

We recognise the cost of relirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are
eamed by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.
However, the charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash
payable in the year, 30 the real cost of post-employment £ retirement benefits is reversed out
of the Council Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions
have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the Council
Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the yvear:
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Cost of Services

« current senice cost

« past sepdoe cosls

« geftlements and curtailments

Financing and Investment income and Expendifune

= inferest cost
= expeciad return on scheme assels

Total Post Employment Benelit charged fo the
Surpius or Deficit on Provision of Sendces

iher Post Employment Benefif charged fo the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stafament
« actuanal gains and losses

Total Post Employment Benefif changed o the
Comprehensive Income and Expendifure Statermant

Movement in Reserves Statement:

+ reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or
Deficit on Provsion of Sendces for post
employment benefits in accordance with the
Code

Actual Amount Changed Against the Counci
Fund Balance far Pensions in the Year
+ amplovers' confribulions payable to the schamea
= reliremeant banefits payable to pansioners

Local Governmant
Pension Scheme
201002011 201142012 201042011 201172042

Dizcretionary Benefits
Arrangemems

E000 EDDD £000 EQ00
17 B85 15,388 0 D
{36,456) 316 (1,689) G0
28 75 0 1,405
38,097 33,429 1,534 1,471
(24,244}  (26.049) a 0
{6,590) 22,260 (455) 3,026
(47 644) 50,024 Brs 1,322
(54, 234) TZ.284 520 4,348
Gaa0  (22260) 455 {3.026)
22,069 20,882 1,845 2,233
0 4] o a

Further infermation can be found in the Greater Gwent (Torfaen) Pension Fund’s Annual
Report, which s available upon request from the Director of Finance, County Borough of

Torfaen, Civic Centre, Pontypool, NP4 6YB.
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Actuarial Gains and [{Losses) relating to Pensions
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to 31 March 2012 is a loss of £91.318m (E39.98m to 31
March 2011).
Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-employment Benefits

Reconcillation of present value of the scheme llabilities:

2010/2011
Greater Former  Unfunded
Gwent Authorities Teachers® Total
Scheme Liability Pengion
EQOD E00D 000 E000
Cpening balance at 1 April G41,916 8,000 20,568 671,484
Curmeni senice cost 17 8B5S 0 i 17,085
Interest cosl 36,087 40 1,004 |
Caonfribulions by scheme padicipants 65,259 0 i 6,258
Actuarial (gains) / losses 0,281 430 545 (39.305)
Benefits paid {18.881) {540} {1,365) (20, 684)
Fastsenice cosis {36, 456) (B40) (1,149 (3B 445)
Curtaliments 28 i) Q 28
Setlemeants i} 0 0 o
Closing balance at 31 March 606 657 8,380 18,704 634,751
201172012
Greater Former  Unfunded
Gwent Authorlties  Teachers' Total
Schame Liakbility Pension
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance at 1 April G066 657 8,380 10,704 634,751
Current sernice cosi 15,384 [i] | 15,3689
Inferes] cosl 334249 450 1,021 34,200
Confributions by scheme paricipanis 6,143 i ] 6,143
Acluearal (gains) flosses 23,7858 G0 aE2 256,107
Benefits paid (19.244) (B50) [(1.583) {21477)
Pasl sendce cosls 318 60 o aTE
Curtailments 75 a 1,485 1,570
Seflements L] a 1] Q
Closing balance at 31 March GE6,550 8,910 21,298 696,759

Liabilities are valued on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, which assesses
the future liabilities of the Fund discounted to their presant value.
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Reconciliation of fair value of the scheme assets:

Greater Gwent Former Authoritios Unfunded Teachers'
Scheme Liability Penzion
2010723011 201112012 204002011 2011452012 201042011 2044/2042
E000 E00D £000 E000 E000 EQOD

Opening balance at 1
April 360,931 401,975 a i} 0 4]
Expeciad rate of relum 24,244 26,844 0 Li] ] Q
Actuarial gains / (losses) 7363 (26.239) i} 0 Li] 0
Employer coniributions 22 069 20852 B0 G50 1,365 1,583
Contributions by scheme
parlicipants 8,250 6,143 0 0 ] 1]
Benefils paid (18.891)  (19,244) (B40) (B50) {1,355) {1.583)
Seflements i) Q i} i 0 0
Closing balance at 31
March 401,876 410476 o 0 i} 0

The expected retum on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on ficed
interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date.
Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in
the respective markets,

The actual return on scheme assets In the year was E701k (refurn of £31.607m in
201002011).

Scheme History:

2007/2008 2008/2009 2008/2010 2010/2011 2011/2012
£000 EQODD £000 EQ0O00 EQQDD

Fresent value of liabilities:
* Local Gowernment Pension Scheme (526,591} (445,362) (B641916) (BO6,657) (666 .650)

- Former Authorities' Liability {8,040) {7.570) {9,000) {8,390) (8.810)
* Teachers” Unfunded Discretionany
Pension (19.872)  (17,134) (20,568) (19,704)  (21.299)

Fair value of assets:
= Local Government Pension Scheme 304 221 245 085 350 931 401 975 410476

= Formaer Authorities” Liakility 0 i} 0 LI a
* Teachers’ Unfunded Discrefionary
Pension 0 o 0 0 0

Surplug{deficit) in the scheme:
* Local Government Pension Schema (222, 370) (200277) (280985) (204682) (25B,074)

* Former Authornities' Liability (8,040} {7.570) [5.000) (B, 300y 8,910
* Teachers' Unfunded Discrefionany

Pansion (19.872) (17.134) (20588} (19,704}  (21,209)
Tatal (260,282} (224.981) (310,563) (232,776} (28B6,283)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Authority has to pay future retirement
benefits. In addition, the Authonty has lisbilities for discretionary pension payments outside
the main schemes. The total liability of £286.283m has a substantial impact on the net worth
of the Authority, but statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial
positicn of the Authority remains healthy,
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The deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by increased contributions
over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary. The total
confribution that the Authority expects to make to the Local Government Pension Scheme in
the year o 31 March 2013 is £19.94m.

Basis for Estimating Scheme Assets and Liabilities

The calculation of these assets. liabilities and costs requires the actuary to make a number of
assumptions relating to returns on investments, future inflation, pay and pension levels and
rates of mortality. In previous years the actuaries based the discount rate on the yield on the
iBoxx Sterling AA corporate bond over 15 years index. For the year ended 31 March 2012,
the discount rate has been calculated as a weighted average of “spot yields® on AA rated
corporate bonds. These weightings reflect more accurately the duration of the pension
liabilties of the typical LGPS employer.

Changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme permit employees retiring on or after 6
April 2006 to take an increase in their lump sum payment on retirement in exchange for a
reduction in their future annual pension.

The actuaries assumed that 50% of employees retiring after & April 2012 would take
advantage of this change to the pension scheme. The actuaries have advised that this has
resulted in the pension labilities being greater than if a higher take up of lump sums had
occurred. The actuary has confirmed that each 5% increase (decrease) in the assumed
commutation take-up rate would typically reduce (increase) the value of the liabilties by
between 0.1% and 0.25%

Page 83



Caerphilly County Borough Council

MNotes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:
Local Gaoverna et Former Authorities' Teachers® Pension
Pension Scheme Liahility Scheme
201002011 2011/2012 201062011 201172012 201002011 201142012

Lang-term ected rate of

return on scheme assels;

Equity investmenis T7.5% T0% ] nia 7.5% 7.0%
Government Bonds 4 4% 3% n'a nia 4 4% 3.1%
COther Bonds 5.1% 4.1% nia nia 51% 4.1%
Property 6.5% 5.0% nia nia 6.5% 6.0%
CashiLiguidity 0.5% 0.5% nfa ni| 0.5% 0.5%
Oithver T.5% T.0% néa nfa T.5% F.0%

Morlality assumphions:
Longewly al 85 for current

pensionars:
- Men 21.2 21.3 231 23.2 212 213
= Women 234 234 24.4 245 234 234
Longesity at §5 for fubure
pPENSITNErs;
- hen 223 224 nia nfa nia nfa
- Women 256 25.7 nia nia nia nia
Fate of inflation 30% 2.5% 2. 7% 2.4% 2.5% 2.3%
Rate of increase in salaries 4.4% 4.0% nfa nia 4.4% 4.0%
Fale of increase in pensions 3.0% 2.5% 2.7% 2.4% 289 2.3%
Rale for discounting scheme
liabilities 5.5% 4 9% 5.5% 4 65% 5.4% 4 5%
Take-up of oplion to convert
annual pension info retirement 50.0% S0.0% nia na e na
lump sum

The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by
proporticn of the total assets held:

31 March 31 March

2011 2012

Equity investments B1.1% 75.1%
Gowernment Bonds 7 6% 8.2%
Oither Bands 7.3% B2%
Property 2.1% 2.3%
CashiLiquidity 1.8% 1.6%
iher 0.1% JE%
100.0% 100.0%

History of experience gains and losses

The acluarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2011/2012 can be
analysed into the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31
March 2012:
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200712008 2008/2009 20092010 209002011 201172012
% L % S Yo

Local Government Pension Scheme:

Differences between the expecied

and actual refurn on assets {11.7) {3T.4) (23.5) {1.8) 6.4
Experience gaing and losses on

liabilifies 0.z 1] a 27 0.0

Former Authorities' Liability:

Differences betwean the expacled

and actual refurn on assets 0 0 1] a 0
Experience gains and losses on

liabilities (3.4) (5.3) 23 0.4 23

Teachers' Unfunded Discretionary

Pension:

Differences betwesn the expacted

and aciual refurm on assels 0 0 1] l 0
Experience gains and losses on

liabililies (5. a 4] 6.8 0

12. Private Finance Initlative (PFI) Transactions

The Authority entered into bwo contracts under Private Finance Initiative arrangements, one
with the Machrie Congsortium for the provizion of two replacement schools (Yagol Gyfun Cwm
Rhymni and Lewiz School Pengam), and one with S EMWY. Ltd for the provision of a road
{Sirhowy Enterprize Way).

Under both of these contracts, the relevant consortium has the responsibility for the design,
build, finance and operation of the assets for a period of 30 years, commencing in September
2002 for the schools and December 2005 for the road. With regard to the schools, this
includes the provision of all ancillary senvices, although the Authority retains responsibility for
educational, pastoral and financial arrangements.

The Authority leases each school site to the Consortium and, upon expiry of the contract term
(Seplember 2032), has the oplion of re-tendering the provision of services. If the option is not
taken, the assets will transfer to the Authority.

The Authority continues to own the land on which the road is built and, in consideration of a
payment of £1, permils access to the land to S EW. Lid, for the purposes of building and
operating the road, for the lifetime of the contract At the expiry of the contract term, the
Authority has the oplion of extending the contract. If this option iz not taken, the asset reverts
o the ownership of the Authority.

The aszets identified in the PFl contracts have been recognised in the Authorty's Balance
Sheet. Movements in their value over the year are detailed in the analysis of the movemeant
on the Property, Plant and Equipment balance in Note 22,
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31 March 2011 31 March 2012
Road Schools Total Road Schools Total
EDOO E000 £000 E000 E000 £000

Gross PA Liabilities are due:

- ol latar than 1 year 3,747 1,768 5515 3645 1,583 9,238
- later than 1 year and not later than

D years 14,154 T.098 21252 13,826 TA86 21012
- later than & years 36,251 28700 64951 32834 27019 59953
Total Gross Liabilities 54,152 37586 91,718 50405 35798 86203
MNet PR Liabilities are due:

- not later than 1 year 1,420 411 1,831 1420 274 1594
- later than 1 year and not later than

5 yoars 5,984 1,951 T.835 G082 2213 8,305
- later than § years 21840 15686 37736 20180 15432 35872
Total Het Liabilities 29,244 18,268 47502 27692 17879 45871
Finance charges allocated to

future periods {24,908) (19,308) (44,216) (22,713) (17,819) (40,532)

Reconciliation between Met Book
Values of PA Assets hold under

PA zchemes:

Net Liability (as above) 20244 18258 47502 27892 17979 45871
Revaluations and impairments 0 21560 21580 o 18017 18047
Repaymenis/ Amortis ation of

capital swm 521 2162 10,683 8072 3232 12,304
Accurmulated Depreciation (3.648) (B,168) (9.814) (5484) (6,168) (11.652)
Met Book value of PHAneh_ 33118 36812 699M 31,280 33,060 64,340

The Authority receives funding from the Welsh Government, via specific grant payments, to
meet the costs of the unitary charge payments. However, the scheduling of the funding is
such that it differs annually during the period of the PFI contract, from that applying to the
payrmants to the consortia.

Whilst the funding profile of the road scheme generally follows that of the unitary charge
paymants, that of the schools scheme differs markedly, with the funding reducing annually
over the period of the contract, whilst unitary charge payments increase annually over the
same period. The result of the variance in these funding and expenditure profiles means that
the funding received by the Authority in the early years of the contracts will exceed that
required to meet the unitary charge, whilst subseguently, until the expiry of the contract term,
the opposite will be true. As a resull the Authority has agreed that the initial funding
"surpluses” will be set aside, to provide for the subsequent fu nding shortfalls, and is holding
such funds as an earmarked reserve to meet future PFI liabilites (see note 47).
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The balance held on this reserve and the movements during the financial yvear are as detailed
bedow:

201012011 201172012
EQO0 £000
Balance browght foreard (11.080) {11.581)
Amounts set aside in year:
Gchools (208} (445)
Road {297) (215])
{11.581) {12,.241)

Future commitments for PFl Schemes

The Authornty iz committed to making the following payments for PFI obligations:

Reimbursement
Payment for of Capital

Services Expenditure Interest Tatal

Road £000 E000 E£000 E000
FPayable in 201 212013 1,389 1420 2225 5,034
Payable within 2 0 5 years B,347 6,082 7734 20,173
Payable within & to 10 years 5,859 6,545 7058 23472
Payable within 11 to 15 years 10,312 7.272 4297 21,881
Fayable within 16 to 20 years 11173 5,900 1,338 18411
Payable within 21 lo 25 years 3,304 4563 G 3828
42 384 27,682 22,7113 82,7898

Reimbursement
Payment for of Capital

Services Expendilura Interest Total

School E000 E00Q E000 E000
Payable in 201272013 2312 274 1,319 3,905
Payable within 2 1o & years 9257 2213 4873 16,443
Payable within & to 10 years 14 368 2,784 5408 22 560
Payable within 11 fo 15 years 16482 4497 4,082 25,081
Payable within 16 to 20 years 18422 7485 1.8984 27 881
Payable within 21 o 25 years 1668 726 53 2447
62,508 17,978 17819 28,307

13. Operating Leases
Authority as Lesses

The Authonty uses computer eguipment, vehicles and plant and general office equipment
financed under the terms of various operating leases.

Operating lease rentals in respect of the above, paid to lessors in 2011/2012 totalled
£179,065 (£294 409 in 2010/2011) which have been charged o the relevant service area in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staberment.
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The Authority also leases various buildings for the provision of services and for administrative
purposes, which have been accounted for as operating leases. The rentals payable to lessors
under such leases amounted to £987,819 in 201142012, (£756,810 in 2010/2011) which have

been charged fo the relevant service area in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

The future minimum kease payments due under non-cancellable leases in fulure years are:

201042011 201172012
Vehicles,
Land & Plant &
Tatal Buildings Equipment Total
£000 EQ0D E000 E000
Mol later than ane year 790 asy 142 1.008
Later than ocne year and nod laler than
five years 2.1848 2,760 164 2.924
Later than five years 1,649 5637 ] 5637
4 638 9.264 306 9.570

The Authority has sub-let some of the accommodation held under these operating leases. At
31 March 2012, the minimum payments expected to be received under non-cancellable sub
leases were as follows:

201052011 2011/2012
Other Land
Total & Buildings Total
E£000 £0:00 E000
Mol lalers than one year ] 11 11
Later than one year and not later than
fiver years 0 20 20
Later than five years 1] o 4]
0 3 31

Authority as Lessor

The Authority has granted leases of land and buildings to varlous entities for penods of
between 1 year and 30 years for the provision of community services, such as facilities,
tourisim services and community centres and for economic development purpose to provide
sultable affordable accommodation for local businesses. Such arrangements have been
accounted for as operating leases for which the assets have a gross value of £36,219,334 as
at 31 March 2012 and have been subject to accumulated depreciation of £2,224 566, (Gross
value at 31 March 2011 £38,646 941 with accumulated depreciation of £2,036,490),

In addition the Authority has also granted peppercomn leases (rentals of £1 per annum) of
community halls, playing fields, pavilions etc. lo voluntary organisations, community groups
and other similar bodies for periods of between 1 year and 199 years. Such arrangements
have been accounted for as operating leases. The gross book values of the assets concernead
amount to £55,401,640 and are subject to accumulated depreciation of £4,.476,593 (Gross
book value of £45.645,131 at 31 March 2011 with accumulated depreciagtion of £3,748,458).
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The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years
are:

201052011 201112012
Invclustrial Other Land
Taotal Units & Buildings Total
E000 EQQ0 E000 E0QD
Mol later than one year B4 T8 o8 895
Later than one year and nal laber than
five vears 1,868 1,348 208 16486
Laber than five years 543 133 385 518
3,352 2,278 T84 2060

14, Finance Leases
Authority as a Lessee

Thea Authority has acquired computer and other equipment under finance leases. The rentals
payable under these arrangements in 2011/2012 were £356,919 (£360,046 in 2010:2011),
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as £54,850 as finance

costs (debited o interast payable). The write down of obligations to the lessor amounted to
£302,089.

The following values of asssts are held under finance leases by the Authority, which are
accounted for as part of Property, Plant and Equipment at the following net amounts:

31 March 31 March
2011 2012
E0DD E000

Wehicles, Plant, Furnilure & Equipment G674 GOG

BT4 608

The Authority is committed to making payments under these finance leases comprising
settlernent of the long-term hability for the interest in the propery acquired by the Authority
and finance costs that will be payable by the Authority in future years whilst the liability
remains outstanding. The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts:

31 March 31 March

2011 2012
E000 E0DD
Fimance lease abiliges (net present value of
minimum lease paymeanis)
=  Current 283 320
«  Mon- current 510 472
Finance cosls payable in lulure years (119) (96}
Minimum leaze payments BT4 [:8: 151
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The minimum lease payments will be paid over the following periods:

Minimum Lease Payments Finance Lease Liabilities
201002011 20112012 2010/2011 201152012

EODD EQDD E000 EDDD
Mot later than one year 283 320 234 280
Latar than one year and naot
later tham five years 510 510 440 416
Later than five years 1] 0 §] 1]
T893 830 674 GOE

The Authority does not have any finance leases that include rentals contingent on events
taking place after the lease was entered into, such as secondary rentals.

15. Members' Allowances

The total value of Members’ Allowances payments in 2011/2012 was £1,204,480 (£1.236,902
in 2010/2011). More detailed information on Members’ Allowances can be obtained from the
Head of People Management, Penallta House, Tredomen Park, Ysirad Mynach, Hengoed,
CF82 7PG.

16. Officers’ Emolumenis

The number of employees (excluding those employees who are listed separately overleaf)
whose remuneration, excluding employer's pension contributions, was £80.000 or more in
bands of £5,000, during the year ended 31 March 2012 were:

2010452011 Number of em o]
School Men-School

Remuneration Band based based Total Laft in year
£60,000 - £64 999 ] 8 18 H
£65,000 - £69 909 16 & 21 1
ET0,000 - £74 500 b -] 11 ]
ET5,000 - ETD.8909 4 3 T 0
EED,000 - £84 505 1 1 2 Q
E85,000 - EBD 305 1 0 1 0
£90,000 - £94 505 0 Q 0 a
ES5.000 - E99.999 1 i 1 0

37 24 &1 1

The leaver in the vear was Non-School-based
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2011/2012 Mumber of employees
Schoel Hon-School

Remuneration Band based based Total Leftin year
E60,000 - £64 090 14 & 18 1
EG65,000 - E69,959 & 4 10 o
£70,000 - £74 999 3 ¥ 12 0
E75,000 - E70,095 4 3 ) 0
£BD.000 - £84.098 2 1 3 0
£85,000 - £80,990 1 ) 1 0
£80,000 - £94 099 0 o 0 0
£85,000 - £98,990 Q o 0 o
£100,000 - £104,993 1 0 1 0

33 20 63 1

The leaverin the year was Man-School-based.

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and
other redundancies are set out in the table below:

{a) Exit package cost| (b) Mumber of| (c) Number of| (d) Total number| (e) Total cost of exit
band {including compulsory other| of exit packages| packages ineach
speclal payments) redundancies depariures by cost band band £
agreed| [(b) + ()]
20100 20444 ) 20107 20447 | 2010/ 20414 2040/ 2011 ¢
2011 2042 | 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
£0 - E20,000 1 B 14 20 15 E | 69,705 155233
£20,001 - E40,000 Q 0 B 3 b 3 142,734 &7 400
£40,001 - EG0,000 a 1 3 2 3 a 161,537 144 889
EGD.001 - EBD,0O0 Q Q o LI Q a i i
E80,001 - E10:0,000 a i i} 1 o 1 0 B3,004
E£100,001 - £150,000 Li| 4] 8] 0 o i Q Q
Total 1 (] 22 32 23 38 374,086 470621
2010/ 2041/
Cither Departures include: 2011 2012
Redundancy payments at the end of Fixed Term Conlracts i 17
Cases passed by Pensions Commities 12 16
22 32
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The Authority terminated the contracts of a number of employees in 2011/2012, incurring
liabilities of £470,621 (£374,066 in 2010/2011). OF this total £83,099 was paid to an officer
within Lifelong Leamning and Leisure and the remaining compensation is payable to
employees from Public Services, Public Protection, Corporate Finance, Housing, Lifelong
Learning and Leisure, Human Resources, Leaming Education and Inclusion, Policy and
Performance, |T Communications and Planning and Regeneration for loss of office and
enhanced pension benefits as disclosed above. £81,426 was payable to employeeas from
Leaming Education and Inclusion, Schesls, Public Services, Lifelong leaming and Leisure
and Public Protection who were made redundant as part of the Authority's rationalisation of
these services and the end of fixed term contracts.

In accordance with the Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2010, the
following tables show the remuneration and components of remuneration for statutory chief
officers and designated heads of paid service that have responsibility for the managemant of
the Authority and have the ability to control the major activities of the Autharity — particularly in
relation to activities involving expenditure of money.

201002011 Total Total
Remuneration Remuneration
excluding Employer's including
Employer's Pension Employer's
Pension Contributions Pension
Salary | Expenzes | Contributions at 21% Contributions
Post £ E E £ £
Chief Execulive *a 103,531 a7z 104,103 13,823 117 826
Chief Executive “b 50,838 670 B0.508 12 566 T3,074
Deputy Chief Exscutive *c 58627 SEg 59 213 12,312 71,525
Direchor of Corporate Services 50,341 G256 50,966 10,572 61,538
Director of the Environment *b 51,924 ¥ar 52,661 10,604 63,565
Director of Social Senices a7 531 2 38T 100,018 20 502 120,620
Director of Education are3 1,118 SB8.7T48 20,502 119,251
3151 Officer 71,496 1,130) T2, 628 15014 BT 640
591,019 7.825 598,844 116,195 715,039

"8 The Chief Execulive rafired on 30 Seplermber 2010, His ful) annirlised salary was £137.645 In sddilion, he recaived
Relurning Officer expenses of £5,.585 in respect of Parliamentary Elections, which have been exciuded from the aboue
figures as ey were paid by Canfral Gowermment,

b The Directar of the Enviranment pos! was removed from the Authevity's sfructure when the Director of the Endranment
toai aver the rode of Chielf Execufive, The Bl semualisad satary of the Direclor of the Emdronment was 100 BRZ whilsr
the fill anmralised salary of the new Chisf Execulive was £123,665 In addiion, the new Chisf Exsculive e v
Redurning Officer expenses of £8,099 duing the year in respect of the Welsh Reforenduen, wiich have been excluded
fram the above figures as ey were paid by the Welsh Government.

¢ The Directr of Corporale Services post wes remowed from fhe Authority's siructure when the Direclar of
Corporate Services book over the rofe of Deputy Chief Executive. The il annuslized satary of the Direcior of Corporale
Services was £100, 682 whilst the full annualised salary of the Depuity Chief Executive was £118,840, In addifion, the
Deputy Chief Execulive recened Rafurning Ofcer axpenses of £1.000 in respect of fhe Waelsh Referendiam, which have
besn exciuded from the abowe figures as they wera paid by the Walsh Gowsramant,
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2011/2012 Total Total
Remuneration Ramuneration
excluding Employer's b luschireg
Employer's Pension Employer's
Pension Contributions Pension
Salary |Expenses | Contributions at 21% Contributions
Post E E £ E E
Chief Executive *d 123 665 1514 125,179 24115 149,294
Deputy Chisef Executive "e 118,480 1,156 119,636 23,104 142,740
Director of Social Senices 105,367 1,743 107,110 19,935 127 045
Direcior of Education 100,682 1408 102,088 19,533 124,721
S151 Officer *f 71,486 1420 72916 13,242 86, 858
519,600 7,230 526,929 100,729 627 658

g The Chisf Execitive received Relwning Ofcer expenses duving e pear o 37 March 2002 of £8. 460 in respect of
Waish Government elections and £6,059 (n respect of eleciions for the Alfernafive Voling System. These are exciluded
fram fhe abowe Sgures as fhey were paid by e Welsh Government and Canfral Government respachived)

‘8 The Deputy Chief Executive received Returning Officer axpenzes durimg the yoar o 31 March 20412 of £1,000 in
respact of Welsh Govarnmenf eleclions and £9,000 in respact of alacions for the Allermative Voding Sysfem. These are
sEcivded from the shove figures a8 they wens paid by the Weish Government and Central Sovernmeant respeciivaly,

*f The 5151 Officar recehesd Refurning Cficer axpenzes duning the year to 37 Msrch 20712 of £150 in respect of Welzh
Gowrmmen alachions and £150 in respect of eleciions for the Alfarnaffve Voling Sysfem. These ara excluded from the
above fgues az ey were padd by e Welsh Gowrnmend! and Cenlral Gowrimen! respectively,

17. External Audit Costs

In 2011/2012 Caerphilly County Borough Council incurred the following fees relating to
external audit and inspaction.

Fees payable to the Wales Audit Office with regard o external
audil sendces carmed oul by the appointed auditor

Fees payable to the Wales Audit Office in respect of statutory

inspeclion

Fees payable to the Wales Audit Office for the cedification of grant

claims and returms

Fees payable to the Wales Audit Office in respect of the MNational

Fraud Initiative

Fess payable 1o the Wales Sudit Office in respect of ofher

SEMAcas

201072011 2011/2012
£000 £000
220 229
155 166
T3 =
4 0,
23 a8
475 488

The fees paid for "other serdees” were for advoe recsived fom he Wales Audil Offce In respect of
the Autharity's dealings with the Voluntary Sector.

Page 73




Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
18. Pooled Budgets / Lead Commissioning Arrangements
In accordance with the provisions of the National Health Service (Wales) Act 2006, and the

flexibilities arrangements permitied under that legislation, the Authority is involved with
Aneurin Bevan Health Board (ABHB) in respect of the following projects.

Lead Comm issioning 201002011 201102012
manis Authority's Total Other (ABHE) Other LAsAWG Authority's
Contribution Funding Contribution  Contribution  Contribution

Scheme E000 £000 E0DD £000 E000

Cancarcareling 19 31 12 F] 19

Age Cancem 47 152 105 1] 47

Care and Repair 12 33 21 1] 12

Gwrent Frailty a 10,454 3,353 4 a0 2121
78 10,670 3 491 4,980 2,199

Cancercareline - provides support to those affected by cancer, whether patients, families or
carers.

Age Concern - provides timely support and safe discharge from acute services for oclder
people, back inta the community.

Care and Repalr - provides a housing advice and agency service for elderly people with
physical disabilities. The project fits adaptations and alds to daily living, deals with
applications for grants, loans and welfare benefits, and arranges temporary accommaodation.

Gwent Frailty Programme - provides a range of services to avoid hospital admissions,
facilitate early discharge and to help individuals remain independent,

Pooled budgets;

Gwent Wide Integrated Community Equipment Service Project — see Note 53 — Jointly
Controlled Operations.

19. Related Party Transactions

The Authority is required to disclose material fransactions with related parties — bodies or
individuals that have the potential te control or influence the Authority or to be controlled or
influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the
extent o which the Authority might have been consirained in its ability to operate
independeantly or might have secured the ability o limit another party's ability to transact freely
with the Authority.

During the year, transactions with and year-end balances of related parties arose as
follows:

Welsh Government

Welsh Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Authority in
respect of providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, providing the
majority of funding in the form of revenue and capital grants, revenue support grant and
NNDR. Further details regarding grant income received and due can be found on pages 93
and 94, whilst details of revenue support grant received and NNDR Pool transactions are
summarised in Mote 9.

Precepts and Levies
Mote 7 provides details of precepts collected on behalf of other organisations and amounts
levied on the Authority by Jeint Committees.
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Members

Members of the council have direct control over the Authorty’s financial and operating
policies. The total of members allowances paid in 2011/2012 is shown in Mote 15. During the
year all “declaration of interest’ returns were received showing that there were no other
material related party transactions identified invaleing thasa individuals,

Chief Officers

Details of chief officers emoluments are provided in Mote 16, Again, all “declaration of
interest” returns were received from directors which did not identify any other material related
party transactions.

Other Public Bodies (subject to common control by central government)
The Authonty has pooled budget amangements with the Aneurin Bevan Health Board in
respect of the Gwent Frailty Project. Details can be found in Mote 18.

Pension Contributions

Employer's confributions are made to the Teachers' Pension Agency and the Grealer Gwent
(Torfaen) Pension Fund in respect of the Authority’'s employees. Further details of amounts
involved are shown on pages B4 to 71,

Other Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Autharity:

Groundwork Trust Caerphilly

The Authority is represented on the Board of the Trust. During the course of 2011/2012, tha
Authorty made paymenis to the Trust of EY209,507 (EGY5492 in 2010/2011) and received
income from the Trust of £734 877 (E80,719 in 201042011). At the year-end, the Authority
owed £5 150 to Groundwark (£11,000 at 31 March 2011) whilst nothing was owed from
Groundwork to the Authority (£480 at 31 March 2011)

Education Support and Inspection Service (ESIS)

ESIS Is a Joint Committee praviding advisory and inspection services to the Local Education
Authority and its schools. The Authorily provides the administrative support fo the Joint
Committes, and funds its activities in conjunction with Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda
Cynon Taff County Borough Councils. At 31 March 2012, £1,569 908 was hald on bahalf of
ESIS in the Authorily's bank account (E1 465 369 at 31 March 2011). Dunng the coursa of
20112012, the Authority made payments to the Joint Commitbes of £1,362 122 (£1,284 149
in 201072011} and received paymeniz from the Joint Commities of £21 9561 (£2 840 in
201072011}, whilst as at 31 March 2012 balances of some £139 were due from the Authority
to ESIS (£234 at 31 March 2011).

Aneurin Bevan Health Board

The Authority is represented on the Board of this organisation. During the course of
2011/2012, the Authority made payments to the Board of some £3 285 521 (£1,248 105 in
2010/2011) and received income of £5 028 138 from the Board (Including Section 28a grant
income of £3 069 828 ) (£4,961 868 and £2 859,159 respectively in 2010/2011) and NNDR
income of £809 300, was collected from the Board (£764,133 in 2010v2011). At 31 March
2012, £1,678,965 was due from the Authority to the Health Board (£395.718 at 31 March
gg::; and £350,603 was due from the Health Board to the Authority (E367,802 at 31 March
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20. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Adjusiment

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to set aside a Minimum Revenue
Pravision for the redemption of debt in line with the regulations set out in the Local Authorities
{Capital and Finance and Accounting) (Wales) Regulations 2003, as amended.

With effect from 2007/08, the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)
(Amendment} Regulations 2008 revised the basis of charge in respect of Council Fund
borrowing. The Regulations provide for a range of options as the basis of charge for MRP,
within which authorities are permitted to adopt those most appropriate to their circumstances.
However, in doing so, authorities must also take account of the reguirement of the
Regulations that MRF must be calculated in a prudent manner, ensuring that debt is charged
to revenue over a period reasonably commensurate with that over which capital assets, to
which the borrowing relates, provides benefit

For Supported Borrowing (i.e. where provision for the associated capital financing costs is
included in the revenue support grant settlement received from the Welsh Government), MRP
has been calculated at 4% of the non-housing Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) balance
at the commencament of the financial year and 2% for the HRA CFR balance. In daing so,
MRP on any particular borrowing commences to be charged the year following that in which
the bormowing has been incurred.

For Unsupported Borrowing (i.e. bormowing permitted in accordance with the Prudential Code
for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, but for which no provision s made in the revenue
seltlerment), MRP has been calculated on the basis of equal instalments aver the life of the
asset for which the borrowing has been undertaken. In these circumstances, the MRP
commences o be charged from the year following that in which the asset to which the
borrowing relates becomes operational,

Actual provisions made during each year match the calculated amounts,

The amount shown in the note of reconciling items for the Movement in Reserves Statement
@s "Minimum revenue provision for capital financing” represents the accounting entry
necessary o ensure that there is no overall increase or decrease in the Council Tax arising
from depreciation charges, impairment losses or amortisations
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21. Movements on Reserves

Movements in the Authority’'s Usable Reserves are detailed below, in the Movement in
Reserves Siatement and also in Notes 41 - 47, whilst details of the movements in Unusable
Reserves are shown below and in Noles 34 - 39, Some reserves are required (o be held for
statutory reasons, some are needed o comply with proper accounting practice and others
have been sat up voluntarily to earmark resources for future spending plans.

Usable Reserves
Balancea Met Balance Met Balance
1 April Movement 31 March Movement 31 March
2010 in year 2011 in year 2012
Resarve £000 E000 £000 E000 E000
Council Fund {12 984) (3638) (16622) 3814 (12,808)
Housing Revenue Account (hobe B
HRA) (6, E2) 254 (5, 7E8) 1,088 (4,680,
Dhirecd Serdce Earmarked Reseras
{note 41) (1,511) Qs (BOE) 345 (281
Capital Earmarked Reserves (note 42) (3.817) {9,108) (13,015) i5568) (18,583
Senice DvenUnderspend Resenes
{note 43) {4,333) {1,2286) (5, 559) (458)  (B,017)
Schools Earmarked Resenes (nole 45) (6, H40) 38 (6,802) 2551 (4,261}
Insurance Earmarked Resarves (nofe
44) (2, TBS) (181) (2.866) (2,048  (5014)
Other Earmarked Resenves (nole 47) {15,736) (1,362) (17,008) {(3,288) (20,387
Usable Capital Receipis (2 603 {5,361) (7. 964) 1,341) (9,205)
Capital Grants Unapplied (8,802) {B28) (0,430) {323) (B,753)
Total Usable Reserves {65,473 (20,357) {85,830) {5.229) (91,069)
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Unusable Reserves
Restated Restated Restated
201042011 Balange Het Balance
1 April  Movement 31 March Further
2010 in year 2011 Furpose of details of

Reserm £000 £000 E000 Reserve movements
Amounts reguired by statute

Finarncial to be set aside in respect of

Instruments dizcounts and premia on the

Adjustment rascheduling of the

Account (2 256) 274 (1,882} Authority's debbs. Haote 34
Store of gains on revaluation

Revaluation of fixed assets nol yet

Resere (340.324)  (20,129) (360.453) realised through sales. Mate 35

Capital Slore of capital resources set

Adjusiment aside fo meet pasi

Sccount (CAR) (474 445) A5 738 (438707 expendilune Mode 38
Proceeds to be receiwed ovar

Deferrad future accounting periods

Capital arising principally kom the

Receipis (145) a3 52) sale of council dwellings Mote 3T
Ealancing account to allow

Pensions indusion of Pensicns

Resens 0553 (FFFT7) 232776 Liabilityin the Balance Sheet  Mote 38
Account ko absorb
differences arising on the
Council Fund balance fraom

Accumulated accruing for compensated

Absences absences earned bul not

Accaunt 5218 22 5240 taken in the vear. Mele 39

Total Unusable

Reserves (501,388)  [B1,789) (563, 188)

Detalls of the restatement to the comparative figures are set oul in Nabe 54
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Details of the restatement to the comparalive figures are set out in Mote 54
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Restated
1172012 Balance Het Balance
1 April  Mowvement 31 March Further
2011 In year 2012 Purpose of detalls of

Resarve £000 £000 E000 Resaerve movements
Amaunts required by statute

Financial to be set aside in respect of

Instruments discounts and pramia on the

Adjusimeni rescheduling of the

Account (1.982) 273 (1,709) Authoritys debis, Moie 34
Store of gains on revaluation

Rawaluation of fized asseis not yet

Resere (360,463) (B03} (361,256) realized through sales, Mode 35

Caplal Store of capital resources sel

Adjustment aside to meat past

Account (CAR)  (438,707) 52,210 (3BE40T) expendiiure MNoke 36
Proceads to be received over

Deferred furture acoounting perods

Capital arising principally from the

Receipls 162} 17 {45) sale of coundl dwellings Moke 37
Balancing accounti to allow

Pensions inclusion of Pensions

Fesane 232.7TTE 53507 286,283 Liabilityin the Balance Sheel  Nobe 38
Account lo absorb
differences arising on the
Council Fund balancs frem

Accumulaied aceruing for compeansated

Ahsences absences earnad bul not

Aocount 5,240 (1) 5,229 1iaken in the year. Wote 35

Total Unusable

Reserves {563,188) 105,193 [457,9095)




Caerphilly County Borough Council

Motes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

21. Property, Plant and Equipment
@ 8 = 2 -E
E -E 3 E e E T:: L
Szt | & 55 | §5 |20
o " i - 5 -
a L =g B E E < Ed E‘.ﬁ' £ E 5
E c §§ E 5 g H w £ oo g oE
: E¥ €2 8§ P 0§ f% | 3z (<23
i3 o £ 8 -4 o @ 44 cE |Es&
Restaled £000 E000 E000 £000 E000 £000  £000 EDOD E000
Cost or valuation:
A1 April 2010 104,336 808,195 27385 229487 1472 B232 46,154 1224060 70745
Additions 9,684 9440 3521 5,458 Q 0 10,336 38 449
Revaluabon
Increases/{decreases) o Q0 (43.845) 244 (D,030) 432 17407 a| (34,793) ]
Revaluation Ressne
Derecognifions - Disposals 0 (390} 0 i} 4] 0 0 (300) o
Im pairments {(33.411) a ] a ¢] a Q1 (33411 o
Dl:l'her.mmamanm im cost or o 7 547 o S48 o 0 (7.795) g o
valuations
At 31 March 2011 BOE0E 7TA0846 21150 226173 1,604 25538 48895 |1,104.816 | 79,745
Accumulated Depreciation
and impairment:
AL April 2010 0 (5B.585) (18.8B77) (46,681) () (4] 0 (124,134} (9,104)
Deprecialion Charge (2881) (24287 (2511) (8.328) a 4 0 {38,180) (v10)
Depreciation writlen out to
Surplus ! Deficl on the 2,981 4 4] i] a 1] 0 2805 1]
Provaion of Sendoes
Impairment losses |
reversals o Rewluation 0 46180 {207 157 L1} a 0 46 138 0
Reserns
At 31 March 2011 0 (36648) (21,6095 (54 850) {_} 1] 00 (1132000 [(9.814)
SEEEomE Vel a8 d) 20,408 7442 171323 1597 69,931
March 2091 1 288 9458 ' £ 25,838 48,695 | 1,081.615 ]
S ..
Net Book Value at 31 March
2010 104,335 7408630 a508 182806 1,165 #2258 461541100828 | 70841

Details of the restatement o the comparative figures are st oul i Nole 54,
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MNotes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Cost or valuation:

AL April 2011

Additions

Revaluation
Increases{decreasas) to
SurplusDeficil on
Frovigsion of Serdces
Derecognitions -
Disposals

Impairments

Cither movements in cost
ar valuatons

AL 31 March 2012

Accumulated Depreciation

and impairment:

At 1 Apnl 2011
Depreciation Change
Depreciation written out to
Surplus ! Deficit on the
Provision of Serices
Impairment losses §
reversals fo Revaluation
Ressne
Derecoanilians -
Disposals

Al 31 March 2012

MNet Book Value at 31
March 2012

Assets under Construction

fAssets under construction is analysed as follows:

Highway Infrastruciurne
Primary Schools
Sacondary Schools

Land formation for economic development

" - T
% i = E " . E 2E

z awsy 2 E w B2 23 g
= E - B @ E 5 =X = & B IH o i
] E .§ 2 E = @ B g [ | a E
E 3 :E% BT §E & &% 3f [2&%
8 &2 22y £ 3 3 &3 | =% |Esk

EQDD E00Q £000 E000  EQOQ  EQDO £000 £000 £000
B0E0E FBOD4E8 231160 2286173 18604 25638 488685 |1,194816| 79,745
8050 17,764 1,883 8405 0 a4 10,701 43 853 68
Q (22.015) T42 a1 665 4292 Q (16,229 (3,760)

(50} (3,308) i} o 0 e Q0 134450 0
(31.451) (47 418) 1] 0 (14) {4,495) o (a3ars) ]
i 9,128 o 37268 0 0 [45 354) i {388)
57197 735082 33785 268036 22656 26346 13002 [1,135812 ?5.9&5
0 [36648) (21,695 (54 850) il 0 O (1132000 (9.814)
(2,371) {21,088} (2,531) (B4886) {5 0 0] (344823 {1.831)
2371 B793 0 o 0 a 0 11,164 o
Q 27210 14 0 [ Li| i 27 230 o
a G508 0 i} i Li] i s08 0
0 (21,226} (24 212) (53 346) {7 a i {1035‘90: (11.645)
87,197 713,867 5571 205589 2248 253468 13,002 (1026822 | 84340

31 March 2011 31 March 2012
EAT.332m £10.907m
E5.E7m £1.820m

nil ED.2T5m

£4 486mM nit
£48.695m E13.002m
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Asszets due for closure

As al 31 March 2012, the Authority had taken the decision to close the following assets, which
have a combined net book value of £683 548

* Trigfan Area Housing Office * Rhymney Direct Care Centre

* Oaklands Day Centra * Risca Cash Office

* Aberbargoed Library

Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2012, the Authority has entered into & number of contracts for the construction or
enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment in 2011/2012 and subseguent years
budgeted 1o cost £27.274m. Similar commilments at 31 March 2011 were £18.834m The:
major commilments are:

201002041 204172012

£000 E000
Highways and Bargoed Retzil Plaleay 163 ]
Transportation: Bargoed By Pass 1,624 (g1
Ysirad Fawr Highway Improvemeanis 8,504 2534
South EastWales Transport Alliance 2,344 1,986
St Cenydd Sale Routes to Schoals o962 o
Elackwood Comprehansive SRTS (1] 240
Sirhowy Enlerprise Way 820 B4
Regicnal Transpon Consarfia 710 270
Education; St James Primary Schaoal 500 200
Aperbargoed Primary Schoaol 150 0
Cwm Hor Primary School 3057 1627
Hendre Infanis School L] 404
Rhiw Syr Dafedd Primary School a 150
Yegol lfar Bach i 230
Fantside Primary School 0 140
StMarting Comprehensiwe School 0 125
51 Cenydd Comprehensive Schoal o 100
St Nans Comprehensive Schoaol 0 4,000
Urban Renewal: Bargoed Retail Plateay 0 3172
Mewbridge Regensration 0 6,792
Bargoed Regeneration Q 3,483
Economic
Develogment: Cwimecarn #] 456
18,834 27274
Revaluations

The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures all Property, Plant and Equipment
required to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. Assets included in
the Balance Sheet at fair value at 31 March 2012 have also been revalued in the current year
to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their falr value at the year
end. All valuations were carried out internally. Valuations of land and buildings were carried
out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations of vehicles, plant,
furniture and equipment are based on current prices where there is an active second-hand
market or the latest list prices adjusted for the condition of the assat.
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23. Heritage Assets

B

E =

L B R
Reconciliation of the carrying Value of Heritage =~ ¥ 3 2 EE
Assets held by the Authority d5a 5 -

E000 £000 E00D

Cost or Valuation
1 April 2010 5496 BT 8,563
Fevaluabions 117 0 117
31 March 2011 8,613 67 8,680
Cosl or Valuation
1 April 2011 9613 &7 9,680
Disposals (180) 0 (180}
Rewalualions d45 150 S0e
Impairment Losses{reversals ) recognised in the
Revaluation Resere (1.418) ] (1.416)
31 March 2012 8463 217 8,680

The Authority has not provided a five year summary of transactions in respect of Heritage
Aszsets as it is not practicable o do so.

Other Land and Buildings

The collection of Heritage Assels includes a semi fortified manor housa, mining musaum,
ancient chapel and a handball court.  An iron Industry museum was previously included, but
was sold in October 2011, Details of valuations, additionz and disposalz of Land and
Buildings Heritage Assels are recorded on the Authority's Fixed Asset Register, whilst details
of Civic Regalia is kept on a separate register by the Mayors assistant  Members of the
public can gain access to the museums and other buildings on a daily basis

Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains
and |losses) in accordance with the Authority's accounting policies on property plant and
equipment. The carrying amounts of hentage assets are reviewad wheare thera is avidence of
impairment for heritage assels, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or
breakage or where doubls arise as to its authenticity, Any impairment is recognisad and
measured in accordance with the Authority's general policies on impairment — see note 1 -
summary of significant accounting policies, The trustees of the Authority's Museumn will
occasionally dispose of heritage assets which have a doubtful provenance or are unsuitable
for public display. The proceeds of such iterms are accounted for in accordance with the
Authority's general provisions relating to the disposal of property, plant and eguiprment.
Dispozal proceeds are disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and are
accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting reqguiremnents relating o capital
expenditure and capital receipts (again see note 1 - summary of significant accounting
policies)

Babell Chapel

This asset is a small Welsh Calvinistic Methodist Chapel built in 1827 and houses the grave
‘of the 19" Century Welsh Language poet, Istwyn. The asset was valued at 31 March 2012
using the existing use value, The Intemal Valuers canried out this valuation
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Dren Museum

This asset, in Butetown, Rhymney is a Grade || listed property built in the 1830s. It offered
visitors & glimpse of what it would have been like to live in & 18" Century *lrenworking
Household”, The Authority sold the asset in October 2011

Ellint Calli ing House

This asset is an histerical mining museum. It was valued at 31 March 2012 using depreciated
replacement cost  The addilions during the year related to remedial works. The Authority's
Museum also holds a collection of historical items which are not recognised on the Balance
Sheel as cost information is not readily available and the Authority believes that the benefits
of obtaining the valuation for these items would not justify the cost. Nearly all the items in the
collection are believed to have a value of less than £50 and as far as the Authority is aware
ng individual item is worth more than £500.

Liancaiach Fawr
Liancaiach Fawr is a fortified Manor House. This was valued at 31 March 2012 using existing

use value. The Manor House also holds a small collection of items which are not recognised
on the Balance Sheet as cost information is not readily available and the Authority believes
that the benefits of obtaining the valuation for these items would not justify the cost. Nearly all
the items in the collection are believed to have a value of less than £50 and as far as the
Authority is aware no individual item is worth more than £500.

Handball Court, Nelson
This is a traditional Handball Court that is the last remaining in Wales. This has been valued

on a depreciated replacement cost basis.

Clvie ali

The Authority has a collection of civic chains relating to Caerphilly County Borough Council
and a number of former authorities. These chains were valued by Thomas Fattorini Limited, a
firm of specialist jewellers, in 1599 at £66,848. The collection was valued by Thomas Fattorini
Limited in 2012 at £216,550.

The Autharity also holds a number of Civic gifts. It is considered that none of these aifts are of
significant value warranting disclosure within the Authority's accounts and recognised upon
the balance sheet.

24. Heritage Assets: Change in Accounting Policy

The Code of Practice on Local Authonly Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011412
introduced a change to the treatment in accounting for heritage assets held by the Authority.
As set out in our summary of accounting policies, the Authority now requires heritage assets
o be carried in the balance sheet at valuation.

Heritage Assets

For 201172012 the Authority is required to change its accounting policy for heritage assais
and recognise them at valuation. Previously, heritage assets were either recognised as Land
and Buildings in the Property, Plant and Equipment classification in the Balance Sheet The
Authority's accounting policies for recognition and measurement of heritage assets ara set out
in the summary of accounting policies (note 1).

In applying the new accounting policy, the Authority has identified that the assets that were
previously held as land and buildings within property, plant and eguipment at £9.563m, should
now be recognised as heritage assets and measured al £8.4623m Net Book Value in respect
of Land and Buildings and £217k Met Book Value in respect of Civic Regalia. Details of
movements are shown in Note 23 above whilst details of prior year adjustments are shown in
Mote 54
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25. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below
(including the value of assets acquired under finance leases and PFI contracts), together with
the resources that have been uzed o finance 1L Whera capital expanditure is to be financed
in future years by charges to revenue as assels are used by the Authority, the expenditure
resulis in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital
expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed.

31 March
Restated

2011 2012

E000 E0OD
Dpening Capital Financing Requirsmeant 295436 292,133
Capital Investment:
Operational Assets 38424 43,854
Imvest o Save 219 2320
Intangible Assels 5 ag2
Revenue Expendilure funded from Capital Under Statule 10,478 6255
Sources of Anance:
Graniz and olher confributions (35.582) (31, 488)
Capital Expenditure Funded from Revenue (5,940} (14 253)
Capital Receipls Sel Aside {541} {523)
Minimum Revenue Provision {(11,017) {10.978)
Commutation Adjustment 423 457
Cloging Capital Fnancing Requirement 282133 288,136

Dwetails of the restatement to the comparative figures are set out in Note 54,
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26. Long Term Debtors

Car Loans
Housing - Right ta Buy
Housging Advances

Transferred Deb - Former Authorities

Cfher

27.  Inventories

Balance held at start of year

Purchazes

Recognised as an expense in
tha year

Wiritlen off balances
Reversals of write-offs in
Previous years

Balance held at end of year

31 March 31 March
2011 2012
E00D E000
218 169
45 a
B Td
174 120
24 15
548 409
Client Services
Conzumabla Maintenance Work in
Stores Materials Progress Total
2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
EQDO £0:00 EQ0DD £000 E00D £000 EQDD E000
271 305 LT L49 54 04 Bog QR
J.868 3048 2,107 2,044 ar 67 | 6062 8059
2E31) (3,985) | (2.122) (2.023) {47 (85) | (6.0000 (6.073)
] (1 9} o 0 o (12) 1)
0 i) 1] 0 V] 0 ] 0
306 287 549 5T0 94 TG o948 833
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28. Debtors

Debtors

Central Government Bodies
Other Local Authorities

NHS Bodies

(her Entities and Individuals

Debtors can be further analysed as
follows:

Trade Customers:

Council lenanls

Reserved deblors

Sundry deblors

Tax Payers - Council Tax

Housing Benefit Sundry Debtors

Receivables from Related Parties:
Grants

Oiher Local Authorilies

Other Public Bodies

FPrepayments;

Cther Amounts:

HM Revenue & Customs - Tax
HM Revenue & Customs - WaT
Car Loans

Housing Advancas

Housing Right to Buy

3 March 2011

31 March 2012

Grose  Provision it Gross  Provision Mt

£000 £000 E000 E000 £000 E00D
15815 0 15815 26,130 1] 26,135
2538 1] 2,539 2451 0 2451
314 ] 314 B2 o 362
16,717 {4 (59) 12 548 16,747 (4,333) 12414
35,385 {4,088]) 31,318 45,699 (4,333) 41,366

31 Mareh 2011 31 March 2012

Gross  Provision Mat Gross  Provision Mat

£000 £000 E000 E0Q0 E000 E000
1.204 {596} ol 1,186 (918) 2THE
3382 (274) 3,108 3,688 {(170) 3518
G, rid (67T6) G204 6481 (567 5814
4336 (1471) 2 BG5S 4,048  (1.415) 2533
1435 {1.053) 382 1,582 (1,263) 329
3,082 0 3082 9243 0 9243
2,538 4] 2,538 2451 ] 2451
8,354 0 9364 10,579 ] 106749
751 0 751 1,184 0 1,189
’Y 0 ar gz L] a2
2235 i 2,235 4 G094 L] 4 954
162 Q 162 122 L] 122
8 L] B k2] 0 L]
16 L] 16 15 | 15
35385 (4,069) 31,316 45699  (4,333) 41,366
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Central Government Bodies include
Government Grants Deblors, which
comprise:

Education Suppon Grants

Laptogs for Schools Grant

Foundation Fhase Grani

School Effectiveness Grant

Basic Skills Grant

School Mik Subsidy

Frimary School Free Breakfast Initiative
Sports Development Grant

A4l Grant

Domestic Violence Granl

Community Safety ! Crime Reduction
Substance Msuse Gram

European Regional Development Fund
Local Regeneration Fund

Eurspean Social Fumnd

Town Centre and Environmental Grants
Invasive Species Grant

Department for Economy & Transport
Fairer Charging Grant - Social Sendces
Housing Subsidy Grant

29. Cash and Cash Equivalents

21 March 31 March

2011 2012
E000 £000
721 187
19 0
o 4 881
0 1,568
266 B4
131 119
277 286
11 D
0 75
o 14
34 0
534 927
24 24
54 79
B35 905
171 23
100 0
8 0
23 o
73 0
3,082 9,243

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements:;

Cash in hand
Cash &l Bank
Bank owerdraft

Total cash and cash equivalents

31 March 31 March
2011 2012
EQQOD £000

L B4
6,186 5,753
{1,235) {106}
5,043 5. T36
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30, Craditors

31 March 3 March

2011 2012

Creditors E000 E£000
Central Government Bodies (5,837) (5.318)
Ciher Local Authorities (&G04} (5,226)
Bodies External to Ceniral Govemment {1,745} (4, 282)
NHS Bodias (BET) (1612}
Public Corporations and Trading Funds {176} (1]
Difver Enfibes and Indivduals (45 928) (44 1GE)
Total Creditors excluding loans (64,157} (60,818)
Loans repayable within one year {2.116) (470
Local bonds repayable within one year (10 {10
Total Creditors (56.283) (61,0986)

31 March 31 March

Central Government Bodies include Government 2011 2012

Grant Creditors com prising: E£0:00 000
Housing Subsidies {111} {24)
Basic Skills Agency (110 (103)
Assembly Learning Grant - Sludent favards {138} (135)
Early Years Development {73 (73
Behavour Management Training {15) (13)
Aufistic Spectrum Disorder (Gl (&0)
School Based Counselling (216) (161)
Hchool Effectiveness {25) LI
School Special Grant [E:3] {8)
School Meals Subsidy 27 (27)
RAISE Grant (96) (95)
Communifty Focus Grant {14) (14)
Learning and Flay Granl (25) i29)
Post 16 year olds (223) (51)
Foundation Phase Filot (28) (Z6)
Student fawvards (23E) (238)
Cymiorih (20) o
Specialis] Equipment Tor Learmers Grant (10) {10}
Social Sereces Joint Working Grant (13) i}
Social Sendces Courl Fees Grant (34) (34}
Social Serdces Short Breaks Grant (34) {34)
Social Seraces [T Consorfium Gran {6} 4]
Independence & Wellbaing Grant (18) 0
Special Educational Needs Grants 1] {51)
Oither (21) (19)
{1,663) {1,203)

Included in “Other Local Authorities” s £4 558 due to lsle of Anglesey County Council in
respect of the dizsolution of the former Resikduary Body for Wales. This body formerly existed
o realise the value of cerain local authority assets following kecal governmeant reorganisation
in 199G, The balance will be paid out within the rext financial year, all other balances having
been distributed in accordance with an agreed basis of allocation, to the other Welsh local
authorities,
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31. Movements in Provisions

Social
Short Term Provisions Services Corporate Insurance
Provision Prowvision Provision Total
E000 £000 E000 E£000
Balance at 1 April 2011 (584) (304) {1.297) (2,185)
Transfer tofdrom long term provisions in
20112012 17 LI (162) (145)
Addiional provisions made in 2011/2012 0 (300) (316) (B16)
Amounts used in 20112012 10 ] 216 226
Unused amounts reversed in 2011/2012 26 304 386 716
Balance at 31 March 2012 {531) {200} 1,173) (2,004)
Social
Long Term Provigions Services  Corporate  Insurance
Provision  Prowision  Provision Total
EDDD £000 E000 E£000
Balance at 1 April 2011 {103} {4,704) (3,802) (8,789)
Additional provisions made in 20112012 L] 271} (947} {1.218)
Unused amounts reversed in 2011/2012 42 a 1,158 1,200
Transfer io shorl lerm provisions/creditors in
201152012 (17} i 162 145
Balance at 31 March 2012 (78) (5,065) {3,519) (8,662)

Insurance provision - exists to cover assessed outstanding self-insured liabilities in raspeact
of existing claims. A separale Insurance earmarked reserve also exists, to meat potential
insurance liabilities, as detailed on page 104, The provision is released an nually as requirad
to cover insurance liability claims.

Corporate provision — exists to cover the Authority's potential liabilities in respect of Equal
Pay and Job Evaluation back pay settlements. It is anticipated that these liabilities will be
settled in future years. Part of the provision also relates to the former Mid Glamergan County
Council as outlined in Mote 32. Any release is subject to finalisation of the outstanding
liabilities by the lead authority, Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council.

The Authority made & decision o withdraw from the ESIS Consortium with effect from 31
August 2012. The Authority has made provision within the acecunts for its contribution to the
anticipated lease rental liability until 30 June 2014, together with any future dilapidations costs
arising once the building is vacated in 2014,

Included within the short term Corporate Provision is a provision in respect of the Carbon
Reduction Commitment (CRC), The 2011/2012 financial year is the first for which there is an
obligation to purchase and surrender CRC allowances for carbon dioxide emissions. A
provision of E238 748 has been set up to ensure that costs are recognised in the year in
which the energy has been usad.

Social Services provision - includes provision for 5117 Mental Health Act 1983 liabilities in
relation to mental health service clients charged in error, At this time, the Authority is unable
to anticipate the likely date of release for this provision, as any release is reliant upon clients
submitting claims. The short-term element of the provision relates to re-instatement work at
the former Hawtin Park offices.
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32, Contingent Liabilities

Former Authorities

As explained on page 7, the previously outstanding disaggregation position in respect of the
former Mid Glamorgan County Council has now been resolved and an agreed rate of
contribution has been agreed between each of the successor Authorities.

The Authority has & potential liability of £0.120m in respect of schemes undertaken by the
former Mid Glamorgan County Council. The Authority made provision for £0.043m in respect
of settled schemes in its 2011/2012 accounts. The settements of such liabilties remain
pending. Any currently unknown liabilities that may subsequently arise, due to the action of
the former Rhymney Valley District Council and Ishwyn Borough Council, as well as the Mid
Glamorgan and Gwent County Councils, may also have to be met by the Authority, either in
whole or in part.

Equal Pay

The Authority had received a large number of equal pay claims. The Authority made offers to
vanous individuals in settlemant of the potential equal pay lisbility in the financial year
2010/2011. The offers were accepted in the majority of cases, which has reduced any
potential equal pay liability for future years. It is impossible to quantify what, if any, the
potential equal pay lability is likely to be in future years. It is anticipated that the remaining
provision represents a prudent approach based on information available to date.

As a result of retrospective legislation, compensation payments made since 1 April 2008

could now be classified as pensionable. Having taken independent legal advice the Authority

does not believe that there will be any further pension liability. Consequently, given the

uncertainty, the Authorty has nol made a provision in respect of pansion contributions for

Eﬂ;gansatiun paymenis. Qur esiimate of the level of pension confribution i approximately
L05m.

Landfill Allowance Scheme (Wales)

As a result of legislative changes in the Landfill Allowance Scheme (Wales), the Authority
may be liable for penalties in respect of the scheme. The exact liability is not quantifiable at
present

Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited (MMI)

During 1992/93 Municipal Mutual Insurance Ltd, the insurers of both Rhymnay Valley District
Council and Islwyn Borough Council ceased accepting new business. As a result the Council
may have to meet any unseftled claims formerly coverad by MMIL. The maximum potential
liability, which the Council could face, is £E3.171m. However both former councils anterad nto
a Scheme of Arrangement through which all outstanding claims should be settled.

The Supreme Court in the employers Liahbility Policy Trigger Litigation relating fo
mesothelioma claims handed down a judgement on the 28 March 2012, The Supreme Court
found against the company. The judges ruled that the insurer who was an the risk at the time
of the employee's exposure o asbestos was liable to pay compensation for the employee's
mesothelioma. The judgement has significant implications not only for the Company and its
members but also for the scheme creditors who are party to the contingent Schame of
Arrangement. The MMI Board of Directors is now seeking legal, financial and actuarial advice
from its professional advisors in order 1o determine the full implications of the judgement and
the most appropriate way forward for the Company. There is currently no indication that this
judgement will trigger the Scheme of Arrangement.

The Authority has therefore treated this potential liability as a contingent lability.
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33. Other Funds

The Authority helds a number of accounts on a trustee basis, on behalf of clients, which are
not consolidated in the balance sheet,

The total value of these accounts as at 31st March 2012 was:

E162,761 - relating to Education Trust Funds that are administered by the Head of Corporate
Finance, (E161.657 in 2010/2011). The Education trust funds are held to provide prizes and
awards to pupils in the Authority's schools. Of these funds, £172 is vested in shareholdings
and £162,589 is held in bank deposits (£2, 772 and £158 885 respectively in 2010/2011).
There are no other underlying assets or liabilities. The Trust Funds received £1,250 in
dividends and interest on the funds during the year (£1.259 in 2010/2011) and Incurred
expenditure of £150 (£100 in 2010/2011).

In addition, the Director of Social Services administers funds on behalf of clients in residantial
homes. These accounts do not have official trustee status. The total value of these accounts
as at 31 March 2012 was £3 649 256 (£3,319.356 as at 31 March 201 1).

34. Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account is required to balance the differences between
gains and losses such as discounts or premia on the early repayment of debt recognised
under the Code requirements and those that are required to be met under statute from the

Council Fund or Housing Revenue Account. The balance is reduced to nil over the life of tha
loans.

20102011 2011/2012
E000 £000
Balance as at 1 April |2,258) [1.982)
Discounts on early repayment of loans 0 0
Amortised to revenue in the year 284 283
Effective interest rate adjustment (10} {10}
Balance at 31 March {1,982) {1,709)
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35. Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve replaced the Fixed Asset Restatement Account (FARA) on 1 April
2007 and was included in the Balance Sheet with a zerp opening balance. The closing
position on the Reserve at 31 March 2012 therefore only shows revaluation gains
accumulated sinca 1 April 2007,

Restated
201072011 2011/2012
EQDD EODD EQDD

Balance as at 1 April (340,324) (360,453
Diownward realuaton of assets and impairment
losses nof charged io the Surplus and Deficll on
the Provision of Sepdces 47H 22,794
Surplus on Revaluation of Azsets {28, 741) (38 .497)
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current
assels nol posted o the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Senices {28 263) {15,703)
Difierence bebtareen fair wlue deprecation and
histoncal cost depreciabion 7065 9,503
Apcumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 168 &.a407
Amount wiithen off o the Capital Adjustment
Account B,134 14,800
Balance as at 31 March (360.453) (361,256)

Dietails of the restatemant to the comparative figures are set out in Moie 54.
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36. Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account was implemented on 1 April 2007 from the closing balances
on both the FARA and the Capital Financing Account, {as mentioned in note 35 above). The
account contains the amounts that are required by statute to be set aside from capital receipts
for the repayment of external loans, the amount of revenue and capital receipts used to
finance capital expenditure and compensatory adjustments from the above-mentioned
Revaluation Reserve to convert current value depreciationfimpairment loss debits to historical

Cost

Balance as at 1 April

Sel Aside - Capital Receipls

Set Aside - Deferred Capital Receipts
Funding:

Revenue funding applied

Capital grants and confributions applied
Total Funding

MRP
Commutation Adjusiment

Depreciation
In year charge
Attributable 1o revaluations
Writlen back on revalualions
Written back on disposals

Amorlis ation of non-enhancing expenditure

Assel Revaluafions / impalrments:
Price adjustmenis

Disposals - Council Fund
Dizposals - HRA

Revenue Expenditure funded fram Capital

Funding of revenue expenditure funded from capital

Invest o save
Amortisation of Intangible Azsets

Total capital costs
Balance as at 31 March

Details of the restatement to the comparative figures are set out in Naote 54,
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Restated
201012011 201172092
E000 E000 E0DD £000
(474,4485) (438,707)
(5TH) (511)
{63} {12
{5,940) (14,258)
{26,838) (26, 433)
{32,778) T (40,682
(11,017) {10,978)
422 457
{10,595) {10,519)
38 188 34 407
{7 9B5) {9,503)
(49 442) (38 362)
4 {508}
(19,222) (13.881)
15,368 11.189
81,079 100,803
810789 100,803
221 1,800
il )
221 1,850
10,478 6,256
__(8.755) __(5.085)
1,723 1,201
219 2,320
345 362
69,157 B3425
(438,707) (386.457)
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37. Deferred Capital Receipts

Deferred capital receipizs are amounts derived from the sale of assets, which will be receivad
in instalments ocver agreed periods of time, Under statutory arrangements, the Authority does
not freat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by
cash receipts. When the deferred cash sefflement takes place, amountis are transferred to the
Capital Receipis Reserve. Such recsipts arise principally from mortgages on the sale of
council houses, which form the main part of housing right to buy/advances under long-term
debtors (note 26, page 92 and note 40 balow).

201042011 201172012
E00D EDDD

Balance at 1 Aprll (145) (62}
Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as parl of the

gainfoss on disposal to the Com prehensive Income and

Expandilure Statemeant a i
Transfer fo the Capital Receipts Resere upon receipt of cash 83 17
Balance at 31 March (62) {45)

38. Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for posi-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with
statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post employment benefits in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilites recognised to reflect inflation, changing
assumptlicns and investment returns on any resources set azide to meet the costs. However,
stafutory arrangements reguire benefits eamed to be financed as the Authority makes
employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is
directly responsible, The debil balance on the Pensions Reserve therafore shows a
substantial shorifall in the benefits earned by past and currant employvess and the resources
the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding
will have been set aside by the time the benefits come (o be paid.

2010/2011 201112012
EQOD £000

Balance as at 1 April 310,553 232716
Actuanal gains or losses on pansions assets and
liabilities (45 BEE) 51,346
Reversal of items relating 1o relirement benefits debited or
cradited fo the Surplus or Defcit on the Prowsion of
Sendces in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (7.045) 25,286
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to
pansioners payable in the year (24,064) {23,125)
Balance at 31 March 232,776 288,283

S i Fage

101



Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

39. Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on
the Council Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences eamed but not taken in
the year, &.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements
require that the impact on the Council Fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the
Account.

201072011 201112012
E000 EDDD £000

Balance at 1 April 5218 5,240
Setlemeant or cancellation of accrual made af the end of the
precading year {5.218) {5240}
Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 5,240 52240
Amount by which officer remuneration charged fo the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement an an
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in
the year in acordance with stalulory requirements 22 (11}
Balance at 31 March 5,240 5229

40. Deferred Liabilities
31 March 2011 M h 2012

£000 £000
Finance Leases (440) (416)
PFI Liabiliies - Road (29,243) (26,272)
PF| Liabilities - Schools (18,259) {17,705)
Leisure Commuted Sums {374) [(A44)
Former Gwenl County Council Debt {213} {146)
Balance carried forward at 31 March (48 528) [44,883)

Finance Leases - see note 14, page 75.
PFI Liabilities — for both Road and School see note 12, page 71.

Leisure Commuted Sums are monies derived from contributions from developers for which
the Authority has an obligation to ensure the provision and annual maintenance of leisure
amenities (e.g. open spaces and play facilities) on newly constructed housing estales elc

The former Gwent County Council Debt relates to debt held by that authority that was unable

to be disaggregated on reorganisation. Newport City Council manages this debt with
repayments being made to them by the Authority annually.
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41. Movements in Direct Services Organisation Reserves

Balance at Appropriations  Appropriations Balance at
1 April 2011 From Reserves ToReserves 31 March 2012

Resarve; E000 E000 E000 E00D0

Highways Maintenancs (48E) JBa (o) (158)

Housing and Building Senices (118) 55 0 (B3)
(606) 443 {28) (261)

These reserves represent the cumulative surplus carried forward by the Authority's trading
organisalions. The reserves are used to fund fulure expenditura, and ks use is under the
control of individual direct service organisations.

42. Movementis in Capital Earmarked Reserves

Balance at Appropriations  Appropriations Balance at
1 April 2011 From Reserves To Reserves 31 March 2012

Resarve: E000 E£000 E000 E000
Housing Earmarked Capital a a (2.537) (2537
Corporate (5, 408) 4 722 (2,118} (3.802)
Private Housing (153) 167 (21} L
Leisure (745) 122 {42) (B65)
Educatian (3,900) 0 (4 96d) (8, BE4)
Highways and Trans poriation (1,334) 247 0 (1,087
Praparty 0 i (1,1113 1,411
Fublic Senices (477 18 (&1) (510)
(13.015) 5,276 {10,844) {18,583}

These reserves represent amounts set aside to finance the Authority's Council Fund capital
programme, the majority of which are earmarked to specific schemes,
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43. Movements in Service Under /| Overspend Earmarked Reserves
Balance at Appropriations Appropriations  Balance at
1 April 2011 From Reserves ToReserves 31 March 2012
2rva; £000 £000 E000 E£000
Lifelong Learning and Leisure {1.032) 204 (308) {1.136)
Economic Development and Toursm {205} i] #] {205)
Education {1,225) 1,539 {1,722) {1,408)
Corporale Sendces (r01) 836 {1.111) (97E)
Paolicy and Central Servces (2ag) o a (289)
Social Senices (B56) 362 (197) (791}
Direciorate of the Emdronment (1,151} 1,230 (1,281) {1.212)
{5,558) 4171 (4,629) {6,017)

These reserves represent the cumulative under and overspend balances carned forward by

the Authority’s services in accordance with

its Financial Regulations, The reserves are used

to fund future expenditure, and their use is under the control of the individual service areas

44,  Movements in Insurance Earmarked Reserves

Balance at Appropriations Appropriations  Balance at
1 April 2011 From Reserves ToReserves 31 March 2012
Reserve: £000 E000 E000 E£000
Insurance Resane (2.281) 0 (2,318) {4,609)
Rizk Managemen Resens (675) 270 i {405)
{2,968) 270 {2,318) {5,014)

These reserves are established to meet assessed sel-insured possible liabilities associated

with potential claims, and also to fund risk management

potential cost of future claims.
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45, Movement in Schools Earmarked Reserves

Reserve:

Comprehensive Schools:

Bedwas Comprehensie School
Blackwood Compréhensive School
Cwmcarn High School

Healddu Comprehensive School
Lewis School Pengam

Lewis Girls Comprehensive Schoal
Mewbridge Comprehensive School
Cakdale Comprehensiage School
Yagol Gylun Cwem Bhymnl
Rhymney Comprehensive School
Risca Compréhensive School
Pontllanfraith Comprehensive School
5 Cenydd Com prehensive School
Trinily Felds Special Schoaol
Frimary Schools:

Bedwas Infants

Fontlaniraith Primary School
Greenhill Pimary

5l James Primary School

Vhite Rose Primarny School

Yegol Gynradd Gymraeg Caarfili
Rhiw Syr Dafydd Primary School
Yegol ¥ Lawnt

Olher Comprehensive and Primany
Schools with balances under £100k
each

Total Schools Balances

Balance at Appropriations  Appropriations Balance al
1 April 2011 From Reserves To Reserves 31 March 2012
£000 £000 E000 £000

273) 96 1] (177}
(233) o4 Q (49
(298] 143 4] {156)
(232) 37 a {195)
{101} a2 i (18)
{J0E) 122 Q (182}
{(272) 112 ] (160}
(118) &9 L1 (58)
(140} 17 o (123)
(201} i] () (210)
(258) 13 a (242}
(136} 132 a ()
(157} 180 a 23
(158) i] {191} (349)
(103} 50 1] {53)
(114) 75 o {38)
(118} 51 1] {G5)
(210} 7@ 1] (34)
(112} 74 ] {33y
(148) 107 1] {41}
(133) g1 i] {52)
(110} 73 i} (A7)
(2877 1,183 (296} {1.9940)
{6,802} 3,047 (496) {4,251}

Thesa reserves represent the cumulative balances carried forward by individual schools in
accordance with the scheme of delegation. The reservas are used o fund future expenditure,
and their use is under the control of the individual schools, and is not available for the

Authority to use for other purposeas.

46. Movement in Other Housing Reserves

Details of the movement upon Housing reserves are included with the Notes to the Housing

Fevenue Account Summary on page 125, Note 8.
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47.  Movement in Other Earmarked Reserves

Balance at Appropriations Appropriations  Balance at

1 April 2011 From Reserves ToReserves 31 March 2042

Reserve: E000 E000 EQ0D E000
Farmer Authority Liabiliies Resane (180) 0 0 (180}
Waste Management Resere (BEE) 0 0 (B85)
Superannuation Resene [25) o 0 (25}
PFl Equalizalion Reserve (Schools) (8,193) 0 (445) {9.638)
FFl Equalizalion Resere (Roads) {2.3a8) 1] (215) {2,603}
PG Initialives Resens {450} 0 Q (450)
Senvice Initiative Reserves {1,122) 271 {1,751} (2,802)
Carbaon Trust Fund Resene (368) 135 (102} (338)
frea Forum Reserne (81) 4] i) (B1)
Community Regeneration Fund Resene (2B3) 0 (23) (306}
Cemeteries Resere {48) 0 (30 (TH)
LABG] Resars {585) 0 a {5E88)
Electoral Admin Reserve {152) 5 {97 {2d4)
PFl Schools Earmarked Resene {177) 0 {7 (256)
Health & Safety Iniliatives Resere (882) 53 0 (828)
Corporate PC Replacemenl Resers (523) 26 {339) (H3E)
Other Resermes (54) i (658} (752)
{17,088) 450 {2.775) {20,387}

A summary of the purposes of these reserves is provided below:

Former Authority Liabilities Reserve existed to meet certain employes paymeants made to
staff, formerly employed by Rhymney Valley District Council, in accordance with their
conditions of employment. This element of the reserve was cleared in 2010/2011 and any
future liabllity will be met from the service accounts of the employing department. The
remainder of the reserve exists to meet liabilities arising as & result of the actions or
omissions of the former authorities detalled on page 7.

Waste Management Reserve exists to meet any future costs incurred in respect of landfill
sites

Superannuation Reserve exists to meet additional pension related costs, including the
effects of early retirements and increases in employer's contribution rates.

PFl Equalisation Reserves exist o match PFI funding and unitary charge payments over the
perncd of the contract and is described in greater detail elsewhere (s22 note 12 on page 71).

Performance Incentive Grant Initlatives Reserve represents amounts set aside to
complete specific schemes undertaken with funds allocated from the Authority's Outcome
Agreement Grant allocation (formerly the Performance Incentive Grant).

Service Initiatives Reserve exists to fund expenditure upon service specific initiatives.

Carbon Trust Fund Reserve exists to provide match funding to draw down grant from the
Carbon Trust, to fund major works implementing energy efficiency measures,
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Area Forum Reserve exists to meet any costs incurred associated with anviranmental works
undertaken by the Authority as identified by the local area partnarships,

Community Regeneration Fund Reserve represents unclaimed funds from the Community
Regeneration Fund voluntary sector allocations

Cemeteries Reserve exists to meet any costs incurred with the general upkeep and
maintenance of Authornity owned cemeteries.

LABGI Reserve exists to promote economic growth within the borough and arises from funds
provided under the Local Authority Business Growth Incentive grant scheme funded by the
Welsh Government.

Electoral Admin Reserve exisis to meat the implementation of the Electoral Administration
Act 2006.

PFl Schoolz Earmarked Reserve exists for reinvestment into the PFI schoals for additional
works that are outside the scope of the PFI projects.

Health and Safety Initiatives Reserve exists to promote health and safety across the
authority.

Corporate PC Replacement Reserve exists to fund the replacement of computers
throughout the authority,

Other Reserves represents a number of smaller reserves, held for a variety of purposes.
Mone of the reserves are individually significant enough to be separately identified

48. Cash Flow Statement - Adjustments to Surplus or Deficit

Restated
201072011 2011/2012
E000 E000
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on provision of services
for non-cash movements
Deprecalion and Impairmeant 85212 111,841
#5159 Pensions Adjustment (31,1100 2161
Fewenue Expendiure funded from Capital undar Siatule 1,842 3520
Amortisation of Intangible Azseats 345 362
Movermnents on Provsions (3,174} (308)
Caontributions to / from Resarmes (10,456) {15,338)
{Increase) / Decrease in Stocks {500 15
{Increase) / Decrease in Deblors (5.134) {10,735)
Increase / (Decreasa) in Provision for Bad Debd 102 264
Increase { (Decrease) in Credilors 5,566 (3,563)
43,243 B4, THE

Dwatails of the restatement to the comparative figures are set out in Note 54,
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201002011 201112012
E000 E£000
Adjust for tems included in the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are investing and financing activities
Capital granis credited lo surplus or deficit on provision of sendces (27 465) (26, 756)
Froceeds from the sale of property plant and equipment 5,533) 1272
[32.988) [25,484)
49. Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities
The cash flows for operating activities include the following ttems:
201002011 201172012
£000 E00D
Interest receivwed {257} (245])
Inferest paid 11,033 10,531
10,776 10,286
30. Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities
201042011 201112012
£000 E000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (28 .024) (34,239)
Purchase of short-term and long-term invesiments (1,038875) {1.322419)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment and
intanglble assets 5,940 14 2508
Proceeds from the sale of shor-term and long-lerm investments 1,023,950 1,331,582
Other receipts from investing activiies 27,743 24 TEG
{9,366) 13,949
51.  Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities
2010/2011 201152012
E000 E000
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities
relating to finance leases and on-balance sheet PFl conlracks (139 (302)
Repayments of short-lerm and long-term borrowing (3.322) {7.938)
Other payments for financing activities 2 0
[3.459) (8,238)
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52. Amounts Reported For Resource Allocation Decisions

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Service Reporfing Code of Practice.
However, decisions about resource allocations are faken by the Authority's Cabinet on thea
basis of budget reports analysed across directorates. These reports are prepared on a
different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In particular:

# Mo charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation. revaluation
and impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation Reserve and
amortisations are charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement).

= The cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer's pensions
confributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year.

+ Expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged o
directorabas.

oo

E ‘E ] E 5 E ] ui a

=08 _ = = i c2E
Restated 2010/2011 ﬁ_gﬁ gfg %E EL'E §EE
Service Information D35 @®o oo of fodg Total

£000 £000 E000 E0DD EQD0 E000

Fees, charges & other
sendce income (31,407) (21,8094) (B3850) (31,008) (40,788) (188,787)
Government Granis (28,988) (11.968) (14874) (B9,378) &) (125.215)
Total mcome (60,385) (33,863} (VB,564) (100,386) (40,794) (314,002)
Employes expenses 121 560 37 958 J9.824 19,564 5287 224633

Other operaing expeansas T4 784 BB 265 B4.802 125115 33575 386631
Tolal operaling expenses 196,744 106,263 124716 144 679 3§,862 EB11,284

Net Cost of Sendces 136,348  T2400 46152 44283 (1,932} 297,262

Reconciliation to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services:

Cost of Services in Service Analysis 297,262
Taxation and Mon-Specific Grant Income (327 ,944)
Pracapis 11,047
Add amounts not reported to Management: '

Deprecialion, &Amorfisation and Impairment B85 557
Wet Gain or Loss on Disposal of Assels (5.533)
Capital Granis and Conlribulions (27 BaA5)
Minimum Rewenue Provision {10,5585)
IAS 18 Pension adjusiment (31,108)
Aocumulated Absence adjustment 28
Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute 1.723
Surpluz or Deficit on Provision of Services {7.215)

_ Page

108



Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

= 3§
= & E £ o S
Restated Reconciliation % ] & 5 2 E 5 £ gt
to Subjective Analysis ] .E = g8 .EE &EJE
2010/2011: he Z8= o= Te Adw Total
EQ0O EQOD 000 ERDD £0:00 E000
Fees, charges & other
BEMACE INCOMme (188,787) (11,539 a 24 918 2T 824 (147 E84)
Gowmment Grants (125215) (36,400) (263,798) ] 0 (425413
Coundll Tax incomae a 0 (&4, 148) Q 0 (54 148)
Total income (314,002} (48,039) (327 944) 245918 27,824 ([B37,243)
Employee expenses 224 532 0 0 ] 0 224 632
Oiher operaling expenses 386631 G0 460 11,047  (24.818) (27824) 405396
Tofal operating expenses 611,263 80,480 11,047 (24.918) (2T7.B24) 630,028
Met Cost of Services 297,261 12421 (316,897) 0 0 (7,215)
Details of the restalement to the comparative figures are set out in Nole 54,
T g
i B 25 5
o m A m W 1 g -
. g8 38 g £8 58 £:Z5
2011 Service S29 Geg £ s Ee EEE
Information wis B85 o & G Ted Total
£000 £000 L0000 £000 £000 EDQD
Fees, charges & afher
sendce income (31,180) (23,043) (47,182} (35020) (41,729) (178,143)
Govemnment Granls (24494)  (8982) (13,715) (73,301) 0 (120492)
Talal income (55,674} (32,025) (60,877} (108,330) (41,729) {298,635
Employes axpenses 120,754 36,687 37053 22 387 5025 221866
Ciher operating expenses 65062 70418 74830 130398 34,744 375481
Tolal operating expenses 185816 107,085 111,892 4152765 39,7659 58T 327
Met Cost of Serdces 130,142 75,0680 51,015 44 436 {1,960) 2885682
Reconciliation to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services:
Coet of Services in Service Analysis 298,692
Taxation and Mon-Specific Grant Incame (325377
Precepts 11,456
Add amounts not reported fo Management:
Deprecation, Amortisation and Impairment 112,203
Met Gain or Loss on Disposal of Assels 1272
Capital Grants and Confribulions (26.756)
Minimum Revenue Provision (10,519)
145 19 Pension adjusiment 2,161
Accumulated Absence adjustment (11}
Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute 1201
Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services B4, 322
————
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= E s
51 E £ © ]
Reconciliation to ] ¢ & g€ 78 Eaf§
Subjective Analysis == E & a & Et BEh
201112012 hE Zgo= S = Er Ade Total
£000 £000 £ £ EDQDQ E000
Fees, charges & other
senice income (178,143} (14.438) 0 25283 31120 (136.180)
Government Grants (120493 (26.758) (260,607 0 0 (407 B5E)
Council Taxincoma 0 0 (64.770) 0 0 (B4.770)
Total income (288,6368) (41,194) (325,377) 25,283 31,129 (BOE,T95)
Employes expenses 221 866 (36) 0 0 o 221830

Other operating expenses 375462 120,781 11456 (25283) (31,129) 451287

Total operating expenses 587,328 120,745 11,456 (25283) (31,129) 673,117

Met Cost of Services 298,602 79,551 (313,921) 0 0 64,322

53. Jointly Controlled Operations

A joint arrangement is defined as "a confractual arrangement under which the paricipants
engage in joint activities that do not create an entity because it would not be carrying on a
trade or business of ifls own. A contractual arrangement where all significant matters of
operating and financial policy are predetermined does not create an enftity because the
policies are those of its parlicipants, not of a separate entity”,

The Code states that where such joint arrangaments axist, each participant should account
directly for its share of the assels, liabilities, income, expanditure and cash fiows hald within
or arising from the arrangements.

A review of shared praclices within the Authority identified that the following should be
regarded as joint arrangements;

« Catalogue Supplies Service Joint Committea (County Borough Supplies)
Education School Improvement Service (ESIS)

Glamorgan Archive Joint Commities

Greater Gwent Cremation Joint Committes

Gwent Joint Records Committea

Gwent Wide Integrated Community Equipment Service Project (GWICES)
Project Gwyrdd

South East Wales Transport Alliance (SEWTA)

Welsh Purchasing Consoriium

" ¥ ¥ & & ¥ ¥ @

The Authority's share of the Income and Expenditure Account and Balance Sheet of each of
the nine committeas is given balow:

Catalogue Supplies Service Joint Committes

The Catalogue Supplies Service Joint Committes {County Borough Supplies) is a joint
supplies service, established in 1986, by the County Borough Councils of Bridgend,
Caerphilly, Merthyr and Rhondda Cynon Taff. The organisation forms part of the purchasing
and supplies structures of each respective authority, providing a local supplies facility for a
comprehensive range of goods required by schools, direct services and all other authority
corporate servicezs., The Joint Service Is a self-standing organisation, working in a
collaborative partnership with the Procurament Units of the participating authorities.
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Catalogue Supplies Service 201072011 201112012
Joint Committes Taotal CCBC share Tatal CCBC share
E00D £000 E0OD EDOD

Ingome & Expenditure Account

Expenditura o817 1,114 B.218 1,181

Income {5.814) (1,113) (6,376 {1,221}

{Surplus) ! Deficit for the Year 3 1 (1587) {30)

Balance Sheet

Current assels 1,378 264 1,161 222

Current liabilities {B63) {165} {480) (93]

Total Assets less Liabilities 5158 =] 6r2 129

Uszable Resarnes {518} (58] (G68) (128}

Unusable Resenes 3 1 4] (1)
{515) (99) {672) (129)

Education School Improvement Service

The Education School Improvement Service (ESIS) was created on 1 April 1996 and is a joint
committee comprising elected member representation from the County Boroughs of Bridgend,
Caerphilly, Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf. ESIS provides training and adwisory
services 1o the local education authorities and schools in each of its jaint authority areas
together with undertaking inspection work on behalf of other public sector bodies.

Education Im e 2010/2011 2011/2012
Service Total CCBC share Total CCBC share
£000 EQDD £000 £000
Income & nditure Acc
Expanditure 3952 1,104 5 835 1,630
Income {6.5085) {1.817) (6,082) (1,702)
Het Cost of Service {2,553) {(r13) (257) {72)
Fension inlerest cost / expected retum
on assets 328 az 175 49
Met Operating Cost [2,225) (6:21) (B2) (23)
Contributicns ¥] 1] L] i
(Surplus) / Deficit for the Year (2,225) (E21) (82) (23]
Balance Sheet
Fixed assets 18 5 0 0
Current assels 2,082 5B4 2,085 Ha5
Current liabilities {460) (128) (2a0) (&1}
Pension liability {#,411) (2,349) {11,415) {3.188)
Total Assets less Liabilities |6,761) [1,888) [9,610) [2,684)
Capital adjusimeni account {18) 3] ] 0
Pension Resane 8411 2345 11415 3188
Accumulated Absences Resene 42 12 48 13
Earmarked Resenes {11} {3) {11} {3
Ganeral Resepe {1.863) {dE4) {1.842) (514)
6,761 1,888 9,610 2,684
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MNotes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
Glamorgan Archive Joint Committee

The Glamargan Archives Joint Committes comprises electad mambear representation from the
City and County Borough Councils of Bridgend, Caerphilly, Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda
Cynon Taf and Vale of Glamorgan. The commiltea manages and administers the Glamargan
Record Office, which collects, presernves and makes accessible to the public, docurments

relating to the area it serves and maintaing the corporate memory of its constituent
authorities.

Glamorgan Archive Jolnt 201072011 201172012
Committes Total CCBC share Total CCBC share
E00D EDQD E£000 £000
Income & Expenditure Account
Expenditure 1,292 142 1,087 121
Incorme {1.568) {172) {1,480} (183}
Net Cost of Service {2TB) {30) {383} {42)
Interest and invesiment income 341 ar 329 36
(Surplus) [ Deficit for the Year (11 T (54) (B}
Balance Sheet
Long term asseis B 181 B9E 1834 BY3
Current assels T44 a2 T23 80
Current liabilities (B0 E {51} (6}
Leng tenm liabilities (3401} (704} (6,128} (674}
Total Assets less Liabilities 2424 267 2ATE 273
Usable resernes (BT (74} (671} (74}
Unusable resers (1,754) (183) (1.807) (199)
[2.424) (267 {2.478) (273)

Greater Gwent Cremation Joint Committes

The Greater Gwent Cremation Committes is made up of representatives from the City and
County Borough Councils of Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, Newport and
Torfasn. The Joint Commitiee has the responsibility for administering the business of the
Gwent Crematorium, fogether with providing services for bereaved families within the
boundaries of the above-meantioned authorifies.

Greater Gwent Cremation 201052011 201112012
Joint Committee Total CCBC share Total CCBGC share
£000 E£000 £000 £0040

Income & Expenditure Account

Expenditura 930 141 1,336 203

Income {1.391) (211} (1422 {2186)

Met Cost of Service (461) (70) (86) 13)

Financing and Investment Income and

Expendifure 3 0 (12) (2)

Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services (458} 7o) (28] {15}

Actuanal Gains/Losses on Pensions

#ssotsiLiabilities {95) {(15) 115 17

Total Comprehbensive Income and

Expenditure (557} (85) 17 2
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Balance Sheet

Long term assets 1.828 277 1.813 280
Currenl assets 1,100 167 1286 195
Current liabilities (43) Ly (85} (10)
Laong term liabilities {377} (57) (G (58}
Total Assets less Liabilities 2 508 381 2490 37T
Usable Resenes (1,057) (160) (1,221) (188)
Unusable Reserms (1,451) (220 (1,263 (182}

(2,508) [381) {2,490) (377)

Gwent Joint Records Committee

The Gwent Joint Records Committee manages and administers the Gwent Records Office,
which collects, preserves and makes accessible to the public, documents relating lo the area
it serves and maintains the corporate memory of its constituent authorities, namely the City

and County Borough Councils of Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouthshire. Mewport and
Torfasn,

Gwent Jolnt Records Commithes 201042014 201172042

Total CCBC share Total CCBC shars
Income & Expenditure Account E000 E000 E£000 £000
Expenditure 758 113 959 144
Income {1,182) (177 (01 {132)
MNet Cosat of Service (434) (ad) 88 iz
Pension interest cost/ expectad refurn
on assels | a (23} {4}
Net Operating Cost [434) i64) 65 ]
Confributions Q i} 0 o
(Surplus) ! Deficit for the Year {434) 64) (13 ]
Balance Sheet
Current assels 724 108 G638 B3
Current liabilities (261) (39) {240} {35)
Pension liability 63 9 {116) (17
Total Azsets less Liabilities E26 TH 282 41
Pension Resers (63} ) 116 17
General Resene {463 (B9) (398) (58}

{526) (78) (282) 41)

Gwent Wide Integrated Community Equipment Service Project

The Gwent Wide Integrated Community Eguipment Service Project (GWICES) is a
partnership agreement between the five Local Authorities and Local Health Boards (Blzenau
Gwent, Caerphilly, Monmouthshire, Newport and Tortaen) for the provision of an efficient and

effective integrated equipment service to the service users who are resident in the partner
authorities,

Gwent Wide Integrated Community 201002011 201112012

Equipment Service Project Total CCBC share Total CCBC share
E0QD E000 £000 E000

income & Expenditure Account

Expendilura 2787 A4 2805 541

Incame (2,767) (574) {2 GOS) (541)

(Surplus) ! Deficit for the Year 1] 1] ] 0
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MNotes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Project Gwyrdd

Project Gwyrdd is a joint committes comprising the county borough councils of Caerphilly,
Cardiff, Monmouthshire, Newport and the Vale of Glamorgan. It was established in 200902010
to deliver the best long-term, envirenmental, sustainable and cost-effective solution for waste
after recycling and composting has been maximised.

Project Gwyrdd

Income & Expenditure Account
Expenditure

Income

Het Cost of Service

Interest and Imvestmeant income
(Surplus) [ Deficit for the Year
Appropriation from Accumulated
Absences Account

Wet {increase) ! Decrease in General
resene balancs

Balance Sheat

Cument assels

Current liabililies

Total Assets leas Liabilities

Accumulated Absences Reserse
Joint Commities Resenss
Met Warth

South East Wales Transport Alliance

201072011 201112012

Total  CCBCshare Total  CCBCshare

£000 E000 £000 £000
952 190 1,156 231
{1,047) {208} (879) (176)
{95) 18) 277 55
(2} (o) (2} {0}
{o7) 18) 275 55
1 0 0 0
{986) {18) 275 55
1,021 204 772 154
(147} {29) {173) {34)
874 175 599 120
2 o 1 0
(B76) (175 (600) (1200
(874) (175) (588) {120)

SEWTA (The South East Wales Transport Alliance) iz a consortium established on 1 April
2003 by the ten local authorities in South East Wales to carry out their functions in respect of
public transport and some other transport matters, SEWTA works in close liaison with
partners representing public transport operators and usears

South East Wales Transport
Alliance

Income & Expendiiure Account
Expendilung

Income

{Surplus) ! Deficit for the Year
Balance Sheet

Cument assets

Current liabllites
Total Assets less Liabilities

General Resene

201072011 20912012
Total CCBC share Total CCBC share
£000 £000 £000 £000
4 053 405 1,800 1940
{4 016) {401) {1.887) (189}
a7 4 13 1
2353 235 586 Fiii]
(2,274) (227 (BE0Y {69)
TS 8 66 T
(79 {8) (66) )
(79) (8) (66) T}
Fage
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)
Welsh Purchasing Consortium
The Welsh Purchasing Consortium (“the consortium®) is a partnership between sixtesn

County Borough and City Councils of South Wales. The Consortium exists to increase
economies of scale by combining the purchasing requirements of the sixteen autharities.

Total CCBC share Total CCBC share
E000 E£000 £000 E£000
Income & Expenditure Account
Expenditure 165 iz 208 13
Income (238) {16) (244) (15)
Met Expenditure | (Income) (43) (3) {36) (Z)
Appropriations from Reserves:
Accumulated absences accrual (2) {0) 0 0
Net (Surplus) ! Deficit {45) (3] [36) (2)
Balance Sheat
Curreni assels 282 18 I 20
Current Liahiities {3 i) (2] 4]
Tolal Assets less Liabilities 279 18 315 20
General Resene [281) (18) (317) (20
Accumulated Absences Account 2 i 2 1]
Net Worth (279) (18) {315) {20)

54. Prior Year Adjustments
Revaluation of Non-Current Assets

The Authority uses an electronic fixed assets register to record all assels owned by the
Authorily and process the required accounting entries into the accounts. Following a review of
the register a number of amendments to valuations in the prior year accounts were identified.
This is due to inconsistencies between the valuation information, fieed asset register and the
accounts. The amendments impact the balances in respect of Non Current assets, the
Revaluation Reserve, the Capital adjustment account and the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Account

Heritage Assels

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2011/12 introduced a new category of
non-current assets, namely Heritage Assels (see notes 23 and 24) resulting in a change in
accounting policy. Such assets are required to be carred in the Balance Sheet at valuation.
The Authority has had the Civic Regalia valued by External Valuers and has been included on
the Balance Sheet. This adjustment has also impacted upon Property Plant and Equipment
and the Capital Adjustment Account.
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MNotes to the Core Financial Statements (continued)

Movement in Reserves extract

Movement in Reserves during 201002011

(Surpluspdeficil on provsian of senices
{accounting basis)

Adjustments betwean accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations

1 11 hensive |
iture Statement extract;

Central Sendcas to the Public

Culuwral and Relaled Sendces
Enwronmental and Regulaiory Sendces
Planning Searaces

Education and Children's Serdces
Highways and Transpor Senacas

Local Authonity Housing (HRA)

Diher Housing Serdces

Adult Social Care

Corporate and Democratic Core Cosis
Mon Distributed Cosis

Pension Past Sendce Cost credited Io Mon
Distributed Costs

Cost of Services
Financing and imestment Income and
Expendiiure

{SurpluspDeficit on Provision of Services

tsurplus PDeficit on resaluation of non-
current assels

Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Restatement
duse to Restated
adjusiments Restalement Council
Ciouncil Fund inasset for Heritage Furnd
Balance reglster Agsetzs  Movemenis
201072011 201072011
£000 £000 £000 £000
(55870} 26,590 a (29.171)
40,894 26,699 L] 67,693
Restatement
diue ba Restated
adjustments Restatement Council
Met inasset for Heritage Fusnid
Expenditura register Assets Movements
2010/2011 201042011
EQDD EQDD E00D £000
2 584 2| i] 2,503
13,642 5,984 Q 20,826
194974 45 §] 20,024
G621 43 Q 6,664
154,237 15822 0 170,069
27 581 Q38 Q 28619
30,385 (2,008 i 28 206
2514 2290 Q 4 804
54 788 358 a 55,186
4.281 ] a 4207
3811 211 a 4022
(38.972) 4] 0 (38972
281,581 24,647 o 306,208
25540 2,049 27589
(33.5911) 26,6986 o {T.215)
(76 498) 48,235 i) (28,263}
(123 ,168) 48 236 4] (T4 832)
[157,073) 74,932 1] {B2,147)
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Motes to the Core Financial Statements {continued)

Restatement
due to Restated
Balance adjustments Restatement Balance
Shestas at inasset for Heritage Sheetas at
31 March register Asgels 31 March
Extract from Balance Shest 2010 2010
a% at 31 March 2010: £000 £000 E000 EQQD
Propery Plant and Equipment 1,110.322 1] {9.458) 1,100,826
Heritage Assels ] 0 9563 8,563
Unusable Resernes {501,332) ] (87)  (501,39%)
Restatement
Restated duee to Restated
Balance adjustments Restatement Balance
Sheet az at inasset for Heritage Sheotas at
31 March register Azzets 3 Mareh
Extract from Balance Sheet 2044 2011
as at 31 March 2011: £000 EQOD E000 E£000
Property Plant and Equipment 1,166,160 {74,932) (9613)  1,081815
Heritage Assets 0 0 8680 9,630
Unusable Resgeres (638, 054) T4 832 (87) (563,1689)

35. Post Balance Sheet Event

The Authority withdrew from a

joint arrangement for Education Support and Advisory Services

on 31 August 2012. These support services had been delivered via a joint committee by ESIS
(Educatiocn Support and Inspection Services). From 1 September 2012 a similar range of
services are to be provided lo the Authority by the EAS (Education Achievement Service)
which is a limited company wholly owned by Caerphilly CBC, Monmouthshire CBC, Torfaen
CBC, Blaenau Gwent CBC and Newport CBC.

56. Authorisation for Issue

The Head of Corporate Finance, acling as Responsible Financial Officer, gave authonsation
for the issue of these accounts on 27 September 2012, In doing so, the Financial Accounts
include all material events, relating to the financial year, but occurring after the date of the
balance sheet.




Caerphilly County Berough Council

Housing Revenue Account

for the year ended 31 March 2012
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Restated
201072011

£000

(38,080)
(418)
{1.473)
(2,334)

{40,305)

18,920
4,693
SAT4

Tah
T1a4

23643

0684
19

378
68,591

28,286

118

28,405
2197
(7. 400)
(1,042)
(24)

(6.264)
22,136

Housing Revenue Account

Income
Cwelling renis

Men-dwelling rents

Charges for sernvices and facilities

Confributions towards expenditure

Total Income

Expenditure

Fepairs and maintenanos

Supenision and managemeant

Special Senvices

Fents, rates, taxes and other charges

Megative housing revenue account subsidy payable
Depreciation and impairm ent of non-current assets
Mon-Enhancing capital expenditure

Debt Management Costs

Increase in bad debt provsion

Total Expendifure

Net Costl{Income) of HRA Services per Autherity Income
and Expenditure Accournt

HRA senices share of Corporate and Dem ocralic Care
Cosis

MNet Cost of HRA Services

Interest payable and similar charges
Major Repairs Allowance
(zain) / Loss on sale af HRA non-current assats

Imterest and invesiment income

(Surplus)ideficit for the year on HRA services

Page

2011/2012

E0Q0

EODD

MHaote

(37 542)
(368)
{1,314)
(2,208)

20,340
4,761
3353

T43
6,764

23,390

8,081
17
as

2,124
(7.400)
(802)
(25)

(41,430}

BT B8O

26,450

111

26,561

(6203}

20,368
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement

Restated
2070{2011
£000

(6.062)
22138

(21,588)

D4E

(254)
294

{5.768)

2011/2012

E000 £000 Mota
Balance on the HRA ai the end of the prevous year (5, 768)
(Surplus) or Deficit for the year on the HRA Income and 20358
Expenditure Stalement
Adjustments between accounfing basis and funding (214567}
basis under statute
Met {increase)/decrease before transfers 1o or from {1,080}
MESErs
Transfers to or {from) resenes 2187
{Increase) or decrease in year an the HREA 1,088
Balance on the HRA at the end of the current year (4680} &
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Notes to the Movement on the HRA Statement

Restated
2010/2011 201172012
£000 E000 E000 Hote
ltemns included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account
but excluded from the movement on HRA Balance for the
year
{27)  Dhflerence between amounls charged to income and (57)
expenditure far amorisation of premiums and discournts and
the charge for the year delermined in accordance wilh 5 tatube
(23,643) Depreciation and Impalrment of non-curent assels (23,390) 2
(9,684) MNon-enhancing Capital Expendilure (B.091) 26
1,042 Gain on sale of HRA non-cumren! assets po2
(534) Metcharges made for refirement benelits in accordance with (445) 10
n5 189
7400 Capital Grants and Confributions Applied (including Major 7.524
Repairs Mllowance)
{(2547G) (23,558)
ltems not included in the HRA Income and Expenditure
Account but included in the movement on HRA Balance for
the year
B0E  Employer's confribufions payable to the Greater Gwent 570 10
Fension Fund and retirement benefits payable direcl io
pensionars
1008 HRAMnimum Revenue Provsion G975
2,284  Capital expenditure funded by the HRA, 5687 ]
(13}  Adjustment involing the Accumulated Sbsences Account {11}
(214} Transfers (to) / from Reseres 2,187
3674 4 288
(21.802) HNet additional amount required by statute to be credited to (19,270}
the HRA Balance for the year
—— ——
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

MNotes to the Housing Revenue Account

1. Rent of Dwellings

This is the total rent income collectable for the year afier allowance is made for voids on
empty properties. During the year 1.08% of lettable properties were void (an increase from
1.01% in 201002011} The average weekly rent at 31 March 2012 was E72.08 (E69.02 in
201062011}, based on a 48-weak collection period.

2. Dapreciation and Impalrment

Restated
201072011 201172012
E£000 E000
Operational assets comprising:
Dwellings (refer o Mole 20 Core Financial Statements) 2,881 2,31
Cithver Land & Buildings 27 28
Depreclation written back on revaluation of council dwellings {3,1189) (2,371}
Assal impairmaeants 23,754 23,381
Total HRA Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assels 23,643 23,380
Write off of non-enhancing espendiiure 0 ER4 8,001
Total HRA depreciation, impairment and non-enhancing
expanditure 33,327 1481

The aszet impairments shown in the table above have arisen due to the anticipated reduction
in the future rental income stream, together with an increase in anticipated future
maintenance costs.

k5 Rent Armears
The rent arears encompass monies owed by both current and former council tenants

During the year, lotal rent arrears decreased by £3,320. Total current rent arrears represents
2.068% of Gross Rent Income.

£
Arrears at 31 March 2011 1,198,146
Bad Debt Prowsion 31 March 2011 (G695 638)
Met Arrears at 31 March 2011 HIEE
Arrears 8131 March 2012 1,195 826
Bad Debt Provision 31 March 2012 (590, 004)
Met Arrears at 31 March 2012 505822

4. Housing Subsidy
Housing Subsidy contributions of £6.763m were payable in 2011/2012. This compares to the

previous year's subsidy of £7 14d4m. Approximately 5% of the Authority’s tenants receive
assistance to meet the cost of their rent,
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Motes to the Housing Revenue Account (continued)

5. Housing Stock

The Authority was responsible for managing an average of 10,939 dwellings during
2011/2012. The type of stock managed by the Authority is made up of appraximately 80%

houses, 26% flats and 14% bungalows.

Stock at 1 April
AcquisitionsMew Build
SalesDemolifions/Expired Leases

Stock at 31 March

B. Capital Expenditure and Financing

Capital Expenditure
Operational Azsels | Houses
Total Expenditure

Capital Financing

Major Repairs Allowance
Capital Receipls

Capital Grants

Revenue Resapses
Total Income

7. Capital Receipts and Unapplied Capital Income

Balance at 15t April

Amounis received - Right to Buy

Amounis received - Other

Less Statutory Set aside for debt repayment
Less Applied fo Capital Financing

Balance at 31st March

124

2010:2011 2014/2012
Mumber Number
10,868 10,845
L] 4
[4.3) {17
10,945 10,932
2010/20114 201152012
hezets Angets
E000 ED0D
9,684 8091
9,684 8,091
{7.400) {7.400)
] 1]
1] {124)
(2,284) {567)
{9,684) {8,091)
2010/20114 201112012
£000 £000
{118) {580)
(754 (B62)
(288) {238)
57H 511
] 0
(580) {969)
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Notes to the Housing Revenue Account {continued)
8. Balance Carried Forward

The working balance at 31 March 2012 was £4.680m, a net decrease of £1.088m over the

year.
Reserves Balance at  Appropriations Appropriations  Balance at
1 April 2011 From Reserves To Reserves 31 March 2012
E000D £000 £000 £000
Housing Fund Balances (4, 781) 1,433 {345) (3,703)
Supporting People (308) 0 0 (306}
Week 53 Debil (571) 0 ] {871}
{5,768 1,433 {345) (4,680)

A summary of the purposes of these reserves is provided below:

Housing Fund Balances - represents tha ganeral, unallocated balances associated with the
Houzing Revenue Account

Supperting People — represents funds ring fenced for use in accordance with the Supporting
People initiative.

Week 53 Debit - represents the additional week's rent collection during 20072008 that is
iniended to be released back to revenue over the following five years, as appropriate.

8. Major Repairs Allowance

201002011 201112012
E0QD ED0OO
Amoun! Received in Year (7400 {7 400)
Amounts Applied in Year T 00 T 400
Amounts Carried Forward L] i

10. HRA zhare of contributions to or from the Pension Reserve

2010/2011 201172012
E000 EODD
Rewersal of ilems relaling to relirerment benefits debited or
credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provsion of Sendces
in e Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemant (534) (448)
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to
pensioners payable in the year BO8 570
Total Contribution to or from the Pension Reserve T4 124
Page
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The Statement of Accounts contains a number of technical terms which will not be familiar to
the lay person. To assist the reader of the accounts, a number of these lerms have been
explained using non-technical terminology.

Accruals basis — An accounting concept in which transactions are reflected in the accounts
of the period in which they take place, as opposed to the pencd in which payments are made
or received.

Actuary - An actuary is a qualified person who works out insurance and pension fund
valuations, taking info account relevant factors such as trends in insurance claims and life
expectancy.

Amoriisation — The reduction in value of an intangible asset (e.g computer software) by pro-
rating its cost over a period of years.

Authority - Caerphilly County Borough Council.

Balance Sheet - A statement listing all assets and liabilities of the Authority at the 31% March.
Borrowing - Can be short-term (less than 1 year to maturity) or long-term (more than 1 year
to maturity} and represents money loaned fo the Authority by third parties,

Budget - A budget is the spending plan for the financial year in question e 201112,

Capital Adjustment Account - An account that relates fo capital and non-current asset
transactions. This includes the application of capital monies 2.9. capital grants to finance the
capital schemes of the Authority and to manage the disposal of non-current assels.

Capital Expenditure - Expenditure on non-current assets which will be used by the Authority
over many years o provide services e.q. buildings.

Capital Receipts - Proceeds from the sale of non-current assets &.9. land or buildings.

Cash Flow Statement - A statement recording all movements in cash during the year fior
both revenue activities and capital activities.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — A statement recording day to day
spending and income e.g. salaries, wages, running costs atc. on all revenue services of the
Authority.

Contingent Asset - This is a possible asset that arises from a past event but whose
existence will only be confirmed after an uncertain future event e.g. the outcome of a court
case,

Contingent Liability - This is a possible financial cost of a past event but which will only be
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events e.q. the outcome of a
legal case. Unlike a provision, no amounts are set aside in the accounts, only a note
explaining the relevant facts.

Credifor - Someana who is owed maoney for goods or services provided to the Authority.
Current Assets - Assets that are short term and are considered to be liguid by nature ie,
cash, inventories, debtors,

Current Liabilitles - Liabilities that are short term (less than one year),

Debt Management Office (DMQ) - This is an executive agency of HM Treasury with
responsibilities for debt and cash management for the UK Government, lending to local
authorities (via the PWLE (see below) and managing cartain public sector funds.

Debtor - Someone who owes money for goods or services provided by the Authority.
Depreciation - The notional reduction in value of assets due to their wear and lear in
providing services to the Authority,

Direct Revenue Financing - A contribution made from the revenue accounts during the
financial year to help pay for capital projects.

Financial Instruments - A collective name for investments, trade deblors, trade creditors and
borrowings.

Financial Year - This is the accounting period, starting on 1 April and finishing on 31 March in
the following year. For 2011/2012, it runs from 1 Apsil 2011 to 31 March 2012

Finance Leases - A method whereby capital assets are financed over a number of years by
means of annual payments to a leasing company. The ownarship of the asset by the Authority
s deemed to have taken place at the start of the lease arrangement.

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account - An account which is used to manage the loan
interest charged to the Council Fund in accordance with 1AS 32 & 39,

Government Grants - Assistance by Government and inter-government agencies and similar
bodies, whether local, national or international usually in the form of cash.
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

GLOSSARY OF TEEMS continued

Heritage Asset - A tangible asset with historical, arfistic, scientific, technological, geophysical
or environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to
knowledge and culture,

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Account - This account contains all
expenditure and income in relation to the Authority's Council Dwellings including Council
Houses.

Impairment - Impairments occur when non-current asset values change significantly due to
changes in circumstances. They can cccur if there is a significant change in a non-current
assel's market value or significant physical damage eg. fire. The cost of impairment is
charged to the revenue account in the year it ocours,

Inventories - These are raw materials and consumables that are used in carying out
services e.g. bricks, nails, food, beverages etc. The values of these items which have not
been used at 31 March are shown as current assets in the balance sheet

Investments - Investments can be shori-term (less than 1 year to matunty) or long-tarm
imore than 1 year to maturity) and represent surplus funds of the Authority investad with third
parties.

Levies - Levies are charges on the Authority by other public bodies ! non-billing crganisations
o enable them to cover their costs in the performance of their services.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP] - A minimum annual charge that has to be made to the
revenue accounts to systematically reduce the principal element of loans which have been
raised and used to pay for capital schemes.

Movement in Reserves Statement - A statement showing the in-year movemeant on all the
different rezserves held by the Authority,

National Non Domestic Rates ({NNDR) - Also known as the Business Rate, it is the charge
occupiers of business premises pay to finance part of the Authority's revenue spending. The
charge iz based on the raieable value of the business preamises.

Non-Current Assets - These are long term assets which are used for more than 1 year.
Non-Current Assets: Enhancement Expendifure - This is where capital expenditure on an
asset does not alter the book value of the asset e.g. window replacement.

Operating Leases - A method of paying for the use of capital assets e.g. vehicles by means
of annual payments to a leasing company over a number of years. The leasing company
retains ownership of the asset during and at the end of the lease agreement

Precepts - Precepts are levied on the Authority by non-billing organisations e.g. palice,
community councils to enable them to cover their costs in the performance of their services or
dutias.

Pension Liability {IAS 19) - This represents the indebtedness of the Authorty in relation 1o
the retirement benefits due to its employees, afier allowing for the Authority’s share of
investments in the Pension Fund.

Pension Reserve (IAS 19) - This reserve matchas the pension liability and is charged with
the gain or loss which arises when the pension fund Actuary revalues the assets and liabilities
within the pension fund each year. It also ensures that the charge made to the Income and
Expenditure Account under IAS 19 is replaced with the pension cost required to be made for
Council Tax purposes,

Provision - A provision is an amount set aside in the accounts for a past event which is likely
to incur a financial cost some time in the future.

Public Works Loans Board (PWLB] - This Is a Governrment Agency which provides longer
term loans to local authaorities at preferential rates of interast.

Related Party Transactions - These are disclosed to highlight any relationships that may
exist batween the Authority and third parties which may materially affect or influence the way
the Authority or third parties are able to operate.

Reserves - Reserves are sums set aside to meet fulure expenditure. They may be
earmarked to fund specific expenditure or be held as general reserves to fund non specific
future expenditure.

Revaluation Reserve - This reserve is used to record gains in non-current assel values as a
result of formal revaluations,

Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute - This represents expenditure
which dees not result in, or remain matched with, assets controlled by the Authority,

Page

127
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS continued

Revenue Support Grant - This is the principal source of finance from Central Government
towards revenue expenditure incurred for nen Council housing purposes.

Trust Funds - These are monies not belonging to the Autherity that are administered by the
Authority on behalf of third party individuals or arganisations.

Work in Progress - This represents the value of work done on unfinished projects at the date

of the Balance Sheet (31 March).
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Caerphilly County Borough Council

Annual Governance Statement
Scope of responsibility

The Authority is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the
law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for,
and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Authority also has a duly under the
Lacal Government Act 1928 and the Local Government Measure 2009 fo make arrangemeants
to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having
regard 1o a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Autherity is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its
functions, which includes arrangemenits for the management of risk,

The Authority has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is consistent
with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 'Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government’. A copy of the code is on our website al www.caerphilly. gov.uk or can be
obtained from the councils communication department. This statement explains how the
Autharity has complied with the code and also meeis the requirements of regulation 4(2) of
the Accounts & Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005 in relation to the publication of a statement on
internal control.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values,
by which the Authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to,
angages with and leads the community. It enables the Authority t moniter the achievement
of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of
appropriate, cost-effechive sericas,

The system of internal contral & a significant part of that framework and is designed fo
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure lo achieve policies,
aims and ochjectives and can therefore only provide reasenable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal contrel is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the authority's policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelinood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realisad, and to manage them efficiently, effectivaly and economically

The govemnance framework has been in place at the Authority for the year ended 31 March
2012 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts.

The governance framework

The following paragraphs describe the key elements of the systems and processes that
comprise the autharity's governance arrangements:

Identifying & communicating the authority's vision of its purpose and intended
outcomes for citizens and service users

* The Corporate Improvement Plan sets out the Council's vision, priorities and strategc
objectives. These are derived from the Caerphilly Community Strategy, which clearly
articulates a sharad vision for Caerphilly County Borough Council

+ Long term outcomes and Interim performance targets have been established for each
sirategic objective,

» The Community Strategy and Corporate Improvement Plan are published widely and are
glso available on the Council website and infranat.
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Annual Governance Statement (Continued)

Reviewing the authority's vision & its implications for the authority's governance
arrangements

* The Community Strategy and Corporate Improvement Plan are regularly reviewed and the
Council's vision and strategic objectives have been refined to reflect changing aspirations,
both locally and nationalky.

* A performance management framawork has bean developed, which will form an integral
part of the development of the “Single Plan®. The develapment of the Single Plan is one of the
3 key priorities of the Caerphilly Local Service Board, and is required to be implemented by
March 2013 The development of the Single Plan iz engeing, and at present the pariners of
the Local service Board are awaiting statutory guidance from Welsh Govt.

Measuring the quality of services for users, ensuring they are delivered in accordance
with the authority's objectives and ensuring that they represent the best use of
resources

» Service level Improvement Plans contain key service objectives that are geared, whera
appropriate, towards achieving the overall strategic objectives detailed in the Council's
Improvemeant Plan. They also contain challenging targets in respect of both national
performance indicators and local performance targets.

* This system is in turn supported by individual annual staff performance and development
reviews to ensure that everyone understands thair individual and service unit contribution to
corporate goals.

* The Council uses a performance management software system, Fiynnon, which is used fo
monitor not only individual perdormance indicators, but also their combined effect on the
achisvement of sirategic objectives. Reports are produced to ensure that trends in
performance can be identified and comective action introduced if appropriate. Thizs is
supported by a robust data quality control system, which ensures the accuracy of the reporad
information.

* Perfformance against targets iz monitored at officer and member levels, by Corporate
Management Team, Directorate Management Teams, Executive Cabinet and Scrutiny
Commitiees

Defining & documenting the roles & responsibilities of the executive, non-executive,
scruting and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for
effective communication

* The Council's Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and
the procedures that are followed o ensure that these are efficient, transparent and
accountable to local people.

* Policy and decision-making is facilitated through the Executive Cabinet supported by a
framework of Statutory and Scruting Committees. Biannual Performance Management
Scrutiny Committees have been established for each of the Council's scrutiny themes.

* The Constitution also sets out the situations where senior officers of the Council can make
decisions under delegated authority. Delegated power decizions and information items are
published on the intranet.

* The Council publishes an annual improvement plan which sels out key priorities agreed by
the Council, its committees and chief officers under thair delegated powers,

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards
of behaviour for members and staff

* The Council's Constitution contains formal Codes of Conduct that articulate the standards of
ethical behaviour that are expected from membars and officers. These incorporata
procedures for the disclosure of pecuniary interests and offers of gifts and hospltality.

* Both members and officers are made aware of the personal conduct and disclosure
requirements and they are available for reference on the Council’s intranet.

Reviewing & updating standing orders for coniracts, financial regulations, a schema of
delegation and supporting procedure nofes / manuals, which clearly define how
decisions are taken and the processes and controls to manage risks
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Annual Governance Statement ({Continued)

« The Monitoring Officer in conjunction with senior officers and members underiakes periodic
reviews of the Councils Constitution including a review of Standing Orders for Contracts,
Financial Regulations and the Scheme of Delegation.

* The standard member reporting procedure requires a consideration of risk for all significant
decisions. Thizs iz also underpinned by a robust structure and systemn for identifying and
evaluating all significant business risks at both the strategic and operational levels, the key
elements of which are a Strategic Risk Register and service level risk assessments built into
the business planning process

Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA's Audit
Committees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities

+ The Council hag appointed an Audit Committes whose terms of reference comply with the
latest CIPFA guldelines. These extend to monitoring and reviewing the adequacy of the
gavernance framework.

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, infternal policies and
proceduras and that expenditure is lawful
+ The Council aims to ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and
regulations through a variaty of mechanisms, including:

Manitoring Officer;

Section 151 Officer,

Internal Audit,

External Audit;

Perfaormance managameant framework.
* The Council has designated the Head of Legal Services as Monitoring Officer, whao plays a
key role in ensuring compliance. After consulting with the Deputy Chief Executive Officer, the
Maonitoring Officer will report to the full Council if helshe considers that any proposal, dacision
or omission would give rize o unlawfulness or maladministration. Such a report will have tha
effect of stopping the proposal or decision being implemented wuntil the report has been
considared.
* The standard commitiee reporting procedure and template requires the Monitoring Officer to
examine repons to the Executive for compliance with legal issues. His comments are referred
to the Councils Corporate Management Team for action.

Arrangements for whistle blowing and for receiving and invesfigating complaints from
the public

+ The Council has a Whistle Blowing Policy, which has been widely publicized via the Council
web site, intranet and other channeis.

» Tha Council also oparates a formal Corporate Complaints Procedure, which has been
widaly publicised.

Identifying the development need of members and senior officers in relation to their
strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

* Formal induction programmes and fraining & development plans are in place for both
members and senior officers, Where identified by the PDR process senior officers participate
in management development training.

« All senior officers participate in the corporate staff appraisal schame,

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and
other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consuliation
* Up to date strategies are in place in respect of communications, marketing and consultation.

A corporate database of formal consultations is maintained to reduce duplication of
consultation,

Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other
group working as identified in the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of
partnerships, and reflecting these in the authority's overall governance arrangements
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Annual Governance Statement (Continued)

* The Council has adopted a formal Framewark for Parinership Working which specifies the
minimum governance requirements in respect of all the Council's partnerships and the
enhanced requirements in respect of its key partnerships.

The Council had established a COMPACT which is an agreement between various
organisations within the County Borough including the Voluntary Sector, Local Health Board,
Police, Fire and Rescue and the Council itself sefting out how they will work fogether and
identifying protocols for such joint working.

Key partnerships are brought together biannually at the Caerphilly Standing Conference to
reflect on progress and to communicate community planning progress.

Review of affectiveness

The Authority has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its governance framework including the system of internal control.  The review of
effectiveness is informed by the work of the Corporate Services governance group within the
authority who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance
environment, the Head of Internal Audit's annual report, and also by comments made by the
external auditors and other review agencies and inspeclorates. The review covers all
significant corporate systems, processes and controls, spanning the whole range of the
Authority's aclivities, including in particular those designed to ensure:

* The Authority's policies are put into place;

* The Authority's values are met;

* Laws and regulations are complied with;

* Required processes are adherad to;

* Parformance and financial statements and other published information are accurate and
reliable;

* Human, financial and other resources are managed efficiently and effectively;

* High guality services are delivered efficiently and effectively.

The following paragraphs describe the processes that have been applied in maintaining and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Council's governance framework:

Corporate Level Review
A management group consisting of the following officers has been established to oversee the
compilation of the Annual Governance Statement:

s Deputy Chief Exacutive:

* Head of Legal Services (Maonitoring Officer);

* Head of Corporate Finance (Section 151 Officer):
* Head of Performance and Property.

The group have conducted a detailed corporate level review of the Council's system of
governance in accordance with the guidance provided by CIPFA f SOLACE

Directorate Level Review

The Council has also intreduced Directorate Assurance Statements requiring Directors to
review the cperation of a range of govemnance systems and procedures within their service
areas and indicate whether there are any significant non-compliance issues. These are
analysed to ascerain whether there are any common areas of concern, and if so0. whether
these constitute significant governance issues and as such need to be included in the Annual
Governance Statement
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Monitoring Officer

As the Council's Monitoring Officer, The Head of Legal Services has a duty to monitor and
review the operation of the Constitution to ensure its aims and principles are given full effect,
Feviews are undertaken as and when necassary.

Scrutiny Committess

The Council has Scrutiny Committees who meet in public and make recommendations on the
improveament and development of policies and hold the Executive and officers exercising
delegated powers to account for their decisions,

Audit Committee

The Council has appointed an Audit Committes in accordance with the provisions of 5 81-87
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 of which tarms of reference comply with the latest
CIPFA guidance and the requirements of the Measure. These extend to monitoring and
reviewing the adequacy of the governance framework.

Standards Committee

Tha Council has appointed a Standards Committee in accordance with the provisions of 5.53-
85 & 5.81(5) Local government Act 2000 and associated regulations, Their terms of referance
are sai out in the Council's Constitution,

Performance Management

The Performance Management Unit is responsible for developing and maintaining the
Council's performance management framework in accordance with the Wales Programme for
Improvement. It supports and challenges the Council as a whole, and the individual services,
to continuously improve its services and works with the external auditors to co-ordinate
inzpection programmes,

Internal Awdit

Internal Audit is responsible for menitoring the quality and effectiveness of the system of
governance and intermal control. A risk-based Internal Audit Plan is produced each financial
year, The reporting process for Internal Audit requires a report of @ach audit to be submitted
to the relevant Directorate. Each report includes recommandations for improvements and an
agreed management action plan. The process includes follow-up reviews of agreed
recommendations to ensure that they are acted upon.

The Internal Audit Annual Report contains a statement / judgement on overall levels of
internal control (& view based on the relative significance of the systems reviewed during the
year, in the context of the tatality of the control enviranment).

The Internal Audit Section is subject to regular inspection by the Authority's extarnal auditors.

External Audit

In accordance with the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice, the Council receive
regular reports on elements of its intermal control environment, including performance
management, risk managament, financial management and governance.
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Review Outcome '

The review of the Council's govemance arrangements has identified two areas where
improvements could be made to strengthen the existing procedures and processes: -

a) The formulation and implementation of a suitable system of controls and governance
in relation to the collaborative arrangements that are currently being developed.
b} The further development of the Council's business continuity arangements.

We propose over the coming year to take steps lo address the above matters to further
enhance our governance amangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address tha
issues identified during the review process and we will monitor their implementation and
operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed 1

AT | 11\
77 ganrd l.' 1'\“ "“"JL e

Harry Andrews Anthony O*Sullivan
Leader of the Council Chief Executive
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